DST SYSTEMS INC Form S-3 September 25, 2003

AS	FILED	WITH	THE	SECURITIES	AND	EXCHANGE	COMMISSION	ON	SEPTEMBER	25,	2003
							REGISTRA	10II	N NO. 333		

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

DST SYSTEMS, INC. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

DELAWARE
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

43-1581814 (IRS Employer Identification No.)

333 WEST 11TH STREET, 5TH FLOOR KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64105-1594

(816) 435-1000

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant's Principal Executive Offices)

RANDALL D. YOUNG, ESQ. 333 WEST 11TH STREET KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64105 (816) 435-8651

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code of Agent for Service)

COPY TO:

JOHN F. MARVIN

DIANE M. BONO

SONNENSCHEIN NATH & ROSENTHAL LLP

4520 MAIN STREET, SUITE 1100

KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111

(816) 460-2400

APPROXIMATE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF PROPOSED SALE TO THE PUBLIC: From time to time after this registration statement becomes effective.

If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. [__]

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. [X]

If	this	form	is	filed	to	regi	ster	addit	ional	securi	ities	s for	an	offer	ring
pursuant	to :	Rule	462 ((b) und	der	the	Secur	ities	Act,	check	the	follow	ving	box	and
list the	Se	curit	ies	Act	reg	istra	tion	state	ment	number	of e	earlier	e e	ffect	ive
registra	tion	stat	emer	nt for	the	same	offe	ring.	[]_						

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [__]

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box. $[_]$

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title Of Each Class Of Securities To Be Registered	Amount To Be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price
4.125% Series A Convertible Senior			
Debentures due 2023	\$540,000,000	100%	\$540,000,000
3.625% Series B Convertible Senior			
Debentures due 2023	\$300,000,000	100%	\$300,000,000
Common Stock, \$0.01 par value per			
share (1)	17,113,488	(2)	

- (1) Includes the associated rights to purchase preferred stock, which initially are attached to and trade with the shares of common stock being registered hereby.
- (2) This number represents the number of shares of common stock that are currently issuable upon conversion of the 4.125% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 and the 3.625% Series B Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023, calculated based on a conversion rate of 20.3732 shares per \$1,000 principal amount of the debentures. Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act, we are also registering an indeterminate number of additional shares of common stock as may be issued in connection with a stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, or similar event or adjustment in the number of shares issuable as provided in the Indenture under which these debentures were issued.
- (3) No additional consideration will be received upon conversion of the debentures into common stock, and therefore no registration fee is payable pursuant to Rule 457(i.)

THE REGISTRANT HEREBY AMENDS THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON SUCH DATE OR DATES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO DELAY ITS EFFECTIVE DATE UNTIL THE REGISTRANT SHALL FILE A FURTHER AMENDMENT WHICH SPECIFICALLY STATES THAT THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL THEREAFTER BECOME EFFECTIVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8(A) OF

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON SUCH DATE AS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ACTING PURSUANT TO SAID SECTION 8(A), MAY DETERMINE.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. The selling security holders may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to Completion dated September 25, 2003

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

[DST LOGO]

\$840,000,000

DST SYSTEMS, INC.

4.125% SERIES A CONVERTIBLE SENIOR DEBENTURES DUE 2023 3.625% SERIES B CONVERTIBLE SENIOR DEBENTURES DUE 2023 AND

COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE DEBENTURES

This prospectus relates to \$540,000,000 aggregate principal amount of our 4.125% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 and \$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of our 3.625% Series B Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023. We originally issued and sold the debentures to Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Banc of America Securities, LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, Fleet Securities, Inc., U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., Legg Mason Walker Wood, Incorporated, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, in a private placement in August 2003. This prospectus will be used by selling security holders to resell their debentures and the common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures.

The Series A debentures and the Series B debentures, which we refer to as the debentures, will bear regular cash interest on the original principal amount of each debenture at a rate of 4.125% per year on the Series A debentures and 3.625% per year on the Series B debentures. Regular cash interest will be payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year beginning February 15, 2004, until August 15, 2010 in the case of the Series A debentures and August 15, 2008 in the case of the Series B debentures. Beginning on August 15, 2010, in the case of the Series A debentures, and August 15, 2008, in the case of the Series B debentures, we will not pay regular cash interest on the debentures prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of each debenture will increase at a rate of 4.125% per year on the Series A debentures and 3.625% per year on the Series B debentures, computed from August 15, 2010, in the case of the Series A debentures, and August 15, 2008, in the case of the Series B debentures, on a semiannual bond equivalent basis using a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months. On the maturity date of the debentures, a holder will receive, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of debentures, \$1,700.28 for the Series A debentures and \$1,714.09 for the Series B debentures. Beginning on August 20, 2015, in the case of the Series A debentures, and August 20, 2008, in the case of the Series B debentures, we will pay additional contingent interest on each series of debentures if the average trading price of that series of debentures is above a specified level during a specified period, as described in this prospectus. The debentures will be unsecured and will rank equally with all of our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated

indebtedness.

The debentures are convertible under certain circumstances by holders into shares of our common stock per \$1,000 original principal amount of debentures at an initial conversion rate of 20.3732 shares for the Series A debentures and 20.3732 shares of our common stock for the Series B debentures (each subject to adjustment in certain events). This is equivalent to an initial conversion price of \$49.08 per share for the Series A debentures and \$49.08 per share for the Series B debentures. Each series of debentures are convertible under any of the following circumstances: (1) the closing price of our common stock reaches a specified threshold, (2) the trading price per debenture falls below a specified threshold, (3) if we call the debentures for redemption or (4) upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions, each as described in this prospectus. Upon conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of common stock, cash or any combination of cash and common stock.

The Series A debentures will mature on August 15, 2023. We may redeem some or all of the Series A debentures at any time on or after August 20, 2010 at the redemption price set forth herein in cash. Holders will have the right to require us to purchase the Series A debentures at a purchase price set forth herein on August 15, 2010, August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020, or upon a fundamental change, as described in this prospectus. For purchases on August 15, 2010, we will pay the purchase price in cash. Thereafter, and upon any fundamental change, we can pay the purchase price at our option in cash, common stock or any combination of cash and common stock.

The Series B debentures will mature on August 15, 2023. We may redeem some or all of the Series B debentures at any time on or after August 20, 2008 at the redemption price set forth herein in cash. Holders will have the right to require us to purchase the Series A debentures at a purchase price set forth herein on August 15, 2008, August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018, or upon a fundamental change, as described in this prospectus. For purchases on August 15, 2008, we will pay the purchase price in cash. Thereafter, and upon any fundamental change, we can pay the purchase price at our option in cash, common stock or any combination of cash and common stock.

The debentures are unsecured and rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

The debentures will be treated as contingent payment debt instruments that will be subject to special United States federal income tax rules. For discussion of the special tax rules governing contingent payment debt instruments, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "DST." The last reported sales price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on September 24, 2003 was \$38.63 per share.

INVESTING IN THE DEBENTURES INVOLVES RISKS. SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 13.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR DETERMINED WHETHER THIS PROSPECTUS IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

The date of this prospectus is ,2003

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE IN THIS PROSPECTUS OR ANY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH DIFFERENT INFORMATION. YOU SHOULD NOT ASSUME THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS OR ANY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT IS ACCURATE AS OF ANY DATE OTHER THAN THE DATE ON THE FRONT OF THAT DOCUMENT AND THAT ANY INFORMATION WE HAVE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE IS ACCURATE ONLY AS OF THE DATE OF THE DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Where You Can Find More Information	i
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	iii
Summary	1
Risk Factors	13
Use of Proceeds	23
Description of the Exchange	24
Selected Financial Data of DST Output Marketing Services, Inc	37
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Financial Statements	38
Description of the Series A Debentures	46
Description of the Series B Debentures	72
Description of Capital Stock	98
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations	104
Selling Security Holders	111
Plan of Distribution	115
Validity of Securities	117
Experts	117

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as the SEC. You may read and copy any document that we file at the SEC's public reference room at Room 1024, Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available from the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov, and at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, which we refer to as the NYSE. For further information on obtaining copies of our public filings at the NYSE, you should call (212) 656-5060.

This prospectus "incorporates by reference" information that we have filed with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which we refer to as the Exchange Act. This means that we are disclosing important information to you by referring you to those documents. Any statement contained in this prospectus or in any document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or any subsequently filed document which also is, or is deemed to be, incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as to modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus. We incorporate by reference the following documents listed below and any future filings made with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (other than Current Reports furnished under Item 9 of Form 8-K), until the initial purchasers sell all the debentures:

DAGE

- Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002;
- o Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2003 and June 30, 2003;
- o Our Current Reports on Form 8-K or 8-K/A filed on March 17, 2003, April 29, 2003 and August 13, 2003;

i

- o Our Proxy Statement(1), filed on March 28, 2003;
- Appendix A (Share Exchange Agreement), Appendix D (OMS Condensed Combined Financial Statements, June 30, 2003) and Appendix E (OMS Combined Financial Statements, December 31, 2002 and 2001) to our preliminary special meeting proxy statement filed September 16, 2003;
- o The description of our common stock and related rights to purchase preferred stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on November 17, 1995, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

All documents subsequently filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (excluding any information furnished pursuant to Item 9 or Item 12 on any current report on Form 8-K), prior to the termination of the offering, shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus and to be a part hereof from the date of the filing of such document. In addition, all documents filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (excluding any information furnished pursuant to Item 9 or Item 12 on any current report on Form 8-K) after the date of the initial registration statement and prior to effectiveness of the registration statement shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus and to be a part hereof from the date of the filing of such document. Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for all purposes to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus, or in any other subsequently filed document which is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference, modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

You may also request a copy of these filings and a copy of any or all documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

DST Systems, Inc. 333 West 11th Street Kansas City, Missouri 64105 Attn: DST Corporate Secretary (816) 435-4636

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and definitive proxy statements are also available to the public as soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the SEC on or through our website at www.dstsystems.com. (We have included our website address as an inactive textural reference and do not intend it to be an active link to our website. Information on our website is not part of this prospectus.)

(1) The information referred to in Item $402\,(a)\,(8)$ of Regulation S-K and paragraph (d)(3) of Item 7 of Schedule 14A promulgated by the SEC shall not be deemed to be specifically incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

ii

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which we refer to as the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Statements in this document and the documents incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs and expectations, particularly regarding recent business and economic trends, the proposed share exchange with Janus Capital Group Inc., which we refer to as Janus, the impact of litigation, dispositions, impairment charges, the integration of acquisitions and restructuring costs, constitute forward-looking statements. In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as "may," "will," "should," "intend," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "predict," "potential" or "continue," or the negative of such terms or other comparable terms. These statements are based on assumptions by DST's management at the time the statements are made including assumptions about risks and uncertainties faced by us. If any of management's assumptions prove incorrect or unanticipated circumstances arise, the actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of new information or future events.

Differences could be caused by a number of factors or combination of factors. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those associated with our ability to attract new clients and retain existing clients; the financial success of our clients; the impact of technological developments; the successful completion of joint ventures which complement and expand our business capabilities; accounting or other fraud that may occur with respect to the financial statements or business of financial service providers or other clients of ours; changes in management strategies; changes in lines of business or markets; failure of anticipated opportunities to materialize; changes in the cost of necessary supplies; and changes in the economic, political or regulatory environments in the United States and/or the other countries where we now compete or may compete in the future.

Our liquidity could be adversely affected if we are unable to access capital or to raise proceeds from asset sales. Our financial condition and future results of operations could also be adversely affected if we recognize additional impairment charges due to future events or in the event of other adverse accounting-related developments.

At any given time we may be engaged in a number of preliminary discussions that may result in one or more joint ventures, acquisitions or dispositions. These opportunities require confidentiality and from time to time give rise to bidding scenarios that require quick responses by us. Although there is uncertainty that any of these discussions will result in definitive agreements or the completion of any transactions, the announcement of any such transaction may lead to increased volatility in the trading price of our securities.

Investors should evaluate any statements made by us in light of these important factors and the factors contained in the "Risk Factors" section.

iii

SUMMARY

THIS SUMMARY CONTAINS BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT US AND THIS OFFERING. BECAUSE IT IS A SUMMARY, IT DOES NOT CONTAIN ALL OF THE INFORMATION THAT YOU SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE INVESTING. YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY READ THIS ENTIRE PROSPECTUS INCLUDING THE SECTION ENTITLED "RISK FACTORS" AND THE DOCUMENTS WE INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE TO FULLY UNDERSTAND THE TERMS OF THE DEBENTURES AS WELL AS THE TAX AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS THAT ARE IMPORTANT TO YOU IN MAKING A DECISION WHETHER TO INVEST IN THE DEBENTURES AND THE COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON THEIR CONVERSION. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS ASSUMES THAT THE REPRESENTATIVES' OPTION TO PURCHASE ADDITIONAL DEBENTURES IS NOT EXERCISED.

OUR COMPANY

DST has several operating business units that offer sophisticated information processing and software services and products. These business units are reported as three operating segments:

- o Financial Services;
- o Output Solutions; and
- o Customer Management.

In addition, investments in equity securities and certain financial interests and our real estate subsidiaries and affiliates have been aggregated into an Investments and Other segment. A summary of each of these segments follows:

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Our Financial Services segment provides sophisticated information processing and computer software services and products primarily to mutual funds, investment managers, corporations, insurance companies, banks, brokers and financial planners. Our proprietary software systems include:

- o mutual fund shareowner and unit trust recordkeeping systems for U.S. and international mutual fund companies;
- o a defined-contribution participant recordkeeping system for the U.S. retirement plan market;
- o securities transfer systems offered to corporations, corporate trustees and transfer agents;
- o investment management systems offered to U.S. and international fund accountants and investment managers; and
- o a workflow management and customer contact system offered to mutual funds, insurance companies, brokerage firms, banks, cable television operators and health care providers.

We also provide design, management and transaction processing services for customized consumer equipment maintenance and debt protection programs.

The segment distributes its services and products on a direct basis and through subsidiaries and joint venture affiliates in the United States, United Kingdom, Canada, Europe, Australia, South Africa and Asia-Pacific and, to a lesser degree, distributes such services and products through various strategic alliances.

OUTPUT SOLUTIONS

Our Output Solutions segment provides single source, integrated print and electronic communications solutions. In the United States, DST Output, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, provides customized and personalized bill and statement processing services and electronic bill payment and presentment solutions which establish DST Output, Inc. as a preferred service provider to customers of the Financial Services and Customer Management segments and other industries that value customer communications and require high quality, accurate and timely bill and statement processing.

The segment also offers its services to the Canadian and U.K. markets. DST Output Canada Ltd., our wholly owned subsidiary, offers customer communications and document automation solutions to the Canadian market. DST International Output Limited, which was acquired in 2002, provides personalized paper and electronic communications, principally in the United Kingdom.

The segment also offers a variety of complementary professional services, including communications design, direct marketing, fulfillment, assistance in stimulating consumer and consent adoption for electronic delivery as well as statement design and formatting services, that allow clients to use bills and statements as personalized communication and marketing tools.

DST Output Marketing Services, Inc., referred to in this prospectus as OMS, is included in this segment and, at or before the time of the proposed share exchange transaction described below under "--Recent Developments--Proposed Share Exchange Transaction," certain of the business assets of this segment which are not assets of OMS will have been transferred to OMS and upon consummation of the share exchange transaction will no longer be business assets of this segment. See "Description of the Exchange--The Business."

CUSTOMER MANAGEMENT

Our Customer Management segment provides customer management, billing and marketing solutions to the video/broadband, direct broadcast satellite wire-line and Internet Protocol telephony, Internet and utility markets. The segment offers a comprehensive customer management and billing solution by providing core customer care products that are supplemented with the products and services offered from our other operating segments.

The segment distributes its services and products on a direct basis, through subsidiaries in North America, the United Kingdom and parts of Europe and with international alliance partners in other regions of the world.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER

The Investments and Other segment holds investments in equity securities and certain financial interests and our real estate subsidiaries and affiliates. We hold investments in equity securities with a market value of approximately \$982.0 million at June 30, 2003, including 12.8 million shares of State Street Corporation with a market value of approximately \$504.0 million and 8.6 million shares of Computer Sciences Corporation with a market value of approximately \$329.1 million. Additionally, the segment owns and operates real estate mostly in the United States and the United Kingdom, which is held primarily for lease to our other business segments.

COMPANY INFORMATION

DST was originally established in 1969. Through a reorganization in August 1995, DST is now a corporation organized in the State of Delaware. Our principal executive offices are located at 333 West 11th Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64105. Our telephone number is (816) 435-1000.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

PROPOSED SHARE EXCHANGE TRANSACTION

On August 25, 2003, DST, OMS, a New York corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of DST, and Janus Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, referred to in this prospectus as Janus, entered into a Share Exchange Agreement, referred to as the Share Exchange Agreement. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement, DST will transfer to Janus all of the issued and outstanding shares of OMS common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, referred to in this prospectus as the OMS Shares, and Janus will transfer to DST 32.3 million shares of DST common stock owned by Janus, referred to in this prospectus as the Janus DST Shares, in exchange for the OMS Shares (such transfers collectively referred to as the Exchange). Upon completion of the Exchange, Janus will own approximately 7.4 million shares of DST common stock (or approximately 9% of the outstanding shares), but DST will hold a proxy to vote these shares.

DST has agreed that, prior to the closing of the Exchange, DST will, and will cause its respective subsidiaries to, transfer to OMS certain business assets, business liabilities, and additional assets consisting of cash. In exchange for these transfers, OMS has agreed to accept, assume and pay, perform or otherwise discharge the liabilities transferred to it in accordance with their respective terms and conditions.

At the time of the Exchange, OMS will hold graphics design and sheet-fed offset commercial printing operations, the laser printing and fulfillment operations of the Marketing Services Division of DST's Output Solutions segment, and additional cash to approximately equalize the value of the OMS Shares to the Janus DST Shares being exchanged.

The Share Exchange Agreement and certain related ancillary agreements are described in more detail under "Description of the Exchange." The obligations of DST, OMS and Janus to complete the Exchange are subject to a number of conditions. See "Description of the Exchange--Conditions to Closing Obligations."

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

For a more complete description of the terms of the debentures and the common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures, see "Description of the Series A Debentures," "Description of the Series B Debentures" and "Description of Capital Stock."

4.125% SERIES A CONVERTIBLE SENIOR DEBENTURES

Issuer	DST Systems, Inc.
Debentures Offered	\$540,000,000 aggregate original principal amount of 4.125% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023.
Maturity	August 15, 2023, unless earlier redeemed, purchased or converted.
Interest	The Series A debentures initially bear regular cash interest at an annual rate equal to 4.125% on the original principal amount. Regular cash interest will be payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, each an interest payment date, beginning February 15, 2004, until August 15, 2010.
	Beginning August 15, 2010, we will not pay regular cash interest on the Series A debentures prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of each Series A debenture will increase daily at a rate of 4.125% per year to \$1,700.28, which is the full accreted principal amount payable at maturity for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures. The accreted principal amount of a debenture will be computed from August 15, 2010 on a semiannual bond equivalent basis using a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.
	We will also pay contingent interest and liquidated damages on the Series A debentures under the circumstances described in this prospectus.
Ranking	The Series A debentures are unsecured and rank equally in right of payment with all of our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The Series A debentures are effectively subordinated to existing and future indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries and to any of our secured indebtedness. As of June 30, 2003, we had outstanding approximately \$406.8 million of unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness, and approximately \$127.8 million of secured indebtedness.
Contingent Interest	Under certain circumstances, we will make additional payments of interest, referred to in this prospectus as "contingent interest."

For the period from August 20, 2010 to

February 14, 2011, and thereafter for any six-month interest period from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, we will pay contingent interest for such period if the average trading price of the Series A debentures for the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures. We will pay contingent interest on the interest payment date immediately following the applicable six-month interest period. The amount of contingent interest payable per Series A debenture in respect of any six-month interest period will be equal to 0.19% of the average trading price of a Series A debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period. The "five trading-day reference period" means the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the relevant six-month interest period. For more information about contingent interest, see "Description of the Series A Debentures -- Contingent Interest."

Conversion Rights.....

Holders may convert their Series A debentures into shares of our common stock under any of the following circumstances:

- during any calendar quarter after September 30, 2003 (and only during such calendar quarter) if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the previous calendar quarter, is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price, or
- o subject to certain exceptions, during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on each such day, or
- o if the Series A debentures have been called for redemption, or
- o upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions described under "Description of the Series A Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Conversion UpoN

Specified Corporate Transactions."

For each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures surrendered for conversion, you may convert your Series A debentures into 20.3732 shares of our common stock. This represents an initial conversion price of \$49.08 per share of common stock. As described in this prospectus, the conversion rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, including for any cash dividend or distribution in excess of \$0.0025 per quarter, but it will not be adjusted for accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, or for accretion of the principal amount of the Series A debentures (except as otherwise described in this prospectus). Except as otherwise described in this prospectus, you will not receive any payment representing accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest, if any, or accretion of the principal amount upon conversion of a Series A debenture; however, we will pay accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any, to the conversion date in accordance with the registration rights agreement.

Upon conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock. See "Description of Series A Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Payment Upon Conversion."

Series A debentures called for redemption may be surrendered for conversion prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the redemption date.

Optional Redemption.....

Prior to August 20, 2010, the Series A debentures will not be redeemable by us. On or after August 20, 2010, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Series A debentures at any time, upon not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date, by mail to the trustee, the paying agent and each holder of Series A debentures, for a price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures to be redeemed plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. See "Description of the Series A Debentures-- Optional

Redemption."

Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder

Holders have the right to require us to purchase all or any portion of their Series A debentures on August 15, 2010, August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020. In each case, the purchase price will be equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. See "Description of the Series A Debentures— Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder."

We will pay cash for all Series A debentures so purchased on August 15, 2010. For purchases on August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020, we may pay the purchase price for any Series A debentures that we are required to purchase in cash, common stock, or any combination thereof. If we choose to pay all or part of the purchase price in shares of common stock, the shares will be valued at 97.5% of the market price (as defined) of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the purchase date.

Fundamental Change.....

If we undergo a Fundamental Change (as defined under "Description of the Series Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder"), holders will have the right, at their option, to require us to purchase all or any portion of their Series debentures. The price we are required to pay is equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures to be purchased plus accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the Fundamental Change purchase date. We may choose to pay the purchase price for any Series A debentures that you require us to purchase upon a Fundamental Change in cash, shares of our common stock or any combination of cash and shares. If we choose to pay all or part of the purchase price in shares of common stock, the shares will be valued at 97.5% of the market price (as defined) of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the purchase date. See "Description of the Series A Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale by the selling security holders

of the debentures or the common stock

issuable upon conversion thereof. See "Use of Proceeds."

the Option of the Holder."

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.....

Use of Proceeds.....

Each holder agrees in the indenture to treat the Series A debentures as contingent payment debt instruments for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a holder of Series A debentures, you will agree to accrue original issue discount on a constant yield to maturity basis at a rate comparable to the rate at which we would borrow in a noncontingent, nonconvertible borrowing, 8.4% compounded semi-annually. As a result, you will generally recognize taxable income in each year in excess of interest payments actually received that year. Additionally, you will generally be required to recognize ordinary income on the gain, if any, realized on a sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of the Series A debentures. This gain will be measured by the sum of the amount of any cash and the fair market value of any shares of our common stock or other property received. A summary of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of ownership and disposition of Series A debentures and our common stock is described in this prospectus under the heading "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations." Owners of the Series A debentures should consult their tax advisors as to the U.S. federal, state, local, or other tax consequences of acquiring, owning and disposing of the Series A debentures and our common stock.

Trading.....

The Series A debentures will not be listed on any securities exchange or included in any automated quotation system. No assurance can be given as to the development or liquidity of any trading market for the Series A debentures. Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol "DST." The Series A debentures have been approved for designation in the PORTALsm Market of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

3.625% SERIES B CONVERTIBLE SENIOR DEBENTURES

Taguar	DCT Customs Inc
Issuer	DST Systems, Inc.
Debentures Offered	\$300,000,000 aggregate original principal amount of 3.625% Series B Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023.
Maturity	August 15, 2023, unless earlier redeemed, purchased or converted.
Interest	The Series B debentures initially bear regular cash interest at an annual rate equal to 3.625% on the original principal amount. Regular cash interest will be payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, each an interest payment date, beginning February 15, 2004, until August 15, 2008.
	Beginning August 15, 2008, we will not pay regular cash interest on the Series B debentures prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of each Series B debenture will increase daily at a rate of 3.625% per year to \$1,714.09, which is the full accreted principal amount payable at maturity for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures. The accreted principal amount of a debenture will be computed from August 15, 2008 on a semiannual bond equivalent basis using a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.
	We will also pay contingent interest and liquidated damages on the Series B debentures under the circumstances described in this prospectus.
Ranking	The Series B debentures are unsecured and rank equally in right of payment with all of our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The Series B debentures are effectively subordinated to existing and future indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries and to any of our secured indebtedness. As of June 30, 2003, we had outstanding approximately \$406.8 million of unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness, and approximately \$127.8 million of secured indebtedness.
Contingent Interest	Under certain circumstances, we will make additional payments of interest, referred to in this prospectus as "contingent interest." For the period from August 20, 2008 to February 14, 2009, and thereafter for any six-month

interest period from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, we will pay contingent interest for such period if the average trading price of Series B debentures for the the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures. We will pay contingent interest on the interest payment date immediately following the applicable six-month interest period. The amount of contingent interest payable per Series B debenture in respect of any six-month interest period will be equal to 0.19% of the average trading price of a Series B debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period. The "five trading-day reference period" means the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the relevant six-month interest period. For more information about contingent interest, see "Description of the Series B Debentures -- Contingent Interest."

Conversion Rights.....

Holders may convert their Series B debentures into shares of our common stock under any of the following circumstances:

- during any calendar quarter after September 30, 2003 (and only during such calendar quarter) if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the previous calendar quarter, is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price, or
- o subject to certain exceptions, during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on each such day; or
- o if the Series B debentures have been called for redemption, or
- o upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions described under "Description of the Series B Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Conversion Upon Specified Corporate Transactions."

For each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures surrendered for conversion, you may convert your Series B debentures into 20.3732 shares of our common stock. This represents an initial conversion price of \$49.08 per share of common stock. As described in this prospectus, the conversion rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, including for any cash dividend or distribution in excess of \$0.0025 per quarter, but it will not be adjusted for accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, or for accretion of the principal amount of the Series B debentures (except as otherwise described in this prospectus). Except as otherwise described in this prospectus, you will not receive any payment representing accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest, if any, or accretion of the principal amount upon conversion of a Series B debenture; however, we will pay accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any, to the conversion date in accordance with the registration rights agreement.

Upon conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock. See "Description of Series B Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Payment Upon Conversion."

Series B debentures called for redemption may be surrendered for conversion prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the redemption date.

Optional Redemption.....

Prior to August 20, 2008, the Series B debentures will not be redeemable by us. On or after August 20, 2008, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Series B debentures at any time, upon not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date, by mail to the trustee, the paying agent and each holder of Series B debentures, for a price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures to be redeemed plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. See "Description of the Series B Debentures-- Optional Redemption."

Purchase of Series B
Debentures by Us at the
Option of the Holder.....

Holders have the right to require us to purchase all or any portion of their Series B debentures on August 15, 2008, August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018. In each case, the purchase price will be equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. See "Description of the Series B Debentures— Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder."

We will pay cash for all Series B debentures so purchased on August 15, 2018. For purchases on August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018, we may pay the purchase price for any Series B debentures that we are required to purchase in cash, common stock, or any combination thereof. If we choose to pay all or part of the purchase price in shares of common stock, the shares will be valued at 97.5% of the market price (as defined) of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the purchase date.

Fundamental Change.....

If we undergo a Fundamental Change (as defined under "Description of the Series B Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder"), holders will have the right, at their option, to require us to purchase all or any portion of their Series B debentures. The price we are required to pay is equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures to be purchased plus accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the Fundamental Change purchase date. We may choose to pay the purchase price for any Series B debentures that you require us to purchase upon a Fundamental Change in cash, shares of our common stock or any combination of cash and shares. If we choose to pay all or part of the purchase price in shares of common stock, the shares will be valued at 97.5% of the market price (as defined) of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the purchase date. See "Description of the Series B Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder."

Use of Proceeds..... We will not receive any proceeds from the sale by the selling security holders of the debentures or the common stock issuable upon conversion thereof. See "Use of Proceeds." Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations..... Each holder agrees in the indenture to treat the Series B debentures as contingent payment debt instruments for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a holder of Series B debentures, you will agree to accrue original issue discount on a constant yield to maturity basis at a rate comparable to the rate at which we would borrow in a noncontingent, nonconvertible borrowing, compounded semi-annually. As a result, you will generally recognize taxable income in each year in excess of interest payments actually received that year. Additionally, you will generally be required to recognize ordinary income on the gain, if any, realized on a sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of the Series B debentures. This gain will be measured by the sum of the amount of any cash and the fair market value of any shares of our common stock or other property received. A summary of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of ownership and disposition of Series B debentures and our common stock is described in this prospectus under the heading "Material U.S. Federal Income

Trading.....

The Series B debentures will not be listed on any securities exchange or included in any automated quotation system. No assurance can be given as to the development or liquidity of any trading market for the Series B debentures. Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol "DST." The Series B debentures have been approved for designation in the PORTALSM Market of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

Tax Considerations." Owners of the Series B debentures should consult their tax advisors as to the U.S. federal, state, local, or other tax consequences of acquiring, owning and disposing of the Series B debentures and our common

stock.

The following table shows the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for us and our consolidated subsidiaries for each of the periods indicated.

		SIX MONTHS				
		ENDED				
	2002 2001 2000 1999 1998				JUNE 30, 2003	
Ratio of earnings to						
fixed charges	9.0(3)	12.1(2)	12.1	11.6	7.5(1)	9.4(3)

In calculating the earnings to fixed charges ratio, earnings are the sum of earnings 5 before income taxes and equity in earnings (losses) of equity investees, plus fixed charges. Fixed charges are the sum of interest on indebtedness, amortization of debt discount and expense and that portion of net rental expense deemed representative of the interest component.

- (1) In 1998, we recognized \$33.1 million in merger and integrated costs related to the merger with USCS International, Inc. and the acquisition of Custima International.
- (2) In 2001, we recognized a \$32.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our Portfolio Accounting Systems, which we refer to as PAS, business to State Street Corporation, which we refer to as State Street.
- (3) In 2002 and 2003, we recorded costs associated with facility consolidations in our Output Solutions segment of \$12.0 million and \$1.5 million, respectively.

RISK FACTORS

YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE RISKS DESCRIBED BELOW BEFORE MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. THE RISKS DESCRIBED BELOW ARE NOT THE ONLY ONES FACING US. ADDITIONAL RISKS NOT PRESENTLY KNOWN TO US OR THAT WE CURRENTLY DEEM IMMATERIAL MAY ALSO IMPAIR OUR BUSINESS OPERATIONS.

OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION OR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS COULD BE MATERIALLY ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY ANY OF THESE RISKS. THE TRADING PRICE OF THE DEBENTURES AND OUR COMMON STOCK COULD DECLINE DUE TO ANY OF THESE RISKS, AND YOU MAY LOSE ALL OR PART OF YOUR INVESTMENT.

THIS PROSPECTUS ALSO CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS THAT INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES. OUR ACTUAL RESULTS COULD DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE ANTICIPATED IN THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AS A RESULT OF CERTAIN FACTORS, INCLUDING THE RISKS FACED BY US DESCRIBED BELOW AND ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS.

RISKS RELATED TO DST

OUR BUSINESS DEPENDS LARGELY ON CERTAIN INDUSTRIES. EVENTS THAT IMPACT THESE INDUSTRIES COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

We derive a substantial proportion of our consolidated revenues from the financial services, video/broadband and telecommunications industries. Consolidations which would decrease the number of potential clients in such businesses, events which would reduce the rate of growth in or negatively impact such businesses, or significant declines in the number of accounts or subscribers serviced by clients in such businesses could have a material adverse

effect on our results of operations. In particular, recent consolidations and business conditions in the telecommunications industry have negatively affected the results of our Output Solutions segment.

Nearly 70% of our operating revenues in fiscal year 2002 were derived from mutual fund/investment management, corporate securities processing and other financial services industries. Approximately 43% of our operating revenues in fiscal year 2002 were derived from the mutual fund industry alone. As a result, our results of operations have been adversely affected by slower general market activity, reduced trading and reduced mutual fund investing. A continued deterioration in consumer confidence and resulting protracted slow down in mutual fund investing and general market activity would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

IF WE ARE NOT SUCCESSFUL IN DEVELOPING TECHNOLOGY FOR USE BY EQUISERVE, INC., IT COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

On March 30, 2001, we acquired a controlling interest in EquiServe Limited Partnership, a corporate stock transfer agent that provides services principally to publicly held corporations. On August 1, 2001, we purchased the remaining interest in the business, and EquiServe, Inc., which we refer to as EquiServe, is now our wholly owned subsidiary. We are in the process of implementing and enhancing a new stock transfer system, which we refer to as Fairway, that will replace the existing systems used to maintain corporate stock transfer records. Success of the acquisition is dependent in part on successful completion of Fairway, successful conversion of all accounts from existing systems to Fairway, and integration of our other technology and infrastructure to support EquiServe operations. The failure to successfully complete Fairway development, successfully convert the existing client base to Fairway, or successfully integrate our technology and infrastructure to support EquiServe could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

FAILURE OF OUR CLIENTS TO RENEW CONTRACTS, CANCELLATION OF CONTRACTS OR REDUCED UTILIZATION BY OUR CLIENTS COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Substantially all of our revenue is derived from the sale of services or products under long-term contracts with our clients. We do not have the unilateral option to extend the terms of such contracts upon their expiration. In addition, certain of our service agreements contain "termination for convenience" clauses that enable clients to cancel the agreements by providing written notice to us a specified number of days prior to the desired termination date. Such clauses are sometimes coupled with a requirement for payment by the client of a fee in the event of termination for convenience. In addition, under certain of our agreements, the fees we receive are dependent on utilization rates for our services. The failure of clients to renew contracts, the cancellation of contracts or a reduction in usage by clients under any contracts could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In particular, our Output Solutions and Customer Management segments have suffered recent customer losses as a result of industry consolidation and competitive pressures.

OUR INDUSTRY IS VERY COMPETITIVE. IF WE ARE UNABLE TO COMPETE EFFECTIVELY, IT COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

We, our subsidiaries and our joint ventures encounter significant competition for our services and products from other third-party providers of similar services and products and from potential clients who chose not to outsource certain services we provide. We also compete for shareowner accounting services with brokerage firms that perform sub-accounting services for their customers who purchase or sell shares of mutual funds for which we provide shareowner recordkeeping services. Such brokerage firms maintain only an

"omnibus" account with us representing the aggregate number of shares of a mutual fund owned by the brokerage firms' customers, thus resulting in fewer mutual fund shareowner accounts being maintained by us. In particular, in light of current market conditions, a significant portion of our recent revenues growth is attributable to the acquisition of new clients. As a result, our ability to continue to increase revenues is dependent upon our ability to maintain and leverage our competitive advantages and continue to attract new clients. In addition, our ability to compete effectively depends, in part, on the availability of capital and other resources, and some of our competitors may have greater resources and greater access to capital than we do. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, competitive factors could influence or alter our overall revenue mix among our various business segments, which would affect our gross profit margins.

WE MAY EXPERIENCE FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR QUARTERLY AND ANNUAL OPERATING RESULTS.

Our quarterly and annual operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year depending on various factors, including but not limited to the unpredictable nature of the markets in which our products and services are sold, general economic conditions, acquisitions, the impact of significant start-up costs associated with initiating the delivery of contracted services to new clients, the hiring of additional staff, new product development and other expenses, introduction of new products by competitors and pricing pressures.

THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT THE EXCHANGE WILL BE CONSUMMATED, AND ANY SUCH FAILURE TO CONSUMMATE SUCH TRANSACTION COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

Although we have entered into the Share Exchange Agreement with Janus regarding the Exchange, consummation of the Exchange is subject to various conditions, including stockholder approval. If a condition to closing such transaction is not satisfied, any announcement of such failure to consummate the Exchange could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

OUR FUTURE SUCCESS DEPENDS IN PART ON ADAPTING OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES TO CHANGES IN TECHNOLOGY AND IN THE MARKETS IN WHICH OUR CLIENTS OPERATE. IF WE DO NOT UPDATE OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES OR DEVELOP NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES THAT ARE TIMELY DELIVERED TO AND WELL RECEIVED BY CLIENTS, THERE COULD BE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Our clients use computer technology-based products and services in the complex and rapidly changing markets in which they operate. The technology available to our clients, such as methods for the electronic dissemination of documents, is expanding. Our future success depends in part on our ability to continue to develop and adapt our technology, on a timely and cost effective basis, to meet clients' needs and demands for the latest technology. There can be no assurance that we will be able to respond adequately and in advance of our competitors to these technological demands or that more advanced technology, including technology for the electronic dissemination of documents, will not reduce or replace the need for certain of our products and services.

Similarly, certain of our clients provide services related to communications devices and/or the communications industry. The communications industry, and wireless communication devices in particular, are rapidly evolving. The future success of our business of providing administrative services to clients in the communications industry depends in part on our ability to continue to develop and adapt our services, on a timely and cost effective basis, to meet clients' needs and demands for administrative services appropriate to the latest communications technology.

We have expended considerable funds to develop products to serve new and

rapidly changing markets. If such markets grow more slowly than anticipated or our products and services fail to achieve market acceptance, this could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

WE HAVE SIGNIFICANT EQUITY INVESTMENTS. ANY SIGNIFICANT DECLINE IN THE VALUE OF OUR EQUITY INVESTMENTS COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

We have a significant investment in available-for-sale equity securities of other companies. The value of such securities depends on the market for such securities and on changes in the markets in which such other companies operate. Any significant decline in the value of our equity investments could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. As of June 30, 2003, the market value of such investments was \$982.0 million.

WE OWN, LEASE AND MANAGE REAL ESTATE, AND RELY ON OUR PROCESSING FACILITIES. ANY EVENT THAT CAUSES LONG-TERM DAMAGE TO THESE FACILITIES COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Our processing services are primarily dependent on facilities housing central computer operations or in which information, image or bill and statement processing occur. Our mutual fund full service, corporate stock transfer and insurance, warranty and debt protection administrative service businesses are dependent on call centers in various locations. In addition, we lease and manage real estate. A natural disaster, terrorist act, or other calamity that causes long-term damage to our facilities, or economic or other events impacting the real estate markets in which we own, lease or manage real estate, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operation.

WE RELY ON INSURERS IN CONNECTION WITH THE INSURANCE, WARRANTY AND DEBT PROTECTION SERVICES WE PROVIDE TO CERTAIN CLIENTS. OUR FAILURE TO MAINTAIN RELATIONSHIPS WITH THESE INSURERS COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Currently, our business of providing administrative services in connection with the insurance, warranty and debt protection services of our clients significantly depends upon our business relationships with one or more insurance companies that provide coverage necessary for the clients' products and services. Termination of these business relationships could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations if we were unable to arrange alternative sources of coverage.

OUR BUSINESS IS DEPENDENT ON SKILLED TECHNICAL PERSONNEL AND OUR SENIOR MANAGEMENT. IF WE ARE UNABLE TO RETAIN OR ATTRACT QUALIFIED TECHNICAL AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL, IT COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Our operations and the continuing implementation of our business strategy depend upon the efforts of our technical personnel and senior management. Recruiting and retaining capable personnel, particularly those with expertise in the types of computer hardware and software utilized by us, are vital to our success. There is substantial competition for qualified technical and management personnel, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to attract or keep the qualified personnel we require. The loss of key personnel or the failure to hire qualified personnel could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY INCLUDES A RELIANCE ON JOINT VENTURES. WE ARE NOT IN A POSITION TO EXERCISE CONTROL OVER THESE JOINT VENTURES WITHOUT THE CONCURRENCE OF OUR JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS.

Our business strategy for growth and expansion includes reliance on joint

ventures. We derive part of our net income from our pro rata share in the earnings of these unconsolidated companies. Although we own significant equity interests in such companies and have representation on their boards of directors or governance structures, we are not in a position to exercise control over their operations, strategies or financial decisions without the concurrence of our equity partners. Our equity interests in Boston Financial Data Services, Inc., which we refer to as BFDS, Argus Health Systems, Inc., and International Financial Data Services Limited Partnership and International Financial Data Services Limited, which we refer to collectively as IFDS, are subject to contractual buy/sell arrangements that may restrict our ability to fully dispose of our interest in these joint ventures and that under certain circumstances permit such joint venture partners to purchase our interest.

WE AND CERTAIN OF OUR SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND CLIENTS ARE SUBJECT TO REGULATION BY VARIOUS REGULATORY AGENCIES. IF ANY OF OUR REGULATORY AUTHORIZATIONS OR THOSE OF OUR SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES ARE SUSPENDED OR REVOKED, IT COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. IN ADDITION, REGULATORY CHANGES THAT ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR CLIENTS, COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

As registered transfer agents, DST, our subsidiary, EquiServe, our indirect subsidiary, EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., which we refer to as EquiServe Trust, our joint venture, BFDS, and BFDS' subsidiary, National Financial Data Services, Inc., which we refer to collectively as our domestic transfer agent businesses, are subject to the Exchange Act and to the rules and regulations of the SEC under the Exchange Act which require them to register with the SEC and which impose on them recordkeeping and reporting requirements. Certain of the operations and records of our domestic transfer agent businesses are subject to examination by the SEC and, as providers of services to financial institutions, to examination by bank and thrift regulatory agencies. In connection with its transfer agency business, EquiServe Trust serves as a limited purpose trust company subject to regulation of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. In addition, companies wholly owned by IFDS, which we refer to as IFDS transfer agent businesses, are subject to regulation of similar regulatory agencies in other countries. Any of the domestic transfer agent businesses or IFDS transfer agent businesses could have its regulatory authorizations suspended or revoked if it were to materially violate applicable regulations, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Similarly, certain of our subsidiaries involved in the business of providing administrative services in connection with insurance and warranty products are licensed insurance agencies or licensed or registered service warranty providers and, as such, are subject to applicable state insurance and service warranty laws and to related rules and regulations. These laws and regulations impose on them recordkeeping, reporting, financial and other requirements and generally regulate the conduct of their business operations. In the event any of the subsidiaries materially violate any of these applicable laws or regulations, their regulatory authorizations could be suspended or revoked, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our existing and potential clients are subject to extensive regulation, and certain of our revenue opportunities may depend on continued deregulation in the world-wide communications industry. Certain of our clients are subject to regulations governing the privacy and use of customer information that is collected and managed by our products and services. Regulatory changes that adversely affect our existing and potential clients could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

OUR FAILURE TO ADEQUATELY PROTECT OUR PROPRIETARY RIGHTS OR ANY SIGNIFICANT THIRD PARTY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT CLAIMS AGAINST US COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

We rely on a combination of copyright, trade secret and patent laws, nondisclosure agreements, and other contractual measures to protect our proprietary technology. There can be no assurance that these measures will be adequate to protect our proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that third parties will not assert infringement claims against us or our clients or that such claims, if brought, would not have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

IF WE FAIL TO PROTECT THE SECURITY OF PROPRIETARY CUSTOMER INFORMATION, IT COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Our business involves the electronic recordkeeping of proprietary information of our customers, and of the clients of such customers. We maintain systems and procedures to protect against unauthorized access to such information and against computer viruses, which we refer to as security systems. However, there is no guarantee that these security systems are adequate to protect against all security breaches. Rapid advances in technology make it impossible to anticipate or be prepared to address all potential security threats. A material breach of our security systems could cause our customers to reconsider use of our services and products, affect our reputation, or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

ONE OF OUR CURRENT STOCKHOLDERS MAY BE ABLE TO INFLUENCE MATTERS AFFECTING US, INCLUDING MATTERS SUBMITTED TO A VOTE OF OUR STOCKHOLDERS.

Janus owns approximately 34.3% of our outstanding common stock. In addition Janus and certain Janus affiliates are generally exempted from the restrictions in our stockholders' rights plan until such time as the ownership of Janus or certain Janus affiliates drops below certain levels. As a result, Janus may be able to influence matters affecting us, including matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, such as the election of directors and the approval of corporate transactions. If the Exchange is consummated, such rights and exemptions will no longer apply. Pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement, Janus has agreed to vote all shares of DST common stock beneficially owned by Janus at the time of the special meeting of DST stockholders, being held to vote on a proposal to approve the Share Exchange Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, in favor of the proposal.

CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF OUR CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND OUR STOCKHOLDERS' RIGHTS PLAN COULD DELAY, DETER OR PREVENT A CHANGE OF CONTROL OF DST, EVEN IF IT WOULD BE BENEFICIAL TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS. IN ADDITION, CERTAIN CLIENT AGREEMENTS AND JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENTS HAVE PROVISIONS TRIGGERING CERTAIN RIGHTS OF THE OTHER PARTY IN THE EVENT OF A CHANGE IN CONTROL OF DST.

Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if the change of control would be beneficial to certain stockholders. We have also adopted a stockholders' rights plan which could delay, deter or prevent a change in control of DST. A few of our client agreements allow the client to terminate its agreement or to obtain rights to use our software used in processing the client's data in the event of an acquisition or change of control of DST. In the event of a change in control of DST (as defined in the applicable plan or agreement), vesting of awards (including stock options) under our stock option and performance award plan will be automatically accelerated, certain limited rights related to such options will become exercisable, and employment continuation provisions will apply under the employment agreements of certain executive officers. Certain of our joint venture agreements allow other parties to the joint venture to buy our joint venture interests in the event of a change of control of DST.

WE HAVE A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF INDEBTEDNESS AND OUR INDEBTEDNESS IS EXPECTED TO FURTHER INCREASE IF THE EXCHANGE IS CONSUMMATED. THIS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT OUR ABILITY TO MAKE PAYMENTS ON THE DEBENTURES.

Since completion of the private offering of the debentures, we have a substantial amount of indebtedness. In addition, our indebtedness is expected to further increase if the Exchange is consummated. Our level of indebtedness could have important consequences to the holders of the debentures. For example, it:

- o may limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures or general corporate purposes;
- o will require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness, reducing the funds available to us for other purposes including expansion through acquisitions, capital expenditures and expansion of our product offerings; and
- o may limit our flexibility to adjust to changing business and market conditions and make us more vulnerable to a downturn in general economic conditions as compared to our competitors.

Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refinance our obligations with respect to our indebtedness will depend on our financial and operating performance which, in turn, is subject to prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors beyond our control.

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN VOLATILE HISTORICALLY AND MAY CONTINUE TO BE VOLATILE. THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK, AND THEREFORE THE PRICE OF THE DEBENTURES, MAY FLUCTUATE SIGNIFICANTLY, WHICH MAY MAKE IT DIFFICULT FOR HOLDERS TO RESELL THE DEBENTURES OR THE SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE DEBENTURES WHEN DESIRED OR AT ATTRACTIVE PRICES.

The market price for our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile. We expect our stock price to be subject to fluctuations as a result of a variety of factors, including factors beyond our control. These factors include:

- o quarterly fluctuations in our operating and financial results;
- o changes in financial estimates and recommendations by financial analysts;
- o fluctuations in the stock price and operating results of our competitors;
- o consolidations, dispositions, acquisitions and financings; and
- o general conditions in the industries in which we operate.

In addition, the stock markets in general, including the NYSE, recently have experienced significant price and trading fluctuations. These fluctuations have resulted in volatility in the market prices of securities that often has been unrelated or disproportionate to changes in operating performance. These broad market fluctuations may affect adversely the market prices of our common stock. In addition, sales of substantial amounts of common stock by us in the market, or the perception that such sales may occur, could also affect the price of our common stock. Because the debentures are convertible into shares of our common stock, volatility or depressed prices for our common stock could have a similar effect on the trading price of the debentures. This may result in greater volatility in the trading prices of the debentures than would be

expected for nonconvertible debt securities.

The price of our common stock could also be affected by possible sales of our common stock by investors who view the debentures as a more attractive means of equity participation in DST and by hedging or arbitrage trading activity that we expect to develop involving our common stock. The hedging or arbitrage could, in turn, affect the trading prices of the debentures.

THE CONDITIONAL CONVERSION FEATURE OF THE DEBENTURES COULD RESULT IN YOU RECEIVING LESS THAN THE VALUE OF THE COMMON STOCK INTO WHICH A DEBENTURE WOULD OTHERWISE BE CONVERTIBLE.

The debentures are convertible into shares of our common stock only if specified conditions are met. If the specific conditions for conversion are not met, you will not be able to convert your debentures, and you may not be able to receive the value of the common stock into which the debentures would otherwise be convertible.

CONVERSION OF THE DEBENTURES WILL DILUTE THE OWNERSHIP INTEREST OF EXISTING STOCKHOLDERS, INCLUDING HOLDERS WHO HAVE PREVIOUSLY CONVERTED THEIR DEBENTURES.

The conversion of some or all of the debentures will dilute the ownership interests of existing stockholders. Any sales in the public market of the common stock issuable upon such conversion could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our common stock. In addition, the existence of the debentures may encourage short selling by market participants because the conversion of the debentures could depress the price of our common stock.

AN ACTIVE TRADING MARKET MAY NOT DEVELOP FOR THE DEBENTURES.

The debentures are a new issue of securities with no established trading market and will not be listed on any securities exchange. Certain of the initial purchasers have informed us that they intend to make a market in the debentures. However, they are not obligated to do so and may cease their market-making activities at any time. In addition, such market-making activity will be subject to limits imposed by the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. We cannot assure you that an active trading market for the debentures will develop or as to the liquidity or sustainability of any such market, or the ability of holders to sell their debentures or the price at which holders of the debentures may be able to sell their debentures. If an active market for the debentures fails to develop or be sustained, the trading prices of the debentures could be adversely affected. Future trading prices of the debentures will also depend on many other factors, including, among other things, prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, the price of our common stock, our performance and other factors.

WE MAY NOT HAVE THE ABILITY TO RAISE THE FUNDS NECESSARY TO PURCHASE THE DEBENTURES UPON A FUNDAMENTAL CHANGE OR OTHER PURCHASE DATE, AS REQUIRED BY THE INDENTURE GOVERNING THE DEBENTURES.

Holders of the Series A debentures may require us to purchase their debentures on August 15, 2010, August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020, although we may pay the purchase price in shares of our common stock after August 15, 2010. Holders of the Series B debentures may require us to purchase their debentures on August 15, 2008, August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018, although we may pay the purchase price in shares of our common stock after August 15, 2008. In addition, holders of the debentures may also require us to purchase their debentures upon a Fundamental Change as described under "Description of the Series A Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the

Option of the Holder" and "Description of the Series B Debentures -- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder." A Fundamental Change also may constitute an event of default under, and result in the acceleration of the maturity of, our other indebtedness or other indebtedness that we may incur in the future. In addition, our revolving credit facility restricts the repurchase of the debentures for cash or stock if an event of default has occurred or would occur under our revolving credit facility as a result of such repurchase. In addition, we cannot assure you that we would have sufficient financial resources, or would be able to arrange financing, to pay the purchase price for the debentures tendered by holders. Failure by us to purchase the debentures when required will result in an event of default with respect to the debentures.

YOU SHOULD EVALUATE THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF OWNING THE DEBENTURES.

Each holder agrees in the indenture to treat the debentures as contingent payment debt instruments for U.S. federal income tax purposes, subject to the Treasury regulations governing contingent payment debt instruments, which we refer to as the CPDI regulations, and to be bound by our application of these regulations to the debentures, including our determinations of the comparable yield and projected payment schedule (as described under "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations"). Under the CPDI regulations, you will be required to accrue interest on a constant yield to maturity basis at a rate comparable to the rate at which we would borrow in a non-contingent, non-convertible fixed rate borrowing (subject to certain adjustments). As a result, you will generally recognize taxable income in excess of cash received while your debentures are outstanding. In addition, you will recognize ordinary income upon a sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of your debentures at a gain. In computing such gain, the amount realized by you will include the amount of any cash and the fair market value of any shares of our common stock or other property received. The proper application of the CPDI regulations to a holder of debentures is uncertain in a number of respects, and no assurance can be given that the Internal Revenue Service, which we refer to as the IRS, will not assert that the debentures should be treated differently or that the IRS will not prevail. A different treatment could affect the amount, timing and character of income, gain or loss in respect of an investment in the debentures. In particular, it might be determined that a holder should have accrued interest income at a higher or lower rate, should not have recognized income or gain upon conversion, or should have recognized capital gain upon a taxable disposition of the debentures. To understand how this may affect you, you should seek advice from your own tax advisor prior to purchasing the debentures. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

THE DEBENTURES ARE EFFECTIVELY SUBORDINATED TO EXISTING AND FUTURE INDEBTEDNESS AND OTHER LIABILITIES OF OUR SUBSIDIARIES.

We derive some of our revenues from, and hold some of our assets through, our subsidiaries. As a result, we will depend in part on distributions and advances from our subsidiaries in order to meet our payment obligations under the debentures and our other obligations. In general, these subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and will have no obligation to pay any amounts due on our debt securities, including the debentures, or to provide us with funds for our payment obligations, whether by dividends, distributions, loans or otherwise. Our right to receive any assets of any subsidiary in the event of a bankruptcy or liquidation of the subsidiary, and therefore the right of our creditors to participate in those assets, will be effectively subordinated to the claims of that subsidiary's creditors, including trade creditors. In addition, even if we were a creditor of any subsidiary, our rights as a creditor would be subordinated to any indebtedness of that subsidiary senior to that held by us, including secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing such indebtedness.

IF YOU HOLD DEBENTURES, YOU WILL NOT BE ENTITLED TO ANY RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO OUR COMMON STOCK, BUT YOU WILL BE SUBJECT TO ALL CHANGES MADE WITH RESPECT TO OUR COMMON STOCK.

If you hold debentures, you will not be entitled to any rights with respect to our common stock (including, without limitation, voting rights and rights to receive any dividends or other distributions on our common stock), but you will be subject to all changes affecting the common stock. You will only be entitled to rights on our common stock if and when we deliver shares of common stock to you upon conversion or purchase of your debentures. For example, in the event that an amendment is proposed to our certificate of incorporation or bylaws requiring stockholder approval and the record date for determining the stockholders of record entitled to vote on the amendment occurs prior to your conversion, or our repurchase with stock, of debentures, you will not be entitled to vote on the amendment, although you will nevertheless be subject to any changes in the powers, preferences or special rights of our common stock.

WE MAY ISSUE ADDITIONAL SHARES OF COMMON STOCK AND THEREBY MATERIALLY AND ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

We are not restricted from issuing additional common stock during the life of the debentures and have no obligation to consider your interests for any reason. If we issue additional shares of common stock, it may materially and adversely affect the price of our common stock and, in turn, the price of the debentures.

THE CONVERSION RATE OF THE DEBENTURES MAY NOT BE ADJUSTED FOR ALL DILUTIVE EVENTS.

The conversion rate of the debentures is subject to adjustment for certain events including, but not limited to, the issuance of stock dividends on our common stock, the issuance of certain rights or warrants, subdivisions or combinations of our common stock, certain distributions of assets, debt securities, capital stock or cash to holders of our common stock and certain issuer tender or exchange offers as described under "Description of Series A Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Conversion Rate Adjustments" and "Description of Series B Debentures -- Conversion Rights -- Conversion Rate Adjustments." The conversion rate will not be adjusted for other events, such as a third party tender or exchange offer or an issuance of common stock for cash, that may adversely affect the trading price of the debentures or the common stock. There can be no assurance that an event that adversely affects the value of the debentures, but does not result in an adjustment to the conversion rate, will not occur.

THE DEBENTURES DO NOT RESTRICT OUR ABILITY TO INCUR ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS OR TO TAKE OTHER ACTIONS THAT COULD NEGATIVELY IMPACT HOLDERS OF THE DEBENTURES.

We are not restricted under the terms of the indenture and the debentures from incurring additional indebtedness, including secured debt. In addition, the limited covenants applicable to the debentures do not require us to achieve or maintain any minimum financial results relating to our financial position or results of operations. Our ability to recapitalize, incur additional indebtedness and take a number of other actions that are not limited by the terms of the indenture and the debentures could have the effect of diminishing our ability to make payments on the debentures when due. In addition, we are not restricted from repurchasing subordinated indebtedness or common stock by the terms of the indenture and the debentures. If we issue other debt securities in the future, our debt service obligations will increase.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale by the selling security holders of the debentures or the common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures. Please read "Selling Security Holders" for a list of the persons receiving proceeds from the sale of the debentures or the underlying common stock.

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXCHANGE

The following summary of the terms and provisions of the Share Exchange Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Share Exchange Agreement, a copy of which has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus. You should read this Share Exchange Agreement carefully for more details regarding the provisions described below and for other provisions that may be important to you. Capitalized terms used, and not otherwise defined, in this summary will have the meanings given to them in the Share Exchange Agreement.

THE EXCHANGE AND THE CLOSING

On August 25, 2003, DST, OMS, and Janus entered into the Share Exchange Agreement. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement, DST will transfer to Janus the OMS Shares and Janus will transfer to DST the Janus DST Shares in exchange for the OMS Shares. The Closing will take place on the third business day following the date on which the last of the unsatisfied or unwaived conditions specified in the Share Exchange Agreement have been satisfied or waived (other than those conditions contemplated to be satisfied at, or only capable of being satisfied at, the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions), or at such other time and place as agreed in writing by Janus and DST (the date of the Closing is herein referred to as the "Closing Date").

THE REORGANIZATION

DST has agreed that, prior to the Closing, DST will, and will cause its respective Subsidiaries to, transfer to OMS: (i) the "Non-OMS Business Assets"; (ii) the "Additional Assets"; and (iii) the "Non-OMS Business Liabilities" (the "Reorganization"). In exchange for these transfers, OMS has agreed to accept, assume and pay, perform or otherwise discharge the Non-OMS Business Liabilities in accordance with their respective terms and conditions.

For purposes of the Share Exchange Agreement:

- (i) "Non-OMS Business Assets" means all of the "Business Assets" other than those Business Assets owned by OMS both prior to the Reorganization and as of the Closing.
- (ii) "Business Assets" means all of the assets, properties, rights, agreements and other interests identified by DST pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement;
- (iii) "Non-OMS Business Liabilities" means all of the Business Liabilities other than those Business Liabilities already owed or assumed by OMS both prior to the Reorganization and as of the Closing;
- (iv) "Business Liabilities" means all liabilities (other than the "Excluded

Liabilities") to the extent related to the Business (as defined below) or the Business Assets;

- (v) "Excluded Liabilities" means any liabilities of DST or any of its Affiliates (including OMS) which are specifically excluded pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement or which do not relate more closely to the Business than to the businesses of DST other than the Business, except to the extent of any such liabilities that are reflected in the Closing Date Balance Sheet and are comparable in nature and amount to those reflected in the Business financial statement for December 31, 2002;
- (vi) "Additional Assets" means an amount in cash equal to (i) the product
 of thirty two million three hundred thousand (32,300,000) and the DST
 Share Value less (ii) one hundred fifteen million dollars
 (\$115,000,000); and
- (vii) "DST Share Value" means the average of the per share closing prices of DST Common Stock on the NYSE for the 20 consecutive trading days ending on the day prior to the Closing Date, subject to a minimum average price of \$30.00 per share and a maximum average price of \$34.50 per share as the DST Share Value if the average price is less than \$30.00 or more than \$34.50 per share, respectively.

REASONS FOR REORGANIZATION. There are certain assets, liabilities and employees that prior to the reorganization are located in certain other wholly-owned subsidiaries. The purpose of the Reorganization is to place within a single entity all of the assets, liabilities and employees of the OMS business. Additionally, these actions streamline the DST corporate structure to enable it to operate more efficiently.

TRANSACTIONS IN REORGANIZATION. The Reorganization will involve transactions that will place the graphics design and sheet-fed offset commercial printing operations and the laser printing and fulfillment operations of the Marketing Services Division of DST, together with the Additional Assets, within a single entity, OMS.

DST will receive tax opinions (the "Tax Opinions") from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PWC") and Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP ("Sonnenschein") to the effect that, although the matter is not free from doubt, the contributions of assets and businesses to OMS and the Exchange should be tax free to DST. The Tax Opinions are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS"), and it is possible that the IRS could take a position which is contrary to the Tax Opinions. If the IRS were to take such a contrary position and prevail, then DST could recognize gain on the contributions of assets and businesses to OMS and the Exchange as if DST had sold the OMS Shares for fair market value. If the IRS were to take such a contrary position and prevail, then DST could recognize gain on the contributions of assets and businesses to OMS and the Exchange as if DST had sold the OMS Shares for fair market value. Under these circumstances, DST would recognize a gain of approximately \$104 million and incur federal and state income tax liabilities of approximately \$41.6 million. Neither DST nor Janus has any obligation to indemnify the other for tax liabilities arising from the Exchange.

THE BUSINESS

The "Business" is the business of providing the products and services described below.

The Business products and services include:

o RAPID FULFILLMENT. Rapid Fulfillment is digital printing or electronic

delivery of materials that are (i) printed in connection with the acquisition of a new customer by a client of the Business or in response to an inquiry from an existing customer of a client of the Business, and (ii) usually individually personalized with client-supplied name, address and demographic information utilizing a proprietary compilation software application and distributed production sites owned by OMS in New York and Chicago and sites owned by DST and its Affiliates. Rapid Fulfillment services may also include Integrated Fulfillment Services;

- o INTEGRATED FULFILLMENT. Integrated Fulfillment is the combination of pick and pack services with Rapid Fulfillment, eLLITE Suite and On-demand services. Pick and pack is the pulling of externally supplied and internally pre-printed materials from inventory and insertion into a mailing with On-demand materials;
- o RAPID PUBLISHER. Rapid Publisher is a Web-enabled database publishing solution used by clients that offer 403(b) and 401(k) plan administration to their customers. The service utilizes a licensed software application that allows the client to customize participant communication materials based upon the specific plan, and personalize the materials to the specific plan participant;
- RAPID COMPLIANCE. This service consists of the production of prospectuses, supplements, annual reports and semi-annual reports supplied by customers or third parties for printing and mailing and electronic delivery to meet the regulatory requirements of the 401(k), 403(b), non-variable annuity and mutual fund markets;
- o RAPID CONFIRM. Rapid Confirm utilizes the Mail Net software application for distribution of brokerage trade confirmations, margin notices and address changes to distributed print production sites, including those of DST Affiliates, for printing and mailing at those sites for brokerage firm customers;
- o RAPID PROXY. This product utilizes offset and On-demand capabilities to combine documents such as proxy statements, annual reports, proxy voting cards, business reply envelopes and other materials selected by the client, and bound into a single book that can be personalized to the recipient;
- o ELLITE SUITE. A service that utilizes the eLLITE software application to support order management, inventory management, fulfillment management and document management of documents such as mutual fund fact sheets, prospectuses and other pre-sale and post-sale materials, none of which are personalized documents such as statements;
- o RAPID PORTFOLIO SERVICES. This service consists of the printing of portfolio reports for high net worth individuals in digital four color format and bound using one of the following: perfect bind, spiral or tape (but for purposes of clarity, portfolio reports bound by other methods, e.g. stapling, are excluded from the definition of this service); and
- o COMMERCIAL PRINTING SERVICES. These services consist of graphics design; plate production; offset printing of Static, Nonrecurring documents utilizing sheet press printing machines; bindery services; envelope printing utilizing jet press machinery; and procurement of the foregoing services from third party commercial printers and resale of such services to clients.

For purposes of the foregoing description of Business products and

services:

- (i) "On-demand," means the printing of Static, documents that were historically offset printed. Documents can be printed On-demand from files stored in electronic databases because the contents of such documents are not altered by the printer except for the recipient's name, address and limited demographic information that is sometimes used to personalize the document. On-demand documents are prepared in print ready formats and do not require the use of software that formats the document except to the extent necessary to facilitate the insertion of certain variable demographic data unique to a transaction, external event or other action of the recipient. By way of example, account applications and prospectuses are printed On-demand, whereas, mutual fund account statements are not;
- (ii) "Static," means that the information in the document does not change or fluctuate based upon the occurrence of any transaction, recent event, or action taken by the ultimate recipient of the document, except that the name, address and other personal demographic information of the recipient may be different in each document. By way of illustration, an account application or a prospectus is a Static document, while a mutual fund account statement is not Static because the information varies from document to document based upon various factors such as financial performance and actions of the recipient during the period reflected in the statement; and
- (iii) "Nonrecurring," means that the event giving rise to the printing of the document is of a type that does not usually occur on a repetitive basis when the use of the document by the specific end user is considered. By way of illustration, a Nonrecurring event is the submission by a client to its customer or potential customer of a set of brochures, account applications or other pre-sale marketing materials or fact sheets, or the fulfillment of orders for technical materials that are requested by purchasers or potential purchasers of a client's goods or services, such as engineering schematics or instructions. In such cases, the end user does not typically need or receive such a document more than once. In contrast, "Nonrecurring" does not include documents of a type that are printed for events or reports such as periodic account statements and confirmations of transactions in mutual fund, brokerage, or other financial accounts, monthly billing for television or utility services, the utilization of insurance benefits or tax reports.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Share Exchange Agreement contains representations and warranties of DST and Janus that are customary for transactions of this type. DST made representations and warranties with respect to, among other matters, the following:

- o corporate organization and good standing;
- o capitalization of OMS;
- o corporate power and authority;
- o absence of conflicts that would affect the Exchange;
- o consents required in connection with the Exchange;
- o stockholder vote to approve the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement;
- o the absence of material adverse effects to the Business or OMS;
- o compliance with laws;
- o intellectual property;
- o title to real estate and other assets, and condition and sufficiency of such assets;
- o pending litigation;
- o employee benefit plans;

- o contracts to which OMS is, or will be, a party;
- o labor and employment matters;
- o financial statements; and
- relationships with customers.

Janus made $\mbox{representations}$ and $\mbox{warranties}$ with $\mbox{respect}$ to, among other matters, the following:

- o corporate organization and good standing;
- o corporate power and authority;
- o absence of conflicts that would affect the Exchange;
- o title to Janus DST Shares;
- o board and stockholder approvals to approve the Share Exchange Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby;
- o pending litigation;
- o the absence of material adverse effects on the ability of Janus to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement; and
- o consents required in connection with the Exchange.

CONDITIONS TO CLOSING OBLIGATIONS

The obligations of each of DST, OMS and Janus to complete the Closing are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions, including, among others:

- O DST must have obtained approval of the Share Exchange Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of DST Common Stock;
- No action shall have been taken by any governmental authority of competent jurisdiction to prohibit, enjoin or restrain the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement;
- DST must have received the Tax Opinions of each of Sonnenschein and PWC, and Janus must have received a tax opinion of each of Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz and Ernst & Young LLP, in each case in form and substance substantially as set forth in exhibits to the Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date;
- The consents and approvals of governmental authorities required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the "HSR Act") must have been obtained (or any applicable waiting period will have expired or been terminated);
- Certain ancillary agreements to be entered into by and among DST and/or its Affiliates (other than OMS), on the one hand, and OMS and/or Janus, on the other hand, on or prior to the Closing, pursuant to which, among other things, certain services and goods will be provided to the parties to the Share Exchange Agreement (the "Ancillary Agreements") must be executed and entered into by each of the parties to such agreements and delivered at the Closing;
- o Truth and accuracy of the other's representations and warranties, except for inaccuracies that would not have a material adverse effect on the party making the representations; and
- o Performance in all material respects by the other parties of their obligations under the agreement.

In addition, the obligations of Janus to complete the Closing are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions, including among others:

- o DST must have obtained certain Required Consents;
- o Since the date of the Share Exchange Agreement, there must not have been any Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Business or OMS;
- o Janus must have obtained the waiver or consent required under Janus' revolving credit facility to consummate the Exchange (the "Janus Consent"); provided that Janus must have used its reasonable commercial efforts to obtain the such consent; and
- o Prior to or at the Closing, the Reorganization must have been completed.

In addition, the obligations of DST and OMS to complete the Closing are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions, including among others;

- ODST must have entered into customary agreements providing for the receipt by DST of the financing necessary to permit the funding of at least \$150 million of the Additional Assets. However, DST may not assert this condition in the event that it has breached its obligations with respect to obtaining the financing. See "--Certain Covenants and Agreements--Financing"; and
- DST must have received the waiver or consent required under certain credit facilities; provided that DST shall have used its reasonable commercial efforts to obtain the waivers or consents.

POST CLOSING ADJUSTMENTS

Within 30 days after the Closing Date, DST will deliver to Janus an unaudited balance sheet of OMS dated as of the Closing Date (the "Closing Date Balance Sheet"). In the event that the Adjusted Shareholder's Equity (defined as total shareholder's equity of OMS as of the Closing Date less the Additional Assets) reflected on the Closing Date Balance Sheet is less than \$12 million, DST will pay to OMS on a dollar-for-dollar basis, the amount necessary to achieve Adjusted Shareholder's Equity of \$13 million as of the Closing Date. In the event the Adjusted Shareholder's Equity is greater than \$14 million, Janus will cause OMS to pay to DST, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, the amount necessary to reduce Adjusted Shareholder's Equity to \$13 million as of the Closing Date. Any required payments must be made within 30 days after receipt by Janus of the Closing Date Balance Sheet, unless a Dispute Notice (defined below) is delivered.

If Janus disputes the amount of Adjusted Shareholder's Equity reflected in the Closing Date Balance Sheet, Janus will give written notice to DST within 30 days after Janus' receipt of the Closing Date Balance Sheet specifying in reasonable detail Janus' basis for its dispute (a "Dispute Notice"). If Janus submits a Dispute Notice within such 30-day period, DST and Janus will work together in good faith to seek to resolve the dispute. However, if Janus and DST are unable to resolve their disagreement within 15 calendar days after DST's receipt of a Dispute Notice from Janus, the dispute will be referred for determination to a nationally known firm of independent public accountants mutually selected by DST and Janus (the "Dispute Accountants") as promptly as practicable. If DST and Janus are unable to agree on the Dispute Accountants, then the parties agree to retain KPMG LLP. The Dispute Accountants will make a written determination as to the correct amount of Adjusted Shareholder's Equity, which will be conclusive and binding, and will prepare a final Closing Date Balance Sheet. DST and Janus will use reasonable commercial efforts to cause the

Dispute Accountants to render their decision within 30 days of submitting the dispute. Any payments required upon the determination by the Dispute Accountants will be made within 10 days following the determination.

Janus will pay the fees and expenses charged by the Dispute Accountants unless any payment required to be made by DST is greater than \$500,000, in which case DST will pay such fees and expenses.

CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

JANUS VOTE

Janus has agreed to vote all shares of DST Common Stock beneficially owned by Janus in favor of approval of the Share Exchange Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement at the Special Meeting.

EFFORTS TO CONSUMMATE TRANSACTIONS

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Exchange Agreement from time to time whether before, at or for a period of two years following the Closing, each of Janus and DST will, and will cause their respective Affiliates to, make reasonable commercial efforts to do all things reasonably necessary, proper or advisable to consummate and make effective as promptly as practicable the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement, including completion of transfers of assets contemplated to make the Exchange complete.

OPTIONS TO PURCHASE DST STOCK HELD BY BUSINESS AND FORMER BUSINESS EMPLOYEES ACCOUNTS

DST or its relevant Affiliate will take all steps necessary or appropriate to cause all unexercised options to purchase shares of DST's or its Affiliates' stock held by Business Employees or Former Business Employees that are outstanding as of the Closing Date (the "DST Options") not to terminate due to or on account of the Closing and will cause the DST Options to become fully vested in such Business Employees or Former Business Employees effective as of the Closing. DST will cause the DST Options to remain outstanding and exercisable pursuant to their terms until their normal expiration date, unless such treatment is otherwise not permitted by applicable law.

NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES

For three years after the Closing, DST and Janus will not and will cause each of their respective Subsidiaries not to, directly or indirectly, solicit the employment of any employee of the other or of its Subsidiaries, without the other's prior written consent. This non-solicitation covenant does not apply to (i) a general advertisement or solicitation program that is not specifically targeted at such persons or (ii) the solicitation of any employee after their employment has been terminated.

NO SOLICITATION

From the date of the Share Exchange Agreement until the Closing or the earlier termination of the Share Exchange Agreement:

- o other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, DST will not, and will not authorize or permit any of the DST Entities or OMS to, solicit the submission of any offers or proposals for the Business, OMS, the Business Assets or the Business Liabilities from any third party or otherwise pursue any offer or proposal received; and
- o Janus will not, and will not authorize or permit any of its

Subsidiaries to, solicit the submission of offers or proposals for the sale of the Janus DST Shares from any third party or otherwise pursue any offer or proposal received.

USE OF NAMES

Within 30 days after the Closing:

- o Janus will cause OMS to change its corporate name to a name that does not include the name of DST or any of its Subsidiaries; and
- o Janus will have no right to use the name of DST or of any of its Subsidiaries, except that, for a period ending 45 days after the Closing, Janus will have the right to use any catalogues, sales and promotional materials and printed forms that use such name and are included in the Intellectual Property as of the Closing, or that were ordered prior to the Closing for use in the Business.

Promptly after the Closing Date, Janus will make all filings with the appropriate governmental authorities to effectuate such name changes. Janus will use its reasonable commercial efforts to minimize the usage of such names, and to discontinue it as soon as practicable after the Closing. To the extent any approvals of governmental authorities are necessary to effectuate the name change, the time limits specified above will be extended by the time period necessary to obtain such approvals, so long as Janus begins the process of seeking such approval within 30 days after the Closing.

DST SHARE VALUE DETERMINATION PERIOD

During the 20-day period used to calculate the DST Share Value:

- DST will not, and will cause its Subsidiaries not to, sell or offer to sell any shares of DST Common Stock (or any securities convertible into, or whose value is determined by reference to, DST Common Stock), or solicit or induce other persons to sell or offer to sell any such securities, except that this provision will not apply to transactions with participants in DST's employee stock option or stock purchase plans in a manner consistent with past practice; and
- Janus will not, and will cause its Subsidiaries (other than Subsidiaries involved in the investment advisory business, to the extent of its activities in connection with the investment advisory business (in such capacity, the "IAB Subsidiaries")) not to, purchase or offer to purchase any shares of DST Common Stock (or any securities convertible into, or whose value is determined by reference to, DST Common Stock), or solicit or induce other persons (other than in connection with the investment advisory business of the IAB Subsidiaries) to purchase or offer to purchase any such securities.

WAIVER

In consideration of the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement, as of the Closing, DST, on behalf of itself and each of its Subsidiaries and Affiliates (other than OMS) and their respective heirs, executors, successors and assigns (the "Waiving Parties"), waives from and after the Closing all Claims that the Waiving Parties had, have or may have against OMS and its officers, directors, employees or agents in connection with or arising out of any act or omission of OMS or its officers, directors, employees, advisers or agents, in such capacity, at or prior to the Closing. This waiver is not deemed a waiver by the Waiving Parties of any rights under the Share Exchange Agreement or any of the other agreements contemplated in connection with the Share Exchange Agreement.

DST SHARES RETAINED BY JANUS

From and after the Closing Date until the tenth anniversary of the Closing:

- Janus will not, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than the IAB Subsidiaries) not to, directly own or acquire or agree to acquire (other than in the course of the investment advisory business of the IAB Subsidiaries) any shares of DST Common Stock, which will have the effect of increasing the number of shares of DST Common Stock that Janus and its Subsidiaries (other than the IAB Subsidiaries) will own, in the aggregate, following the Closing above 7,424,052 shares (the "Share Limit"), subject to certain adjustments and exceptions in the event of certain business combinations; and
- Janus will not, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than the IAB Subsidiaries) not to, sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of DST Common Stock, to certain specified persons (other than in the course of the investment advisory business of the IAB Subsidiaries), except for sales made on the New York Stock Exchange, or on any other national securities exchange on which the DST Common Stock is listed, or if not so listed, on the Nasdaq National Market or the Nasdaq Smallcap Market if DST Common Stock is admitted for trading, or if not so listed, on any other exchange or inter-dealer quotation system in which the purchasers and sellers are anonymous with respect to one another.

FINANCING

DST will use its reasonable best efforts to secure as promptly as practicable, the financing necessary to permit the funding of at least \$150 million of the Additional Assets at an initial interest rate of 4% per annum or less and a maturity of not less than 364 days and otherwise on reasonable and customary terms and conditions for a financing of comparable size and form (the "Financing").

TERMINATION

The Share Exchange Agreement may be terminated prior to consummation of the Closing as follows:

- o By mutual written consent of DST and Janus;
- By either DST or Janus upon written notice to the other if the Closing has not been consummated on or before January 30, 2004; except where the willful act or willful failure to act of the party wishing to terminate the Share Exchange Agreement or its Affiliate has been the cause of or resulted in the failure of the Closing to be consummated on or before January 30, 2004;
- By either DST or Janus upon written notice to the other if DST does not obtain the required stockholder approval, except, in the case of DST, if it has breached its obligations under the Share Exchange Agreement with respect to preparing and filing a proxy statement, convening a meeting of DST stockholders and the DST Board recommending approval of the Share Exchange Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement, and such breach has been the cause of or resulted in the failure to obtain stockholder approval;
- By Janus upon written notice to DST, if any of the conditions to the obligations of Janus to consummate the Closing shall have become

incapable of $\mbox{fulfillment}$ by January 30, 2004 and have not been waived in writing by Janus;

- o By DST upon written notice to Janus, if any of the conditions to the obligations of DST and OMS to consummate the Closing shall have become incapable of fulfillment by January 30, 2004 and have not been waived in writing by DST;
- o By either DST or Janus upon written notice to the other that the conditions regarding the receipt of the Tax Opinions required by the Share Exchange Agreement have become incapable of fulfillment by January 30, 2004 due to changes in the law, regulations or interpretations of the Internal Revenue Service;
- O By Janus, if DST has not obtained the Credit Facilities Consent or the Financing within 90 days from the date of the Share Exchange Agreement;
- o By DST, if Janus has not obtained the Janus Consent within 90 days from the date of the Share Exchange Agreement; or
- By either Janus or DST upon written notice to the other, if there is in effect a final, non-appealable order of a court or government administrative agency of competent jurisdiction permanently prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement.

In the event of a final judicial determination that termination of the Share Exchange Agreement was caused by an intentional and deliberate breach of the Share Exchange Agreement, then, in addition to other remedies at law or equity for breach of the Share Exchange Agreement, the party found to have intentionally and deliberately breached the Share Exchange Agreement will indemnify and hold harmless the other parties to the Share Exchange Agreement for their respective out-of-pocket costs, including the reasonable fees and expenses of their counsel, accountants, financial advisors and other experts and advisors, as well as reasonable fees and expenses incident to the negotiation, preparation and execution of the Share Exchange Agreement and related documentation.

REQUIRED REGULATORY CONSENTS, APPROVALS AND FILINGS

Certain regulatory consents, approvals and filings are required in connection with the Closing. These include, among others:

- O HSR Act filing by Janus with respect to the proposed transfer of OMS from DST to Janus and expiration of the applicable waiting period;
- o Filings with the Secretary of State of each applicable state, the appropriate merger or other organizational documents to accomplish the Reorganization;

For a discussion of the filings made and the status of such filings, see "--Regulatory Matters" below.

TAX CONSEQUENCES

The parties have acknowledged and agreed that no party has made, or is making in the Share Exchange Agreement, any representation or warranty regarding the tax effects or tax consequences, if any, of the transactions contemplated in the Share Exchange Agreement or in the Ancillary Agreements and that each party has consulted with and is relying upon its own tax advisors with respect to such effects and consequences. Neither DST nor Janus has any obligation to indemnify

the other for tax liabilities arising from the Exchange.

INDEMNIFICATION

INDEMNIFICATION BY DST

Subject to certain limitations set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement, subsequent to the Closing, DST will indemnify Janus and its respective Subsidiaries and Affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives, and each of their heirs, executors, successors and assigns (collectively, the "Representatives") against Damages arising out of, resulting from or incurred in connection with or relating to:

- o any breach of a representation or warranty made by DST or OMS in the Share Exchange Agreement or any other document delivered in connection with the Share Exchange Agreement;
- o any breach of any agreement or covenant of DST or OMS contained in the Share Exchange Agreement;
- the Excluded Liabilities, the Excluded Assets, the Retained Business and any legal, administrative or arbitration proceeding, suit or action of any nature with respect thereto;
- o any Restrictions;
- o a certain claim by a former employee of a DST Affiliate; and
- o the failure of DST to obtain certain consents to the continuation of contract rights in light of the transfer of ownership of OMS from DST to Janus.

However, DST will not be liable for indemnification with respect to certain Damages or for certain other pre-closing tax liabilities of OMS agreed upon by the parties unless and until the aggregate amount of these Damages and other pre-closing tax liabilities of OMS exceeds \$5 million (the "DST Basket"). Janus will be entitled to indemnification for all Damages and other tax liabilities in excess of the DST Basket, subject to a limit on DST's aggregate liability, with respect to the Damages and other pre-closing tax liabilities covered by the DST Basket, of \$115 million (the "DST Cap"). Neither the DST Basket nor the DST Cap apply to pre-closing income tax liabilities of OMS agreed upon by the parties or certain other Damages as set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION BY JANUS

Subject to certain limitations set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement, subsequent to the Closing, Janus will indemnify DST and its Representatives, against Damages arising out of, resulting from or incurred in connection with or relating to:

- any breach of a representation or warranty made by Janus in the Share Exchange Agreement or any other document delivered in connection with the Share Exchange Agreement;
- o any breach of any agreement or covenant of Janus contained in the Share Exchange Agreement;
- o any Business Liability; or
- o Janus' operation of the Business after Closing, but not to the extent

resulting from DST's or any of its Affiliates' (including OMS's) actions or operations prior to the Closing.

However, Janus will not be liable for this indemnification with respect to certain Damages unless and until the aggregate amount of these Damages exceeds \$5 million (the "Janus Basket"). DST will be entitled to indemnification for all Damages in excess of the Janus Basket, subject to a limit on Janus' aggregate liability, with respect to the Damages covered by the Janus Basket, of \$115 million (the "Janus Cap"). Neither the Janus Basket nor the Janus Cap apply to certain other Damages as set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement.

CERTAIN ANCILLARY AGREEMENTS

DST and/or its Affiliates, on the one hand, and OMS and/or Janus and/or their respective Affiliates, on the other hand, will enter into a number of Ancillary Agreements in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement. Under these Ancillary Agreements:

- Janus is assuming DST's obligations under certain existing lease guaranties and guaranteeing to DST OMS's obligations under certain subleases and certain other Ancillary Agreements;
- Each of DST and OMS may provide certain services as a subcontractor to the other for their respective customers;
- O DST is subleasing to OMS certain space, OMS is assuming obligations under certain existing leases being assigned to OMS by DST, and notice letters will be provided to certain landlords as required by the terms of the applicable leases;
- o OMS will enter into an employment agreement with the President of OMS;
- o OMS will grant a license to DST for certain software;
- o OMS and an Affiliate of DST will exclusively recommend certain services of the other party to potential customers, and DST will be paid certain commissions;
- OMS will serve as DST's subcontractor for certain services rendered to a customer of DST and DST Output and will reimburse DST for its share of royalties DST must pay to such entity for access to such entity's databases. DST Output will pay OMS its share of any royalties DST Output may receive based on certain relationships of such entity;
- O DST will assign to OMS and OMS will assume DST's obligations under a certain agreement for software and under a lease for certain equipment and software and DST will sublease to OMS certain copiers and products leased by DST;
- DST will continue to provide to OMS certain data processing services on agreed upon service levels, will provide to OMS certain transitional services for a limited period of time to assist in the transition of OMS to Janus, and an Affiliate of DST will provide certain statement printing services to Janus;
- o Responsibilities will be allocated for the handling of certain tax matters and liabilities between DST and OMS post Closing; and
- An agreement will be entered into between OMS and an Affiliate of DST regarding continuation of certain services in support of an OMS product.

JANUS PROXY

In addition, Janus will provide an irrevocable and continuing proxy to DST to vote the shares of DST Common Stock retained by Janus upon consummation of the Exchange for so long as Janus owns or retains voting rights to such shares.

REGULATORY MATTERS

As discussed in "--Required Regulatory Consents, Approvals and Filings" above, certain regulatory approvals and filings are required in connection with the closing of the Exchange. The following actions have occurred to date:

- o DST filed its HSR notification on September 22, 2003; and
- o Filings are being prepared in connection with the Reorganization and DST intends to file these with the appropriate Secretary of State's offices prior to the Exchange.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA OF DST OUTPUT MARKETING SERVICES, INC.

SELECTED COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected combined financial data of OMS. The selected combined balance sheet data as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the selected combined income statement data for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were derived from OMS's audited combined financial statements and the related notes thereto which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus. The selected combined balance sheet data as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 were derived from OMS's audited combined financial statements, not included herein. The selected combined balance sheet data as of December 31, 1998 and the selected combined income statement data for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 were derived from OMS's unaudited combined financial statements, not included herein. The data for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 has been derived from OMS's unaudited condensed combined financial statements incorporated by reference into this prospectus and which, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the unaudited interim periods. This selected combined financial data should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by reference to OMS's audited combined financial statements, including the notes thereto, and the report of independent accountants thereon.

		FOR THE S						YEAR	ENDED
	_	2003	 2002	_	2002		2001		2000
					 (dolla	ırs i	 in thousan	ıds)	
Total revenues	\$	44,524	\$ 56,065	\$	105,698	\$	112,032	\$	120,
Cost and expenses Depreciation and		41,278	50,961		95,844		102,643		110,
Amortization		1,808	 2 , 173		5,249		4,550	_	3,

Income from operations	1,438	38 2,93		2,931 4,605		4,839			6,
Interest expense	(1)		(83)		(113)		(816)		(
Other income (expense), Net	97		(1,133)		2		(103)		(
Income before income Taxes	 1,534		1,715		4,494		3,920		5,
Income taxes	606		705		1,846		1,559		2,
Net income	\$ 928	 \$	1,010	 \$	2,648	 \$	2,361	 \$	3,
Total assets Long-term obligations	\$ 22 , 428 392	=== \$	23,619 196	\$	23 , 239	\$	23,084 7,244	=== \$	29, 9,

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements are based on the historical consolidated balance sheets and statements of income of DST and OMS, adjusted to give effect to the Exchange.

The unaudited pro forma condensed statements of income for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and for the year ended December 31, 2002 reflect the historical results of operations of DST less the historical operations of OMS as if the Exchange occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented. The unaudited pro forma condensed statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 reflect OMS as a discontinued operation and do not reflect the Exchange.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2003 assumes that the Exchange occurred as of that date.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements have been prepared from, and should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of DST appearing in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, which are incorporated in this proxy statement by reference, and the historical combined financial statements and notes of OMS for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and the three years ended December 31, 2002 included as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. These unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the operating results or financial position that would have occurred had the Exchange been consummated on the dates indicated in the preceding paragraphs, and are not necessarily indicative of the future operating results or financial position of DST.

DST
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2003
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

ADJUSTMENTS

ADD

	DST	OMS	
ASSETS			
Current Assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 72.6	\$	\$
Transfer agency investments	59.3		
Accounts receivable	405.4	12.8	
Other current assets	119.1	3.5	
	656.4	16.3	
Investments	1,191.9		
Properties	588.4	5.0	
Goodwill	261.2		
Intangibles	128.3		
Other assets	34.2	1.1	
Total assets	\$ 2,860.4	\$ 22.4	 \$
	========	========	==
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY			
Current Liabilities			
Debt due within one year	\$ 126.4	\$	\$
Transfer agency deposits	59.3		
Accounts payable	119.3	3.0	
Accrued compensation and benefits	92.7	1.6	
Deferred revenues and gains	94.4		
Other liabilities	109.6	5.4	
	601.7	10.0	
Long-term debt	408.2		
Deferred income taxes	330.8		
Other liabilities	93.8	0.4	
	1,434.5	10.4	
Commitments and contingencies			
Stockholders' equity			
Common stock, \$0.01 par; 300 million shares			
authorized, 127.6 million shares issued	1.3		
Additional paid-in capital	362.8		
Retained earnings	1,273.6	12.0	
Treasury stock (44.3 million and 8.0 million	1,2,0,0	12.0	
shares, respectively), at cost	(458.3)		
Accumulated other comprehensive income	246.5		
•			
Total stockholders' equity	1,425.9	12.0	
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$ 2,860.4	\$ 22.4	\$
	========	========	==

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements.

DST
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

	DST																			
			DST OMS(2)		DST OMS(2)		DST OMS (2		DST OMS(2)		DST OMS(2)		T OMS (2)		OMS (2)		DST OMS(2)		DST OMS(2)	
Total revenues	\$	1,236.8	\$	44.5	\$															
Costs and expenses Depreciation and amortization		1,013.9 71.7		41.5 1.6																
Income from operations		151.2		1.4																
Interest expense Other income, net Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		(6.5) 10.1 3.4		0.1		(20.8														
<pre>Income (loss) before income taxes Provision (benefit) for income taxes</pre>		158.2 53.8		1.5		(20.8 (8.1														
Net income (loss) from continuing operations		104.4	•	0.9		(12.7														
Average common shares outstanding Diluted shares outstanding		119.0 120.2				(32.3 (32.3														
Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.88 0.87	\$ \$		\$ \$	0.3 0.3														

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements.

DST UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2002 (IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Interest expense		(13.4)		(0.1)		(41.
Other income, net		20.2				
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		6.5				
Income (loss) before income taxes		316.6		4.5		(41.
Provision (benefit) for income taxes		107.6		1.9		(16.
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$	209.0	\$	2.6	\$	(25.
	====	======	====:	======	====	
Average common shares outstanding		120.0				(32.
Diluted shares outstanding		121.7				(32.
Basic earnings per share	\$	1.74	\$		\$	0.7
Diluted earnings per share	\$	1.72	\$		\$	0.7

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements.

DST
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2001
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

	DST	OM:	OMS (2)		O FORMA
Total revenues	\$ 2,380.7	\$	112.0	\$	2,268.7
Costs and expenses Depreciation and amortization	1,927.8 159.4		4.6		1,825.2 154.8
Income from operations	293.5		4.8		288.7
Interest expense Other income, net Gain on sale of PAS Equity in earnings of	(7.5) 36.2 32.8		(0.8)		(6.7) 36.2 32.8
unconsolidated affiliates	(1.5)				(1.5)
Income before income taxes Income taxes	353.5 125.3		4.0 1.6		
Net income from continuing operations	\$ 228.2				
Average common shares outstanding Diluted shares outstanding	122.6 126.0				122.6 126.0

Basic earnings per share	\$ 1.86	\$ \$	1.84
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 1.81	\$ \$	1.79

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements.

DST
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2000
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

	ADJUSTMENTS					
		DST	C	MS(2)	PR	O FORMA
Total revenues	\$	1,968.7	\$	121.0	\$	1,847.7
Costs and expenses Depreciation and amortization		1,575.5 128.6		110.1		1,465.4 124.6
Income from operations		264.6		6.9		257.7
Interest expense Other income, net Equity in earnings of		66.3		(0.8) (0.2)		66.5
unconsolidated affiliates Income before income taxes		11.4 336.7		5.9		11.4 330.8
Income taxes		120.9		2.5		
Net income from continuing operations		215.8				212.4
Average common shares outstanding Diluted shares outstanding		125.3 129.4				125.3 129.4
Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share		1.72 1.67				1.70 1.64

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed financial statements.

DST

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On August 25, 2003, DST, OMS (a wholly-owned subsidiary of DST) and Janus entered into a Share Exchange Agreement that provides for the exchange of all of the outstanding shares of OMS owned by DST for 32.3 million shares of DST Common Stock owned by Janus. The Exchange has been designed to

comply with Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code, accordingly, DST should not incur income tax relating to the split-off of OMS. Under the terms of the Share Exchange Agreement, the Janus DST Shares will be valued at a price ranging from \$30.00 to \$34.50 per share, based on the average closing price for the 20 trading days preceding the Closing of the Exchange. DST will equalize the difference between the fair market value of OMS of \$115.0 million and the gross transaction value, which can range from \$969.0 million to \$1,114.4 million, with cash ranging from \$854.0 million to \$999.4 million (Additional Assets). The pro forma financial statements are prepared assuming a \$34.50 share price.

DST will contribute cash sufficient to equalize the difference between the fair market value of OMS of \$115 million and the final transaction value determined for the Exchange. Following is a summary of the different amounts of Additional Assets that will be contributed to OMS using different DST Common Stock share prices to value the transaction (dollars in millions, except share prices):

DST COMMON STOCK		ADDITIONAL	TOTAL EXCHANGE
SHARE PRICE	FMV OF OMS	ASSETS	VALUE
\$30.00	\$115.0	\$854.0	\$969.0
\$32.25	\$115.0	\$926.7	\$1,041.7
\$34.50	\$115.0	\$999.4	\$1,114.4

- Reflects the historical operations of OMS for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and the financial position of OMS at June 30, 2003, respectively. The OMS divestiture is considered a discontinued operation.
- 3. Reflects the annual interest expense of \$41.5 million resulting from funding the contribution of the Additional Assets (\$999.4 million) to OMS assuming a transaction value based on \$34.50 per share of DST Common Stock at Closing. The interest expense for the six month period ended June 30, 2003 is \$20.8 million based on the following calculation. DST will fund the Additional Assets as follows (dollars in millions):

DEBT ISSUED	PRINCIPAL AMOUNT	INTEREST RATE	INTEREST EXPENSE
Convertible notes	\$840.0	3.95%	\$ 33.2
Unsecured revolving credit facility draws	180.4	2.75%	4.9
Total	1,020.4		38.1
Less debt issuance costs	(21.0)	5-7 years	3.4
Net	\$999.4		\$41.5
	======		======

The debt issuance costs represents 2.5% of the offering paid to the underwriters. The DST unsecured revolving credit facility is subject to a variable interest rate. It should be noted that the unsecured revolving credit facility would be \$107.7 million and \$35.0 million based on a transaction value of \$32.25 and \$30.00 per DST Common Stock share, respectively. The effect of a 1/8% variance in the interest rate on net income is \$0.2 million, \$0.1 million, and \$0 million based on a transaction value of \$34.50, \$32.25 and \$30.00 per share, respectively.

4. Reflects the income tax effects of the pro forma adjustments for the Additional Assets at DST's statutory income tax rate of 39%.

- 5. Reflects the reduction in average and diluted shares outstanding of 32.3 million shares in accordance with the Share Exchange Agreement.
- 6. The accompanying pro forma income statements do not reflect a \$102.6 million gain expected to be realized from the Share Exchange Agreement. The gain has not been reflected in the pro forma income statements given the non-recurring nature of the gain. The accompanying pro forma balance sheet reflects the net gain in retained earnings as of June 30, 2003 and reflects the following (in millions):

DESCRIPTION	A	MOUNT
	-	
FMV of OMS Investment in OMS basis Stock option compensation expense (\$0.6), net of	\$	115.0 (12.0)
tax 39% (\$0.2)		(0.4)
Net gain on transaction	 \$ ==	102.6

The \$0.2 million deferred tax asset is shown as an adjustment to other assets in the accompanying pro forma balance sheet.

7. The debentures are convertible under certain circumstances into shares of DST Common Stock per \$1,000 original principal amount of debentures at an initial conversion rate of 20.3732 shares, each subject to adjustment in certain events. This is equivalent to an initial conversion price of \$49.08 per share for the debentures. Upon conversion, DST has the right to deliver, in lieu of DST Common Stock, cash or any combination of cash and DST Common Stock. If the conversion criteria were met, the debentures would be convertible to 17,113,488 shares of DST Common Stock. Since the conversion criteria is not met, the shares are not reflected in the earnings per share. Management currently intends to pay cash in the event the debt is put.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES A DEBENTURES

We issued \$540,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series A debentures in a private placement on August 12, 2003. The Series A debentures were issued under an indenture between us and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as trustee. Copies of the indenture are available from us upon request. The following description of the Series A debentures is only a summary and is not intended to be comprehensive. For purposes of this "Description of the Series A Debentures," the terms "DST," "we," "our," "ours" and "us" refer only to DST Systems, Inc. and not to any of our subsidiaries.

GENERAL

The Series A debentures are limited to \$540 million in aggregate original principal amount. The Series A debentures are issued in registered form without coupons only in denominations of \$1,000 original principal amount and integral multiples of \$1,000. We use the term "Series A debenture" in this offering memorandum to refer to each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures.

The Series A debentures will mature on August 15, 2023. On the maturity date of the Series A debentures, a holder will receive \$1,700.28, the accreted principal amount at maturity of a Series A debenture. The Series A debentures will bear regular cash interest at an annual rate equal to 4.125% per annum on the original principal amount from August 12, 2003, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for, until August 15, 2010. During such period, interest will be payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, each an interest payment date, beginning February 15, 2004, to the person in whose name a Series A debenture is registered at the close of business on the February 1 or August 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding the relevant interest payment date, each of which we refer to as a "record date."

Beginning August 15, 2010, we will not pay regular cash interest prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of each Series A debenture will increase daily at a rate of 4.125% per year, to produce the accreted principal amount at maturity. Prior to August 15, 2010, the accreted principal amount of a Series A debenture will be the original principal amount, and beginning on August 15, 2010, the accreted principal amount will be computed on a semiannual bond equivalent basis using a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.

If any date on which regular cash interest is payable, the maturity date, or any redemption date or purchase date (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, as described below) is not a business day, we will pay interest on the next business day (without any interest or other payment due on the delay). Regular cash interest on the Series A debentures will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The term "business day," when used with respect to any place of payment for the Series A debentures, means a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in that place of payment are authorized or obligated by law to close.

In addition, we will pay contingent interest on the Series A debentures under the circumstances described below under " -- Contingent Interest" and liquidated damages as set forth in the registration rights agreement.

Regular cash interest on Series A debentures will accrue from and including the date of issue or from and including the last date in respect of which interest has been paid, as the case may be, to, but excluding, the earlier of (i) August 15, 2010 and (ii) the interest payment date or a purchase date upon a Fundamental Change, as the case may be.

Holders may present Series A debentures for conversion at the office of the conversion agent and may present Series A debentures for exchange or for registration of transfer at the office or agency maintained by us for that purpose in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York. We will not charge a service charge for any exchange or registration of transfer of Series A debentures. However, we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable for the registration of transfer or exchange. The trustee will serve as the initial conversion agent, paying agent, registrar and transfer agent for the Series A debentures. At any time, we may designate additional paying agents and transfer agents. However, at all times we will be required to maintain a paying agent and transfer agent for the Series A debentures in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York.

Any monies deposited with the trustee or any paying agent or then held by us in trust for the payment of principal and interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on the Series A debentures that remain unclaimed for two years after the date the payments became due and payable, shall, at our request, be repaid to us or released from trust, as applicable, and the holder of the Series A debenture shall thereafter look, as a general unsecured creditor, only to us for payment thereof.

RANKING

The Series A debentures are our direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. The Series A debentures rank equally in right of payment with all of our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. In addition, the Series A debentures effectively rank junior to any secured indebtedness that we may incur to the extent of the assets securing such indebtedness. We currently conduct part of our operations through our subsidiaries. Claims of creditors of those subsidiaries, including trade creditors and secured creditors, will generally have a claim to the assets of our subsidiaries that is superior to the claims of our creditors, including holders of the Series A debentures.

As of June 30, 2003, we had outstanding approximately \$406.8 million of unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness ranking equally in right of payment with the Series A debentures, and approximately \$13.9 of secured indebtedness, excluding indebtedness of subsidiaries. As of June 30, 2003, our subsidiaries had approximately \$151.6 million of indebtedness outstanding, all of which ranks structurally senior to the Series A debentures. The indenture does not limit the amount of indebtedness we or our subsidiaries may incur.

CONTINGENT INTEREST

For the period from August 20, 2010 to February 14, 2011, and thereafter for any six-month interest period measured from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, we will pay contingent interest if the average trading price per Series A debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of a Series A debenture. The "five trading-day reference period" means the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the relevant six-month interest period.

The amount of contingent interest payable per Series A debenture in respect of the period from August 20, 2010 to February 14, 2011, and thereafter for any six-month interest period will be equal to 0.19% of the average trading price per Series A debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period.

The record date and payment date for contingent interest, if any, will be the same as the regular record date and payment date, respectively, for the semi-annual interest payments on the Series A debentures.

The "trading price" is as defined under "-- Conversion Rights -- Conversion Upon Satisfaction of Trading Price Condition," provided that if at least one required bid for the Series A debentures is not obtained by the trustee, or in our reasonable judgment the bid quotations are not indicative of the secondary market value of the Series A debentures, then the trading price of the Series A debentures will equal (a) the then applicable conversion rate of the Series A debentures multiplied by (b) the average of the last reported sale prices of our common stock for the applicable five trading-day reference period.

The "last reported sale price" of our common stock on any date means the closing sale price per share (or, if no closing sale price is reported, the average of the bid and asked prices or, if more than one in either case, the average of the average bid and the average asked prices) on that date as reported in composite transactions for the principal U.S. securities exchange on which our common stock is traded or, if our common stock is not listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market. The last reported sale price will be determined without reference to after-hours or extended market trading. If our common stock is not listed for trading on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange and not reported by the Nasdaq National Market on the relevant date, the "last reported sale price"

will be the last quoted bid for our common stock in the over-the-counter market on the relevant date as reported by the National Quotation Bureau or similar organization. If our common stock is not so quoted, the "last reported sale price" will be the average of the midpoint of the last bid and ask prices for our common stock on the relevant date from each of at least three nationally recognized independent investment banking firms selected by us for this purpose.

"Trading day" means a day during which trading in securities generally occurs on the NYSE or, if our common stock is not listed on the NYSE, on the principal other U.S. national or regional securities exchange on which our common stock is then listed or, if our common stock is not listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, on the Nasdaq National Market or, if our common stock is not reported by the Nasdaq National Market, on the principal other market on which our common stock is then traded.

We will notify the holders of the Series A debentures upon a determination that they will be entitled to receive contingent interest with respect to a semi-annual interest period. In connection with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing information regarding the contingent interest determination in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

CONVERSION RIGHTS

Subject to the conditions and during the periods described below, holders may convert their Series A debentures into shares of our common stock initially at a conversion rate of 20.3732 shares of common stock per Series A debenture. The conversion price as of any date of determination is a dollar amount (initially \$49.08 per share of common stock) derived by dividing the accreted principal amount of a Series A debenture (which will be \$1,000 until August 15, 2010) by the conversion rate in effect on such date. The conversion rate and the corresponding conversion price in effect at any given time are referred to as the "applicable conversion rate" and the "applicable conversion price," respectively, and will be subject to adjustment as described below. A holder may convert fewer than all of such holder's Series A debentures so long as the Series A debentures converted are an integral multiple of \$1,000 original principal amount.

Upon conversion, we may choose to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock, as described below. For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of conversion to a holder, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Except as otherwise described below, you will not receive any cash payment representing accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any) or increases on the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures upon conversion of a Series A debenture and we will not adjust the conversion rate to account for the accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) or increases on the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures. Upon conversion we will deliver to you cash or shares of our common stock, as described below. Delivery of cash or shares of common stock will be deemed to satisfy our obligation to pay the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures, including accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any). Increases on the accreted principal amount and accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any) will be deemed paid in full rather than canceled, extinguished or forfeited. Notwithstanding conversion of any Series A debentures by a holder thereof, accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any, to the conversion date will be paid to such holder on the settlement date for such conversion.

If a holder converts Series A debentures, we will pay any documentary, stamp or similar issue or transfer tax due on the issuance of shares of our common stock upon the conversion, unless the tax is due because the holder requests the shares to be issued or delivered to a person other than the holder, in which case the holder will pay that tax.

To convert your Series A debenture into common stock you must do the following:

- complete and manually sign the notice of conversion on the back of the Series A debenture or facsimile of the notice of conversion and deliver this notice to the conversion agent;
- o surrender the Series A debenture to the conversion agent;
- o if required, furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents;
- o if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes; and
- o if required, pay funds equal to interest, if any, (including contingent interest, if any) payable on the next interest payment date.

If your interest is a beneficial interest in a global Series A debenture, to convert you must comply with the last three requirements listed above and comply with the DTC's procedures for converting a beneficial interest in a global Series A debenture. The conversion date will be the date on which all of the foregoing requirements have been satisfied. Settlement of our obligation to deliver shares or cash with respect to a conversion will occur on the dates described below under "-- Payment Upon Conversion." A certificate for the number of full shares of our common stock into which any Series A debentures are converted, or cash in lieu thereof, together with any cash payment for fractional shares, will be delivered through the conversion agent, other than in the case of holders of Series A debentures in book-entry form, which shares or cash will be delivered in accordance with DTC customary practices.

If a holder has already delivered a purchase notice as described under either "-- Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" or "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" with respect to a Series A debenture, however, the holder may not surrender that Series A debenture for conversion until the holder has withdrawn the purchase notice in accordance with the indenture.

Holders of Series A debentures at the close of business on a regular record date will receive payment of interest, if any, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, payable on the corresponding interest payment date, notwithstanding the conversion of such Series A debentures at any time after the close of business on such regular record date. Series A Debentures surrendered for conversion by a holder during the period from the close of business on any regular record date to the opening of business on the immediately following interest payment date must be accompanied by payment of an amount equal to the interest, if any, including contingent interest, if any, that the holder is to receive on the Series A debentures; provided, however, that no such payment need be made if (1) we have specified a redemption date that is after a record date and on or prior to the immediately following interest payment date, (2) we have specified a purchase date following a Fundamental Change that is during such period or (3) any overdue interest (including overdue contingent interest, if any) exists at the time of conversion with respect to such Series A debentures, to the extent of such overdue interest.

PAYMENT UPON CONVERSION

CONVERSION ON OR PRIOR TO THE FINAL NOTICE DATE. In the event that we receive your notice of conversion on or prior to the day that is 20 days prior to stated maturity or, with respect to Series A debentures being redeemed, the applicable redemption date (the "final notice date"), the following procedures will apply:

If we choose to satisfy all or any portion of our obligation to deliver common stock upon conversion (the "conversion obligation") in cash, we will notify you through the trustee of the dollar amount to be satisfied in cash (which must be expressed either as 100% of the conversion obligation or as a fixed dollar amount) at any time on or before the date that is two business days following receipt of your notice of conversion ("cash settlement notice period"). If we timely elect to pay cash for any portion of the shares otherwise issuable to you, you may retract the conversion notice at any time during the two business day period immediately following the cash settlement notice period ("conversion retraction period"). If no such election is made, no such retraction can be made (and a conversion notice shall be irrevocable).

Settlement amounts will be computed as follows:

- If we elect to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in shares, we will deliver to you a number of shares, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures, equal to the applicable conversion rate. In addition, if on the date you submit your notice of conversion there exists a registration default as defined in the registration rights agreement, and the shares of common stock you will receive on conversion are neither registered under the Securities Act nor immediately freely saleable pursuant to Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act, we will deliver to you additional shares as liquidated damages (the "liquidated damages shares") equal to 3% of the applicable conversion rate for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures. We will pay cash for all fractional shares of common stock. The cash payment for fractional shares will be based on the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the conversion date.
- o If we elect to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in cash, we will deliver to you, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures, cash in an amount equal to the product of the applicable conversion rate and the average last reported sale price of our common stock for the 10 trading-day period beginning the day after the conversion retraction period (the "cash settlement averaging period").
- o If we elect to satisfy a fixed portion (other than 100%) of the conversion obligation in cash, we will deliver to you such cash amount ("cash amount") and a number of shares, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures, equal to the applicable conversion rate, plus liquidated damages shares, if any, minus the number of shares equal to the sum, for each day of the cash settlement averaging period, of (x) 10% of the cash amount, divided by (y) the last reported price of our common stock; provided, however, that the number of shares will not be less than zero. We will pay cash for all fractional shares of common stock. The cash payment for fractional shares will be based on the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the conversion date.

If we choose to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash and the conversion notice has not been retracted, then settlement (in cash and/or shares) will occur on the business day following the cash settlement averaging period. If we choose to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in shares of our common stock then settlement will occur on the third business day

following the conversion date.

CONVERSION AFTER THE FINAL NOTICE DATE. In the event that we receive your notice of conversion after the final notice date, we will not send individual notices of our election to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash. Instead, if we choose to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash after the final notice date, we will send, on or prior to final notice date, a single notice to the trustee of the dollar amount to be satisfied in cash (which must be expressed either as 100% of the conversion obligation or as a fixed dollar amount). Settlement amounts will be computed and settlement dates will be determined in the same manner as set forth above under "-- Conversion on or Prior to the Final Notice Date" except that the "cash settlement averaging period" shall be the 10 trading-day period beginning on the day after receipt of your notice of conversion. If we do not elect to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash, then settlement will occur on the first business day following the conversion date.

CONDITIONS TO CONVERSION

Holders may surrender their Series A debentures for conversion into shares of our common stock prior to stated maturity only under the circumstances described below. For a discussion of the federal income tax consequences of a conversion of the Series A debentures into our common stock, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

CONVERSION UPON SATISFACTION OF SALE PRICE CONDITION. A holder may surrender any of its Series A debentures for conversion into shares of our common stock during any calendar quarter after September 30, 2003 (and only during such calendar quarter) if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the previous calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price (initially 120% of \$49.08, or \$58.90), which we refer to as the "conversion trigger price."

The applicable conversion price of a Series A debenture at any time is dependent upon the accreted principal amount of a Series A debenture at that time and therefore both the applicable conversion price and the conversion trigger price will increase following August 15, 2010 as the accreted principal amount of a Series A debenture increases. The following table sets forth the conversion trigger prices at August 15 of each year beginning 2010.

CONVERSION TRIGGER PRICES*

	APPLICABLE	CONVERSION
AUGUST 15,	CONVERSION PRICE	TRIGGER PRICE
2010	\$49.08	\$58.90
2011	\$51.13	\$61.36
2012	\$53.26	\$63.91
2013	\$55.48	\$66.58
2014	\$57.79	\$69.35
2015	\$60.20	\$72.24
2016	\$62.71	\$75.25
2017	\$65.32	\$78.39
2018	\$68.05	\$81.65
2019	\$70.88	\$85.06
2020	\$73.84	\$88.60
2021	\$76.91	\$92.30

2022	\$80.12	\$96.14
2023	\$83.46	\$100.15

CONVERSION UPON SATISFACTION OF TRADING PRICE CONDITION. A holder may surrender any of its Series A debentures for conversion into our common stock prior to the stated maturity during the five business days immediately following any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of Series A debentures (as determined following a request by a holder of the Series A debentures in accordance with the procedures described below) for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate of such Series A debentures on each such day; provided, however, that a holder may not convert Series A debentures in reliance on this provision after August 15, 2018 if on any trading day during such five consecutive trading-day period the last reported sale price of our common stock was between the applicable conversion price of the Series A debentures and 120% of the applicable conversion price of the Series A debentures.

The "trading price" of the Series A debentures on any date of determination means the average of the secondary $\mbox{market bid}$ quotations $\mbox{per $1,000}$ original principal amount of the Series A debentures obtained by the trustee for \$10,000,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures approximately 3:30 p.m., New York City time, on such determination date from three independent nationally recognized securities dealers we select; provided that if three such bids cannot reasonably be obtained by the trustee, but two such bids are obtained, then the average of the two bids shall be used, and if only one such bid can reasonably be obtained by the trustee, that one bid shall be used. If the trustee cannot reasonably obtain at least one bid for \$10,000,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures from a nationally recognized securities dealer, or in our reasonable judgment, the bid quotations are not indicative of the secondary market value of \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures, then the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures will be deemed to be less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate.

In connection with any conversion upon satisfaction of the above trading pricing condition, the trustee shall have no obligation to determine the trading price of the Series A debentures unless we have requested such determination; and we shall have no obligation to make such request unless a holder provides us with reasonable evidence that the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures would be less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate. At such time, we shall instruct the trustee to determine the trading price of the Series A debentures beginning on the next trading day and on each successive trading day until the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series A debentures is greater than or equal to 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate.

CONVERSION UPON REDEMPTION. If we elect to redeem the Series A debentures, holders may convert Series A debentures into our common stock at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the redemption date, even if the Series A debentures are not otherwise convertible at such time.

CONVERSION UPON SPECIFIED CORPORATE TRANSACTIONS. If we elect to:

o distribute to all holders of our common stock certain rights or

^{*} This table assumes no events have occurred that would require an adjustment to the conversion rate.

warrants entitling them to purchase, for a period expiring within 60 days after the date of the distribution, shares of our common stock at a price per share of less than the market price of a share of our common stock on the record date for the distribution, or

distribute to all holders of our common stock our assets, debt securities or certain rights to purchase our securities, which distribution has a per share value as determined by our board of directors exceeding 10% of the last reported sale price of a share of our common stock on the trading day immediately preceding the declaration date for such distribution, we must notify the holders of the Series A debentures at least 20 business days prior to the ex-dividend date for such distribution. Once we have given such notice, holders may surrender their Series A debentures for conversion at any time until the earlier of the close of business on the business day immediately prior to the ex-dividend date or our announcement that such distribution will not take place, even if the Series A debentures are not otherwise convertible at such time; provided, however, that a holder may not exercise this right to convert if the holder may participate in the distribution without conversion. The "ex-dividend date" is the first date upon which a sale of the common stock, regular way on the relevant exchange or in the relevant market for our common stock, does not automatically transfer the right to receive the relevant dividend or distribution from the seller of the common stock to its buyer.

In addition, if we are party to a consolidation, merger or binding share exchange pursuant to which our common stock would be converted into cash, securities or other property, a holder may surrender Series A debentures for conversion at any time from and after the date which is 15 days prior to the anticipated effective date of the transaction until 15 days after the actual effective date of such transaction (or if such transaction constitutes a Fundamental Change, until the business day immediately preceding the applicable Fundamental Change purchase date). If we engage in certain reclassifications of our common stock or are a party to a consolidation, merger, binding share exchange or transfer of all or substantially all of our assets pursuant to which our common stock is converted into cash, securities or other property, then at the effective time of the transaction, the right to convert a Series A debenture into our common stock will be changed into a right to convert a Series A debenture into the kind and amount of cash, securities or other property that the holder would have received if the holder had converted its Series A debentures immediately prior to the transaction. If the transaction also constitutes a Fundamental Change, as defined below, a holder can require us to purchase all or a portion of its Series A debentures as described below under "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder."

The Exchange (described in "Summary--Recent Developments" and "Description of the Exchange") if consummated will not constitute a specified corporate transaction permitting conversion.

CONVERSION RATE ADJUSTMENTS

The applicable conversion rate will be subject to adjustment, without duplication, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

- (1) the payment of dividends and other distributions on our common stock payable exclusively in shares of our common stock,
- (2) the distribution to all holders of our common stock of rights or warrants that allow the holders to purchase shares of our common stock for a period expiring within 60 days from the date of issuance of the rights or

warrants at less than the market price on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive the rights or warrants,

- (3) subdivisions or combinations of our common stock,
- (4) distributions to all holders of our common stock of our assets, debt securities, shares of our capital stock or rights or warrants to purchase our securities (excluding any dividend, distribution or issuance covered by clause (1) or (2) above and any dividend or distribution paid exclusively in cash) the conversion rate will be increased by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,
 - (a) the numerator of which is the current market price of our common stock plus the fair market value, as determined by our board of directors, of the portion of those assets, debt securities, shares of capital stock or rights or warrants so distributed applicable to one share of common stock, and
 - (b) the denominator of which is the current market price of our common stock.

The "current market price" of our common stock means the average of the last reported sale prices for the first 10 trading days from, and including, the ex-dividend date (as defined above in "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Conversion Upon Specified Corporate Transactions") for such dividend or distribution.

In the event that we make a distribution to all holders of our common stock consisting of capital stock of, or similar equity interests in, a subsidiary or other business unit of ours, the fair market value of the securities so distributed will be based on the average of the closing sales prices of those securities for each of the 10 trading days commencing on and including the fifth trading day after the ex-dividend date (as defined above in "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Conversion Upon Specified Corporate Transactions") for such dividend or distribution on the NYSE or such other national or regional exchange or market on which the securities are then listed or quoted.

- (5) we make distributions consisting exclusively of cash to all holders of our common stock, excluding any cash dividend on our common stock to the extent that the aggregate cash dividend per share of our common stock in any quarter does not exceed \$0.0025 (the "dividend threshold amount") (the dividend threshold amount is subject to adjustment on the same basis as the conversion rate, provided that no adjustment will be made to the dividend threshold amount for any adjustment made to the conversion rate pursuant to this clause (5)), in which event the conversion rate will be adjusted by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,
 - (a) the numerator of which will be the current market price of our common stock plus the amount per share of such dividend or distribution and
 - (b) the denominator of which will be the current market price of our common stock.

If an adjustment is required to be made under this clause (5) as a result of a distribution that is a dividend, the adjustment would be based upon the amount by which the distribution exceeds the dividend threshold amount. If an adjustment is required to be made under this clause (5) as a result of a distribution that is not a dividend, the adjustment would be based upon the full amount of the distribution.

(6) we or one of our subsidiaries makes a payment in respect of a tender offer or exchange offer for our common stock to the extent that the cash and value of any other consideration included in the payment per share of our common stock exceeds the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the last date on which tenders or exchanges may be made pursuant to such tender or exchange offer, the conversion rate will be adjusted by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,

- (a) the numerator of which will be the sum of (x) the fair market value, as determined by our board of directors, of the aggregate consideration payable for all shares of our common stock we purchase in such tender or exchange offer and (y) the product of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding less any such purchased shares and the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the expiration of the tender or exchange offer and
- (b) the denominator of which will be the product of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding, including any such purchased shares, and the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the expiration of the tender or exchange offer.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an adjustment pursuant to clauses (4), (5) or (6) above, in no event will the conversion rate exceed 28.5225, subject to adjustment pursuant to clauses (1), (2) and (3) above.

To the extent that we have a rights plan in effect upon conversion of the Series A debentures into common stock (including the rights plan described in "Description of Capital Stock--Rights Plan" below), the holder will receive, in addition to the common stock, the rights under the rights plan unless the rights have separated from the common stock prior to the time of conversion, in which case the conversion rate will be adjusted at the time of separation as if we distributed to all holders of our common stock, our assets, debt securities, shares of our capital stock or rights or warrants to purchase our securities as described in clause (4) above.

In addition to these adjustments, we may increase the conversion rate as our board of directors considers advisable to avoid or diminish any income tax to holders of our common stock or rights to purchase our common stock resulting from any dividend or distribution of stock (or rights to acquire stock) or from any event treated as such for income tax purposes. We may also, from time to time, to the extent permitted by applicable law, increase the conversion rate by any amount for any period of at least 20 business days if our board of directors has determined that such increase would be in our best interests. If our board of directors makes such a determination, it will be conclusive. We will give holders of Series A debentures at least 15 days' notice of such an increase in the conversion rate.

"Market price" means the average of the last reported sale prices per share of our common stock for the 10 trading-day period ending on the applicable date of determination (if the applicable date of determination is a trading day or, if not, then on the last trading day prior to the applicable date of determination), appropriately adjusted to take into account the occurrence, during the period commencing on the first of the trading days during the 10 trading-day period and ending on the applicable date of determination, of any event that would result in an adjustment of the conversion rate under the indenture.

The applicable conversion rate will not be adjusted:

- upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock pursuant to any present or future plan providing for the reinvestment of dividends or interest payable on our securities and the investment of additional optional amounts in shares of our common stock under any plan,
- o upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock or options or rights to purchase those shares pursuant to any present or future employee, director or consultant benefit plan or program of or assumed by us or any of our subsidiaries,
- o upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock pursuant to any option, warrant, right or exercisable, exchangeable or convertible security not described in the preceding bullet and outstanding as of the date the Series A debentures were first issued (no adjustment will be made for the issuance of common stock pursuant to conversion of the Series B debentures),
- o for a change in the par value of the common stock, or
- o for accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest or liquidated damages, if any, or accretion of the principal amount of the Series A debentures.

No adjustment in the applicable conversion rate will be required unless the adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1% of the applicable conversion rate. If the adjustment is not made because the adjustment does not change the applicable conversion rate by more than 1%, then the adjustment that is not made will be carried forward and taken into account in any future adjustment.

In the event of:

- o a taxable distribution to holders of shares of common stock which results in an adjustment of the conversion rate; or
- o an increase in the conversion rate at our discretion,

the holders of the Series A debentures may, in certain circumstances, be deemed to have received a distribution subject to U.S. federal income tax as a dividend. In addition, for Non-U.S. Holders of Series A debentures, this deemed distribution may be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax requirements. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

No sinking fund is provided for the Series A debentures. Prior to August 20, 2010, the Series A debentures will not be redeemable. On or after August 20, 2010, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Series A debentures at any time, upon not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date by mail to the trustee, the paying agent and each holder of Series A debentures.

If redeemed at our option, the Series A debentures will be redeemed at a redemption price equal to the accreted principal amount, plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. The table below shows the redemption prices of a Series A debenture on August 15, 2010, on each August 15 thereafter prior to maturity and at maturity on August 15, 2023 (assuming there is no accrued and unpaid cash interest, contingent interest or liquidated damages). In addition,

the redemption price of a Series A debenture that is redeemed between the dates listed below would include an additional amount reflecting the additional principal amount that has accreted on such Series A debenture since the immediately preceding date in the table below.

REDEMPTION DATE: AUGUST 15,	SERIES A DEBENTURE ISSUE PRICE (1)	ACCRETION AMOUNT (2)	REDEMPTION PRICE (1)
2010	\$1,000.00	\$0.00	\$1,000.00
2011	\$1,000.00	\$41.68	\$1,041.68
2012	\$1,000.00	\$85.09	\$1,085.09
2013	\$1,000.00	\$130.31	\$1,130.31
2014	\$1,000.00	\$177.42	\$1,177.42
2015	\$1,000.00	\$226.48	\$1,226.48
2016	\$1,000.00	\$277.60	\$1,277.60
2017	\$1,000.00	\$330.84	\$1,330.84
2018	\$1,000.00	\$386.31	\$1,386.31
2019	\$1,000.00	\$444.08	\$1,444.08
2020	\$1,000.00	\$504.26	\$1,504.26
2021	\$1,000.00	\$566.95	\$1,566.95
2022	\$1,000.00	\$632.26	\$1,632.26
2023	\$1,000.00	\$700.28	\$1,700.28

If we decide to redeem fewer than all of the outstanding Series A debentures, the trustee will select the Series A debentures to be redeemed (in original principal amounts of \$1,000 or integral multiples thereof) by lot, on a pro rata basis or by another method the trustee considers fair and appropriate.

If the trustee selects a portion of your Series A debenture for partial redemption and you convert a portion of the same Series A debenture, the converted portion will be deemed to be from the portion selected for redemption.

In the event of any redemption in part, we will not be required to issue, register the transfer of or exchange any Series A debenture during a period of 15 days before the mailing of the redemption notice.

For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of our redemption of the Series A debentures, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

PURCHASE OF SERIES A DEBENTURES BY US AT THE OPTION OF THE HOLDER

Holders have the right to require us to purchase the Series A debentures on August 15, 2010, August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020 (each, a "purchase date"). We will pay cash for all Series A debentures purchased by us on August 15, 2010. For purchases on August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020 we may, at our option, pay the purchase price in cash, shares of our common stock, or any combination thereof. We may pay all or a portion of the purchase price in shares of our common stock as long as our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdaq National Market and if certain other conditions specified below are satisfied. For purchases on August 15, 2015 and August 15, 2020, if we elect to pay the purchase price, in whole or in part, in shares of our common stock, the number of shares of common stock to be delivered by us will be equal to the portion of the purchase price to be paid in common stock divided by 97.5% of the market price (as defined under "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Conversion Rate Adjustments" above) as of the third business day

prior to the purchase date.

We will be required to purchase any outstanding Series A debentures for which a holder delivers a written purchase notice to the paying agent. This notice must be delivered during the period beginning at any time from the opening of business on the date that is 20 business days prior to the relevant purchase date and ending on the close of business on the business day prior to the purchase date. If the purchase notice is given and withdrawn during such period, we will not be obligated to purchase the related Series A debentures. Our purchase obligation will be subject to some additional conditions as described in the indenture. Also, as described in the "Risk Factors" section of this offering memorandum under the caption "Risks Related to the Debentures --We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to purchase the debentures upon a Fundamental Change or other purchase date, as required by the indenture governing the debentures," we may not have funds sufficient to purchase the Series A debentures when we are required to do so or may be prohibited from doing so under the terms of other indebtedness. Our failure to purchase the Series A debentures when we are required to do so will constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series A debentures.

The purchase price payable will be equal to 100% of the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. The table below shows the purchase prices of a Series A debenture on each of the purchase dates. The purchase prices below do not include any additional amounts reflecting any accrued and unpaid cash interest (including contingent interest, if any) and accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any.

PURCHASE DATE: AUGUST 15,	SERIES A DEBENTURE ISSUE PRICE (1)	ACCRETION AMOUNT (2)	PURCHASE PRICE (1) + (2)
2010	\$1,000.00	\$0.00	\$1,000.00
	\$1,000.00	\$226.48	\$1,226.48
	\$1,000.00	\$504.26	\$1,504.26

For a discussion of the United States federal income tax treatment of a holder receiving cash, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

On or before the 20th business day prior to each purchase date, we will provide to the trustee, the paying agent and to all holders of the Series A debentures at their addresses shown in the register of the registrar, and to beneficial owners as required by applicable law, a notice stating, among other things:

- o for purchases on or after August 15, 2015, whether we will pay the purchase price of the Series A debentures in cash, shares of our common stock or a combination thereof, specifying the percentages of each;
- o for purchases on or after August 15, 2015, if we elect to pay in shares of our common stock, the method of calculating the market price of the shares of common stock;
- o the purchase price;
- o the name and address of the paying agent and the conversion agent;

- o the conversion rate and any adjustments to the conversion rate;
- o that the Series A debentures with respect to which a purchase notice has been given by the holder may be converted only if the holder withdraws the purchase notice in accordance with the terms of the indenture, and
- o the procedures that holders must follow to require us to purchase their Series A debentures.

In connection with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing this information in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

To exercise your purchase right, you must deliver, before the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the purchase date, the Series A debentures to be purchased, duly endorsed for transfer, together with the form attached to the Series A debentures entitled "Purchase Notice" duly completed, to the paying agent. A notice electing to require us to purchase your Series A debentures must state:

- o if certificated Series A debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the Series A debentures,
- the portion of the original principal amount of Series A debentures to be purchased, in integral multiples of \$1,000,
- for purchases on or after August 15, 2015, in the event we elect, pursuant to the notice that we are required to give, to pay the purchase price in shares of our common stock, in whole or in part, but the purchase price is ultimately to be paid to the holder entirely in cash because any condition to payment of the purchase price or portion of the purchase price in common stock is not satisfied prior to the close of business on the purchase date, as described below, whether the holder elects: (a) to withdraw the purchase notice as to some or all of the Series A debentures to which it relates, or (b) to receive cash in respect of the entire purchase price for all Series A debentures or portions of Series A debentures subject to such purchase notice, provided, however, that if the holder fails to indicate its choice with respect to such election, the holder will be deemed to have elected to receive cash in respect of the entire purchase price for all Series A debentures subject to the purchase notice in these circumstances, and
- o that the Series A debentures are to be purchased by us pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Series A debentures and the indenture.

If the Series A debentures are not in certificated form, your notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

We may not purchase any Series A debentures at the option of holders if the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures has been accelerated, and such acceleration has not been rescinded.

You may withdraw any purchase notice (in whole or in part) by a written notice of withdrawal delivered to the paying agent prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the purchase date. The notice of withdrawal must state:

o the original principal amount of the withdrawn Series A debentures,

- o if certificated Series A debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the withdrawn Series A debentures, and
- o the original principal amount, if any, that remains subject to the purchase notice.

If the Series A debentures are not in certificated form, your withdrawal notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

You must either effect book-entry transfer or deliver the Series A debentures, together with necessary endorsements, to the office of the paying agent after delivery of the purchase notice to receive payment of the purchase price. You will receive payment promptly following the later of the purchase date and the time of book-entry transfer or the delivery of the Series A debentures. If the paying agent holds money or securities sufficient to pay the purchase price of the Series A debentures on the purchase date, then on the business day following the purchase date:

- the Series A debentures will cease to be outstanding and cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, will cease to accrue and the principal amount will cease to accrete (whether or not book-entry transfer of the debentures is made or whether or not the Series A debentures are delivered to the paying agent), and
- o all other rights of the holder will terminate (other than the right to receive the purchase price upon delivery or transfer of the Series A debentures).

In connection with any purchase offer pursuant to these provisions, to the extent applicable and required by law, we will:

- comply with the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-1 and any other tender offer rules under the Exchange Act which may then be applicable; and
- o $\,$ file Schedule TO or any other required schedule under the Exchange Act.

Because the market price of our common stock is determined prior to the applicable purchase date, holders of Series A debentures bear the market risk with respect to the value of common stock to be received from the date the market price is determined to such purchase date.

Our right to purchase Series A debentures, in whole or in part, with shares of our common stock for purchases on or after August 15, 2015, is subject to various conditions, including:

- o the registration of the common stock under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, if required;
- any necessary qualification or registration under applicable state securities law or the availability of an exemption from such qualification and registration;
- o the information necessary to calculate the market price is published in a daily newspaper of national circulation; and
- o our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdaq National Market.

If such conditions are not satisfied prior to the close of business on the

purchase date, we will pay the purchase price of the Series A debentures entirely in cash. We may not change the form, components or percentages of components of consideration to be paid for the Series A debentures once we have given the notice that we are required to give to holders of Series A debentures, except as described in the preceding sentence.

FUNDAMENTAL CHANGE REQUIRES PURCHASE OF SERIES A DEBENTURES BY US AT THE OPTION OF THE HOLDER

If a Fundamental Change (as defined below in this section) occurs at any time prior to maturity, holders will have the right, at their option, to require us to purchase any or all of their Series A debentures, or any portion of the original principal amount thereof, that is equal to \$1,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000. The price we are required to pay (the "Fundamental Change purchase price") is equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures to be purchased plus accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the Fundamental Change purchase date, unless such Fundamental Change purchase date falls after a record date and on or prior to the corresponding interest payment date, in which case we will pay the full amount of accrued and unpaid cash interest payable on such interest payment date to the holder of record at the close of business on the corresponding record date. For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of our purchase of the Series A debentures, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

If we elect to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price, in whole or in part, in shares of our common stock, the number of shares of common stock to be delivered by us will be equal to the portion of the Fundamental Change purchase price to be paid in common stock divided by 97.5% of the market price (as defined under "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Adjustments to Conversion Rate" above) of one share of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the Fundamental Change purchase date.

Because the market price of the common stock is determined prior to the applicable Fundamental Change purchase date, holders of Series A debentures bear the market risk with respect to the value of the common stock to be received from the date such market price is determined to such Fundamental Change purchase date.

- A "Fundamental Change" will be deemed to have occurred at any time after the Series A debentures are originally issued that any of the following occurs:
 - (1) our common stock or other common stock into which the Series A debentures are convertible is neither listed for trading on a U.S. national securities exchange nor approved for trading on the Nasdaq National Market or another established automated over-the-counter trading market in the United States,
 - (2) a "person" or "group" (within the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) other than us, our subsidiaries or our or their employee benefit plans, files a Schedule TO or any schedule, form or report under the Exchange Act disclosing that such person or group has become the direct or indirect ultimate "beneficial owner," as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, of our common equity representing more than 50% of the voting power of our common equity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors,
 - (3) consummation of any share exchange, consolidation or merger of us pursuant to which our common stock will be converted into cash, securities or other property or any sale, lease or other transfer in one transaction or a series of transactions of all or substantially all of the consolidated assets of us and our subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to any person other

than us or one or more of our subsidiaries; provided, however, that a transaction where the holders of our common equity immediately prior to such transaction have directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of common equity of the continuing or surviving corporation or transferee entitled to vote generally in the election of directors immediately after such event shall not be a Fundamental Change, or

(4) continuing directors (as defined below in this section) cease to constitute at least a majority of our board of directors.

The Exchange (described in "Summary--Recent Developments" and "Description of the Exchange") if consummated will not constitute a fundamental change.

A Fundamental Change will not be deemed to have occurred in respect of any of the foregoing, however, if either:

- (1) the last reported sale price of our common stock for any five trading days within the 10 consecutive trading days ending immediately before the later of the Fundamental Change or the public announcement thereof, equals or exceeds 105% of the applicable conversion price of the Series A debentures in effect immediately before the Fundamental Change or the public announcement thereof, or
- (2) all or substantially all of the consideration, excluding cash payments for fractional shares, in the transaction or transactions constituting the Fundamental Change consists of shares of capital stock traded on a national securities exchange or quoted on the Nasdaq National Market or which will be so traded or quoted when issued or exchanged in connection with a Fundamental Change (these securities being referred to as "publicly traded securities") and as a result of this transaction or transactions the Series A debentures become convertible into such publicly traded securities, excluding cash payments for fractional shares.

For purposes of the above paragraph the term "capital stock" of any person means any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents however designated of corporate stock or other equity participations, including partnership interests, whether general or limited, of such person and any rights (other than debt securities convertible or exchangeable into an equity interest), warrants or options to acquire an equity interest in such person.

"Continuing director" means a director who either was a member of our board of directors on the date of this offering memorandum or who becomes a member of our board of directors subsequent to that date and whose appointment, election or nomination for election by our stockholders is duly approved by a majority of the continuing directors on our board of directors at the time of such approval, either by a specific vote or by approval of the proxy statement issued by us on behalf of the board of directors in which such individual is named as nominee for director.

On or before the 30th day after the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, we will provide to all holders of the Series A debentures and the trustee and paying agent a notice of the occurrence of the Fundamental Change and of the resulting purchase right. Such notice shall state, among other things:

- whether we will pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series A debentures in cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof, specifying the percentages of each,
- o if we elect to pay in shares of common stock, the method of calculating the market price of the common stock,

- o the events causing a Fundamental Change,
- o the date of the Fundamental Change,
- o the last date on which a holder may exercise the purchase right,
- o the Fundamental Change purchase price,
- o the Fundamental Change purchase date,
- o the name and address of the paying agent and the conversion agent,
- o the conversion rate and any adjustments to the conversion rate,
- o that the Series A debentures with respect to which a Fundamental Change purchase notice has been given by the holder may be converted only if the holder withdraws the Fundamental Change purchase notice in accordance with the terms of the indenture, and
- o the procedures that holders must follow to require us to purchase their Series A debentures.

Simultaneously with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing this information in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

To exercise your purchase right, you must deliver, before the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the Fundamental Change purchase date, the Series A debentures to be purchased, duly endorsed for transfer, together with the form attached to the Series A debentures entitled "Form of Fundamental Change Purchase Notice" duly completed, to the paying agent. Your purchase notice must state:

- o if certificated, the certificate numbers of their Series A debentures to be delivered for purchase,
- o the portion of the original principal amount of Series A debentures to be purchased, which must be \$1,000 or an integral multiple thereof,
- in the event we elect, pursuant to the notice that we are required to give, to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price in our common stock, in whole or in part, but the Fundamental Change purchase price is ultimately to be paid to the holder entirely in cash because any condition to payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price or portion of the Fundamental Change purchase price in common stock is not satisfied prior to the close of business on the Fundamental Change purchase date, as described below, whether the holder elects: (a) to withdraw the Fundamental Change purchase notice as to some or all of the Series A debentures to which it relates, or (b) to receive cash in respect of the entire Fundamental Change purchase price for all Series A debentures or portions of Series A debentures subject to such Fundamental Change purchase notice; provided, however, that if the holder fails to indicate the holder's choice with respect to the election described in this bullet point, the holder will be deemed to have elected to receive cash in respect of the entire Fundamental Change purchase price for all Series A debentures subject to the Fundamental Change purchase notice in these circumstances, and
- that the Series A debentures are to be purchased by us pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Series A debentures and the indenture.

If the Series A debentures are not in certificated form, their Fundamental Change purchase notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

Holders may withdraw any Fundamental Change purchase notice (in whole or in part) by a written notice of withdrawal delivered to the paying agent prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the Fundamental Change purchase date. The notice of withdrawal shall state:

- o the original principal amount of the withdrawn Series A debentures,
- o if certificated Series A debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the withdrawn Series A debentures, and
- o the original principal amount, if any, that remains subject to the Fundamental Change purchase notice.

If the Series A debentures are not in certificated form, their withdrawal notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

We will be required to purchase the Series A debentures no less than 20 and no more than 35 business days after the date of our notice of the occurrence of the relevant Fundamental Change, subject to extension to comply with applicable law. You may either effect book-entry transfer or deliver the Series A debentures, together with necessary endorsements, to the office of the paying agent after delivery of the Fundamental Change purchase notice to receive payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price. Holders will receive payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price promptly following the later of the Fundamental Change purchase date or the time of book-entry transfer or the delivery of the Series A debentures. If the paying agent holds money or securities sufficient to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series A debentures on the Fundamental Change purchase date, then on the business day following the Fundamental Change purchase date:

- the Series A debentures will cease to be outstanding and cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, will cease to accrue and principal will cease to accrete (whether or not book-entry transfer of the Series A debentures is made or whether or not the Series A debenture is delivered to the paying agent), and
- o all other rights of the holder will terminate (other than the right to receive the Fundamental Change purchase price upon delivery or transfer of the Series A debentures).

In connection with any purchase offer pursuant to these provisions, and to the extent applicable and required by law, we will:

- o comply with the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-1 and any other tender offer rules under the Exchange Act which may then be applicable; and
- o file Schedule TO or any other required schedule under the Exchange

The rights of the holders to require us to purchase their Series A debentures upon a Fundamental Change could discourage a potential acquirer of us. The Fundamental Change purchase feature, however, is not the result of management's knowledge of any specific effort to accumulate shares of our common stock, to obtain control of us by any means or part of a plan by management to adopt a series of anti-takeover provisions. Instead, the Fundamental Change purchase feature is a standard term contained in other offerings of debt securities similar to the Series A debentures that have been marketed by certain

of the initial purchasers. The terms of the Fundamental Change purchase feature resulted from negotiations between the initial purchasers and us.

The term Fundamental Change is limited to specified transactions and may not include other events that might adversely affect our financial condition. In addition, the requirement that we offer to purchase the Series A debentures upon a Fundamental Change may not protect holders in the event of a highly leveraged transaction, reorganization, merger or similar transaction involving us.

No Series A debentures may be purchased at the option of holders upon a Fundamental Change if the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures has been accelerated, and such acceleration has not been rescinded.

The definition of Fundamental Change includes a phrase relating to the conveyance, transfer, sale, lease or disposition of "all or substantially all" of our consolidated assets. There is no precise, established definition of the phrase "substantially all" under applicable law. Accordingly, the ability of a holder of the Series A debentures to require us to purchase its Series A debentures as a result of the conveyance, transfer, sale, lease or other disposition of less than all of our assets may be uncertain.

If a Fundamental Change were to occur, we may not have enough funds to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price or we may be prohibited from doing so under the terms of other indebtedness. See "Risk Factors" under the caption "Risks Related to the Debentures -- We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to purchase the debentures upon a Fundamental Change or other purchase date, as required by the indenture governing the debentures." Our failure to purchase the Series A debentures when required following a Fundamental Change will constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series A debentures. In addition, we have, and may in the future incur, other indebtedness with similar change in control provisions permitting holders to accelerate or to require us to purchase our indebtedness upon the occurrence of similar events or on some specific dates, including the Series B debentures.

Our right to purchase Series A debentures, in whole or in part, with common stock is subject to our satisfying various conditions, including:

- o the registration of the common stock under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, if required;
- o any necessary qualification or registration under applicable state securities law or the availability of an exemption from such qualification and registration;
- o the information necessary to calculate the market price is published in a daily newspaper of national circulation; and
- o our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdaq National Market.

If such conditions are not satisfied prior to the close of business on the Fundamental Change purchase date, we will pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series A debentures entirely in cash. We may not change the form, components or percentages of components of consideration to be paid for the Series A debentures once we have given the notice that we are required to give to holders of Series A debentures, except as described in the preceding sentence.

CONSOLIDATION, MERGER AND SALE OF ASSETS

The indenture prohibits us from consolidating with or merging into another

business entity, or conveying, transferring or leasing substantially all of our assets, unless:

- either (1) we are the continuing entity in the case of a merger; or (2) the resulting, surviving or acquiring entity, if other than DST, is a U.S. corporation and it expressly assumes our obligations with respect to the Series A debentures, by executing a supplemental indenture,
- o immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no event of default and no circumstances which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an event of default, shall have happened and be continuing; and
- o we have delivered to the trustee an officers' certificate and a legal opinion confirming that we have complied with the indenture.

However, certain of these transactions could constitute a Fundamental Change (as defined above) permitting each holder to require us to purchase the Series A debentures of such holder as described above.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Any of the following events constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series A debentures:

- o failure to pay interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, on the Series A debentures for thirty days past the applicable due date,
- o failure to pay the accreted principal amount of the Series A debentures when due (whether at maturity, upon redemption, purchase or otherwise),
- o failure to deliver our common stock, or cash in lieu thereof, upon conversion of any Series A debenture and such failure continues for five days following the date such delivery is required,
- o failure to perform any other covenant or agreement in the indenture, which continues for 90 days after written notice from the trustee or holders of 25% of the outstanding original principal amount of the Series A debentures as provided in the indenture,
- acceleration of more than \$25,000,000 of our indebtedness by its terms (including the Series B debentures) if the acceleration is not rescinded or such indebtedness is not paid within 10 days after written notice from the trustee or holders of 25% of the outstanding original principal amount of the Series A debentures as provided in the indenture,
- failure to give timely notice of a Fundamental Change as set forth under "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series A Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" above, and such failure continues for five days following the date such notice is required, and
- o specified events relating to our bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization.

If there is an event of default with respect to the Series A debentures, which continues for the requisite amount of time, either the trustee or holders of at least 25% of the aggregate original principal amount of the Series A debentures may declare the accreted principal amount of and interest (including

contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on all of the Series A debentures to be due and payable immediately, except that if an event of default occurs due to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization as provided in the indenture, then the accreted principal amount of and interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on the Series A debentures shall become due and payable immediately without any act by the trustee or any holder of Series A debentures.

Before the acceleration of the maturity of the Series A debentures, the holders of a majority in aggregate original principal amount of the Series A debentures may, on behalf of the holders of all Series A debentures, waive any past default or event of default and its consequences for the Series A debentures, except (1) a default in the payment of the accreted principal or interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) with respect to the Series A debentures or (2) a default with respect to a provision of the indenture that cannot be amended without the consent of each holder affected by the amendment. In case of a waiver of a default, that default shall cease to exist, any event of default arising from that default shall be deemed to have been cured for all purposes, and DST, the trustee, and the holders of the Series A debentures will be restored to their former positions and rights under the indenture.

A holder may institute a suit against us for enforcement of such holder's rights under the indenture, for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy only if the following conditions are satisfied:

- o the holder gives the trustee written notice of a continuing event of default with respect to the Series A debentures held by that holder,
- holders of at least 25% of the aggregate original principal amount of the Series A debentures make a request, in writing, and offer reasonable indemnity, to the trustee for the trustee to institute the requested proceeding,
- o the trustee does not receive direction contrary to the holder's request from holder's of a majority in original principal amount of the Series A debentures within 60 days following such notice, request and offer of indemnity under the terms of the indenture, and
- o the trustee does not institute the requested proceeding within 60 days following such notice.

The indenture requires us every year to deliver to the trustee a statement as to any defaults under the indenture.

A default in the payment of the Series A debentures, or a default with respect to the Series A debentures that causes them to be accelerated, may give rise to a cross-default under our credit facilities or other indebtedness, including the Series B debentures.

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF THE INDENTURE

The indenture will generally cease to be of any further effect with respect to the Series A debentures, if:

- o we have delivered to the trustee for cancellation all outstanding Series A debentures (with certain limited exceptions), or
- o all Series A debentures not previously delivered to the trustee for cancellation have become due and payable, whether at stated maturity or any redemption date or any purchase date (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change), or upon conversion or otherwise,

and we have deposited with the trustee as trust funds the entire amount (including our common stock, as applicable) sufficient to pay all of the outstanding Series A debentures,

o and if, in either case, we also pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable under the indenture by us.

LEGAL DEFEASANCE AND COVENANT DEFEASANCE

The Series A debentures are not subject to any defeasance $\;\;$ provisions under the indenture.

MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

We may enter into supplemental indentures for the purpose of modifying or amending the indenture with the consent of holders of at least a majority in aggregate original principal amount of the Series A debentures. However, the consent of all of the holders of the Series A debentures is required for any of the following:

- o to reduce the percentage in original principal amount of Series A debentures whose holders must consent to an amendment,
- to reduce the rate of or extend the time for payment of regular cash interest, contingent interest or liquidated damages on any Series A debenture or reduce the amount of any interest payment (including contingent interest or liquidated damages) for accretion of principal to be made with respect to any Series A debenture or to alter the manner of calculation of regular cash interest or accretion of principal, contingent interest or liquidated damages payable on any Series A debenture,
- o to reduce the original principal amount or accreted principal amount or change the stated maturity of principal of, or any installment of principal of or interest on, any Series A debenture,
- o to reduce the redemption price or purchase price (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change) or change the time at which any Series A debenture may or shall be redeemed or purchased,
- o to make any Series A debenture payable in a different currency,
- o to make any change in the provisions of the indenture relating to waivers of defaults or amendments that require unanimous consent,
- o to change any place of payment where the Series A debentures or interest thereon is payable,
- o to make any change that adversely affects the right to convert the Series A debentures or reduces the amount payable on conversion,
- o to impair the right to bring a lawsuit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the stated maturity of any Series A debenture (or in the case of redemption or purchase, on or after the date fixed for redemption or purchase), or
- to modify any of the above provisions of the indenture, except to increase the percentage in original principal amount of Series A debentures whose holders must consent to an amendment or to provide that certain other provisions of the indenture cannot be modified or waived without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Series A debenture affected by the modification or waiver.

In addition, we and the trustee with respect to the indenture may enter into supplemental indentures without the consent of the holders of the Series A debentures for one or more of the following purposes:

- o to evidence that another person has become our successor under the provisions of the indenture relating to consolidations, mergers, and sales of assets and that the successor assumes our covenants, agreements, and obligations in the indenture and in the Series A debentures,
- o to surrender any of our rights or powers under the indenture, to add to our covenants further covenants, restrictions, conditions, or provisions for the protection of the holders of the Series A debentures, and to make a default in any of these additional covenants, restrictions, conditions, or provisions a default or an event of default under the indenture,
- to cure any ambiguity or to make corrections to the indenture or to make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under the indenture that do not adversely affect the interests of any holders of Series A debentures,
- o to modify or amend the indenture to permit the qualification of the indenture or any supplemental indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 as then in effect,
- to add guarantees with respect to the Series A debentures or to secure the Series A debentures,
- o to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder of Series A debentures, and
- o to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor or separate trustee with respect to the Series A debentures.

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

We issued the Series A debentures in the form of global securities. The global securities were deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC and registered in the name of a nominee of DTC. The Series A debentures sold pursuant to this prospectus will be represented by one or more new unrestricted global securities. Except under circumstances described below, the Series A debentures will not be issued in definitive form.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be limited to persons that have accounts with DTC or its nominee ("participants") or persons that may hold interests through participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to interests of persons other than participants). The laws of some states require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of the securities in definitive form. Such limits and such laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a global security.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of a global security, DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the Series A debentures represented by that global security for all purposes under the indenture. Except as provided below, owners of beneficial interests in a global security will not be entitled to have Series A debentures represented by that global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of Series A debentures in definitive

form and will not be considered the owners or holders thereof under the indenture. Principal and interest payments, if any, on Series A debentures registered in the name of DTC or its nominee will be made to DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the relevant global security. Neither we, the trustee, any paying agent or the security registrar for the Series A debentures will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to nor payments made on account of beneficial interests in a global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

We expect that DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal or interest will credit immediately participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of the relevant global security as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a global security held through these participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of the participants.

Beneficial owners of interests in global securities who desire to convert their interests into common stock should contact their brokers or other participants or indirect participants through whom they hold such beneficial interests to obtain information on procedures, including proper forms and cut-off times, for submitting requests for conversion.

Unless and until they are exchanged in whole or in part for Series A debentures in definitive form, the global securities may not be transferred except as a whole by DTC to a nominee of DTC or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or another nominee of DTC. Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in same-day funds.

If DTC at any time is unwilling or unable to continue as a depositary, defaults in the performance of its duties as depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act or other applicable statute or regulation, and a successor depositary is not appointed by us within 90 days, we will issue Series A debentures in definitive form in exchange for the global securities relating to the Series A debentures. In addition, we may at any time and in our sole discretion determine not to have the Series A debentures or portions of the Series A debentures represented by one or more global securities and, in that event, we will notify the trustee and issue individual Series A debentures in exchange for the global security or securities representing the Series A debentures. Series A debentures so issued in definitive form will be issued as registered Series A debentures in denominations of \$1,000 original principal amount and integral multiples thereof, unless otherwise specified by us.

THE TRUSTEE

JPMorgan Chase Bank is the initial trustee, conversion agent, paying agent, transfer agent and registrar with respect to the Series A debentures. We perform mutual fund, transfer agent and related services for certain funds sponsored by JPMorgan Chase Bank.

GOVERNING LAW

The indenture and the Series A debentures are governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES B DEBENTURES

We issued \$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series B debentures in a private placement on August 12, 2003. The Series B debentures were issued under an indenture dated as of August 12, 2003, between us and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as trustee. Copies of the indenture are available from us upon request. The following description of the Series B debentures is only a summary and is not intended to be comprehensive. For purposes of this "Description of the Series B Debentures," the terms "DST," "we," "our," "ours" and "us" refer only to DST Systems, Inc. and not to any of our subsidiaries.

GENERAL

The Series B debentures are limited to \$300 million in aggregate original principal amount. The Series B debentures are issued in registered form without coupons only in denominations of \$1,000 original principal amount and integral multiples of \$1,000. We use the term "Series B debenture" in this prospectus to refer to each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures.

The Series B debentures will mature on August 15, 2023. On the maturity date of the Series B debentures, a holder will receive \$1,714.09, the accreted principal amount at maturity of a Series B debenture. The Series B debentures will bear regular cash interest at an annual rate equal to 3.625% per annum on the original principal amount from August 12, 2003, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for, until August 15, 2008. During such period, interest will be payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, each an interest payment date, beginning February 15, 2004, to the person in whose name a Series B debenture is registered at the close of business on the February 1 or August 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding the relevant interest payment date, each of which we refer to as a "record date".

Beginning August 15, 2008, we will not pay regular cash interest prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of each Series B debenture will increase daily at a rate of 3.625% per year, to produce the accreted principal amount at maturity. Prior to August 15, 2008, the accreted principal amount of a Series B debenture will be the original principal amount, and beginning on August 15, 2008, the accreted principal amount will be computed on a semiannual bond equivalent basis using a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.

If any date on which regular cash interest is payable, the maturity date, or any redemption date or purchase date (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, as described below) is not a business day, we will pay interest on the next business day (without any interest or other payment due on the delay). Regular cash interest on the Series B debentures will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The term "business day," when used with respect to any place of payment for the Series B debentures, means a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in that place of payment are authorized or obligated by law to close.

In addition, we will pay contingent interest on the Series B debentures under the circumstances described below under " -- Contingent Interest" and liquidated damages as set forth in the registration rights agreement.

Regular cash interest for the Series B debentures will accrue from and including the date of issue or from and including the last date in respect of which interest has been paid, as the case may be, to, but excluding, the earlier of (i) August 15, 2008 and (ii) the interest payment date or a purchase date upon a Fundamental Change, as the case may be.

Holders may present Series B debentures for conversion at the office of the conversion agent and may present Series B debentures for exchange or for registration of transfer at the office or agency maintained by us for that purpose in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York. We will not charge a service charge for any exchange or registration of transfer of Series B debentures. However, we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable for the registration of transfer or exchange. The trustee will serve as the initial conversion agent, paying agent, registrar and transfer agent for the Series B debentures. At any time, we may designate additional paying agents and transfer agents. However, at all times we will be required to maintain a paying agent and transfer agent for the Series B debentures in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York.

Any monies deposited with the trustee or any paying agent or then held by us in trust for the payment of principal and interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on the Series B debentures that remain unclaimed for two years after the date the payments became due and payable, shall, at our request, be repaid to us or released from trust, as applicable, and the holder of the Series B debenture shall thereafter look, as a general unsecured creditor, only to us for payment thereof.

RANKING

The Series B debentures are our direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. The Series B debentures rank equally in right of payment with all of our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. In addition, the Series B debentures effectively rank junior to any secured indebtedness that we may incur to the extent of the assets securing such indebtedness. We currently conduct part of our operations through our subsidiaries. Claims of creditors of those subsidiaries, including trade creditors and secured creditors, will generally have a claim to the assets of our subsidiaries that is superior to the claims of our creditors, including holders of the Series B debentures.

As of June 30, 2003, we had outstanding approximately \$406.8 million of unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness ranking equally in right of payment with the Series B debentures, and approximately \$13.9 million of secured indebtedness, excluding indebtedness of subsidiaries. As of June 30, 2003, our subsidiaries had approximately \$151.6 million of indebtedness outstanding, all of which ranks structurally senior to the Series B debentures. The indenture does not limit the amount of indebtedness we or our subsidiaries may incur.

CONTINGENT INTEREST

For the period from August 20, 2008 to February 14, 2009, and thereafter for any six-month interest period measured from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, we will pay contingent interest if the average trading price per Series B debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of a Series B debenture. The "five trading-day reference period" means the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the relevant six-month interest period.

The amount of contingent interest payable per Series B debenture in respect of the period from August 20, 2008 to February 14, 2009, and thereafter for any six-month interest period will be equal to 0.19% of the average trading price per Series B debenture for the applicable five trading-day reference period.

The record date and payment date for contingent interest, if any, will be the same as the regular record date and payment date, respectively, for the semi-annual interest payments on the Series B debentures.

The "trading price" is as defined under "-- Conversion Rights -- Conversion Upon Satisfaction of Trading Price Condition," provided that if at least one required bid for the Series B debentures is not obtained by the trustee, or in our reasonable judgment the bid quotations are not indicative of the secondary market value of the Series B debentures, then the trading price of the Series B debentures will equal (a) the applicable conversion rate of the Series B debentures multiplied by (b) the average of the last reported sale prices of our common stock for the applicable five trading-day reference period.

The "last reported sale price" of our common stock on any date means the closing sale price per share (or, if no closing sale price is reported, the average of the bid and asked prices or, if more than one in either case, the average of the average bid and the average asked prices) on that date as reported in composite transactions for the principal U.S. securities exchange on which our common stock is traded or, if our common stock is not listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market. The last reported sale price will be determined without reference to after-hours or extended market trading. If our common stock is not listed for trading on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange and not reported by the Nasdaq National Market on the relevant date, the "last reported sale price" will be the last quoted bid for our common stock in the over-the-counter market on the relevant date as reported by the National Quotation Bureau or similar organization. If our common stock is not so quoted, the "last reported sale price" will be the average of the midpoint of the last bid and ask prices for our common stock on the relevant date from each of at least three nationally recognized independent investment banking firms selected by us for this purpose.

"Trading day" means a day during which trading in securities generally occurs on the NYSE or, if our common stock is not listed on the NYSE, on the principal other U.S. national or regional securities exchange on which our common stock is then listed or, if our common stock is not listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, on the Nasdaq National Market or, if our common stock is not reported by the Nasdaq National Market, on the principal other market on which our common stock is then traded.

We will notify the holders of the Series B debentures upon a determination that they will be entitled to receive contingent interest with respect to a semi-annual interest period. In connection with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing information regarding the contingent interest determination in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

CONVERSION RIGHTS

Subject to the conditions and during the periods described below, holders may convert their Series B debentures into shares of our common stock initially at a conversion rate of 20.3732 shares of common stock per Series B debenture. The conversion price as of any date of determination is a dollar amount (initially \$49.08 per share of common stock) derived by dividing the accreted principal amount of a Series B debenture (which will be \$1,000 until August 15, 2008) by the conversion rate in effect on such date. The conversion rate and the corresponding conversion price in effect at any given time are referred to as the "applicable conversion rate" and the "applicable conversion price," respectively, and will be subject to adjustment as described below. A holder may convert fewer than all of such holder's Series B debentures so long as the Series B debentures converted are an integral multiple of \$1,000 original principal amount.

Upon conversion, we may choose to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock, as

described below. For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of conversion to a holder, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Except as otherwise described below, you will not receive any cash payment representing accrued and unpaid interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any) or increases on the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures upon conversion of a Series B debenture and we will not adjust the conversion rate to account for the accrued and unpaid interest, if any (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) or increases on the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures. Upon conversion we will deliver to you cash or shares of our common stock, as described below. Delivery of cash or shares of common stock will be deemed to satisfy our obligation to pay the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures, including accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any). Increases on the accreted principal amount and accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any (including contingent interest, if any) will be deemed paid in full rather than canceled, extinguished or forfeited. Notwithstanding conversion of any Series B debentures by a holder thereof, accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any, to the conversion date will be paid to such holder on the settlement date for such conversion.

If a holder converts Series B debentures, we will pay any documentary, stamp or similar issue or transfer tax due on the issuance of shares of our common stock upon the conversion, unless the tax is due because the holder requests the shares to be issued or delivered to a person other than the holder, in which case the holder will pay that tax.

To convert your Series B debenture into common stock you must do the following:

- o complete and manually sign the notice of conversion on the back of the Series B debenture or facsimile of the notice of conversion and deliver this notice to the conversion agent;
- o surrender the Series B debenture to the conversion agent;
- o if required, furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents;
- o if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes; and
- o if required, pay funds equal to interest, if any, (including contingent interest, if any) payable on the next interest payment date.

If your interest is a beneficial interest in a global Series B debenture, to convert you must comply with the last three requirements listed above and comply with the DTC's procedures for converting a beneficial interest in a global Series B debenture. The conversion date will be the date on which all of the foregoing requirements have been satisfied. Settlement of our obligation to deliver shares or cash with respect to a conversion will occur on the dates described below under "-- Payment Upon Conversion." A certificate for the number of full shares of our common stock into which any Series B debentures are converted, or cash in lieu thereof, together with any cash payment for fractional shares, will be delivered through the conversion agent, other than in the case of holders of Series B debentures in book-entry form, which shares or cash will be delivered in accordance with DTC customary practices.

If a holder has already delivered a purchase notice as described under either "-- Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" or "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" with respect to a Series B debenture, however, the holder may not surrender that Series B debenture for conversion until the holder has

withdrawn the purchase notice in accordance with the indenture.

Holders of Series B debentures at the close of business on a regular record date will receive payment of interest, if any, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, payable on the corresponding interest payment date, notwithstanding the conversion of such Series B debentures at any time after the close of business on such regular record date. Series B Debentures surrendered for conversion by a holder during the period from the close of business on any regular record date to the opening of business on the immediately following interest payment date must be accompanied by payment of an amount equal to the interest, if any, including contingent interest, if any, that the holder is to receive on the Series B debentures; provided, however, that no such payment need be made if (1) we have specified a redemption date that is after a record date and on or prior to the immediately following interest payment date, (2) we have specified a purchase date following a Fundamental Change that is during such period or (3) any overdue interest (including overdue contingent interest, if any) exists at the time of conversion with respect to such Series B debentures, to the extent of such overdue interest.

PAYMENT UPON CONVERSION

CONVERSION ON OR PRIOR TO THE FINAL NOTICE DATE. In the event that we receive your notice of conversion on or prior to the day that is 20 days prior to stated maturity or, with respect to Series B debentures being redeemed, the applicable redemption date (the "final notice date"), the following procedures will apply:

If we choose to satisfy all or any portion of our obligation to deliver common stock upon conversion (the "conversion obligation") in cash, we will notify you through the trustee of the dollar amount to be satisfied in cash (which must be expressed either as 100% of the conversion obligation or as a fixed dollar amount) at any time on or before the date that is two business days following receipt of your notice of conversion ("cash settlement notice period"). If we timely elect to pay cash for any portion of the shares otherwise issuable to you, you may retract the conversion notice at any time during the two business day period immediately following the cash settlement notice period ("conversion retraction period"). If no such election is made, no such retraction can be made (and a conversion notice shall be irrevocable).

Settlement amounts will be computed as follows:

- If we elect to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in shares, we will deliver to you a number of shares, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures, equal to the applicable conversion rate. In addition, if on the date you submit your notice of conversion there exists a registration default under the registration rights agreement, and the shares of common stock you will receive on conversion are neither registered under the Securities Act nor immediately freely saleable pursuant to Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act, we will deliver to you additional shares as liquidated damages (the "liquidated damages shares") equal to 3% of the applicable conversion rate for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures. We will pay cash for all fractional shares of common stock. The cash payment for fractional shares will be based on the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the conversion date.
- o If we elect to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in cash, we will deliver to you, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures, cash in an amount equal to the product of the applicable conversion rate and the average last reported sale price of our common stock for the 10 trading-day period beginning the day after

the conversion retraction period (the "cash settlement averaging period").

o If we elect to satisfy a fixed portion (other than 100%) of the conversion obligation in cash, we will deliver to you such cash amount ("cash amount") and a number of shares, for each \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures, equal to the applicable conversion rate, plus liquidated damages shares, if any, minus the number of shares equal to the sum, for each day of the cash settlement averaging period, of (x) 10% of the cash amount, divided by (y) the last reported price of our common stock; provided, however, that the number of shares will not be less than zero. We will pay cash for all fractional shares of common stock. The cash payment for fractional shares will be based on the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the conversion date.

If we choose to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash and the conversion notice has not been retracted, then settlement (in cash and/or shares) will occur on the business day following the cash settlement averaging period. If we choose to satisfy the entire conversion obligation in shares of our common stock then settlement will occur on the third business day following the conversion date.

CONVERSION AFTER THE FINAL NOTICE DATE. In the event that we receive your notice of conversion after the final notice date, we will not send individual notices of our election to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash. Instead, if we choose to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash after the final notice date, we will send, on or prior to final notice date, a single notice to the trustee of the dollar amount to be satisfied in cash (which must be expressed either as 100% of the conversion obligation or as a fixed dollar amount). Settlement amounts will be computed and settlement dates will be determined in the same manner as set forth above under "-- Conversion on or Prior to the Final Notice Date" except that the "cash settlement averaging period" shall be the 10 trading-day period beginning on the day after receipt of your notice of conversion. If we do not elect to satisfy all or any portion of the conversion obligation in cash, then settlement will occur on the first business day following the conversion date.

CONDITIONS TO CONVERSION

Holders may surrender their Series B debentures for conversion into shares of our common stock prior to stated maturity only under the circumstances described below. For a discussion of the federal income tax consequences of a conversion of the Series B debentures into our common stock, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

CONVERSION UPON SATISFACTION OF SALE PRICE CONDITION. A holder may surrender any of its Series B debentures for conversion into shares of our common stock during any calendar quarter after September 30, 2003 (and only during such calendar quarter) if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the previous calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price (initially 120% of \$49.08, or \$58.90), which we refer to as the "conversion trigger price".

The applicable conversion price of a Series B debenture at any time is dependent upon the accreted principal amount of a Series B debenture at that time and therefore both the applicable conversion price and the conversion trigger price will increase following August 15, 2008 as the accreted principal amount of a Series B debenture increases. The following table sets forth the conversion trigger prices at August 15 of each year beginning 2008.

CONVERSION TRIGGER PRICES*

AUGUST 15,	APPLICABLE CONVERSION PRICE	CONVERSION TRIGGER PRICE
2008	\$49.08	\$58.90
2009	\$50.88	\$61.06
2010	\$52.74	\$63.29
2011	\$54.67	\$65.60
2012	\$56.67	\$68.00
2013	\$58.74	\$70.49
2014	\$60.89	\$73.07
2015	\$63.12	\$75.74
2016	\$65.43	\$78.51
2017	\$67.82	\$81.38
2018	\$70.30	\$84.36
2019	\$72.87	\$87.45
2020	\$75.54	\$90.65
2021	\$78.30	\$93.96
2022	\$81.17	\$97.40
2023	\$84.13	\$100.96

^{*} This table assumes no events have occurred that would require an adjustment to the conversion rate.

CONVERSION UPON SATISFACTION OF TRADING PRICE CONDITION. A holder may surrender any of its Series B debentures for conversion into our common stock prior to the stated maturity during the five business days immediately following any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of Series B debentures (as determined following a request by a holder of the Series B debentures in accordance with the procedures described below) for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate of such Series B debentures on each such day; provided, however, that a holder may not convert Series B debentures in reliance on this provision after August 15, 2018 if on any trading day during such five consecutive trading-day period the last reported sale price of our common stock was between the applicable conversion price of the Series B debentures and 120% of the applicable conversion price of the Series B debentures.

The "trading price" of the Series B debentures on any date of determination means the average of the secondary market bid quotations per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures obtained by the trustee for \$10,000,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures at approximately 3:30 p.m., New York City time, on such determination date from three independent nationally recognized securities dealers we select; provided that if three such bids cannot reasonably be obtained by the trustee, but two such bids are obtained, then the average of the two bids shall be used, and if only one such bid can reasonably be obtained by the trustee, that one bid shall be used. If the trustee cannot reasonably obtain at least one bid for \$10,000,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures from a nationally recognized securities dealer, or in our reasonable judgment, the bid quotations are not indicative of the secondary market value of \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures, then the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures will be deemed to be less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate.

In connection with any conversion upon satisfaction of the above trading pricing condition, the trustee shall have no obligation to determine the trading

price of the Series B debentures unless we have requested such determination; and we shall have no obligation to make such request unless a holder provides us with reasonable evidence that the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures would be less than 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate. At such time, we shall instruct the trustee to determine the trading price of the Series B debentures beginning on the next trading day and on each successive trading day until the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount of the Series B debentures is greater than or equal to 95% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the applicable conversion rate.

CONVERSION UPON REDEMPTION. If we elect to redeem the Series B debentures, holders may convert Series B debentures into our common stock at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the redemption date, even if the Series B debentures are not otherwise convertible at such time.

CONVERSION UPON SPECIFIED CORPORATE TRANSACTIONS. If we elect to:

- distribute to all holders of our common stock certain rights or warrants entitling them to purchase, for a period expiring within 60 days after the date of the distribution, shares of our common stock at a price per share of less than the market price of a share of our common stock on the record date for the distribution, or
- o distribute to all holders of our common stock our assets, debt securities or certain rights to purchase our securities, which distribution has a per share value as determined by our board of directors exceeding 10% of the last reported sale price of a share of our common stock on the trading day immediately preceding the declaration date for such distribution,

we must notify the holders of the Series B debentures at least 20 business days prior to the ex-dividend date for such distribution. Once we have given such notice, holders may surrender their Series B debentures for conversion at any time until the earlier of the close of business on the business day immediately prior to the ex-dividend date or our announcement that such distribution will not take place, even if the Series B debentures are not otherwise convertible at such time; provided, however, that a holder may not exercise this right to convert if the holder may participate in the distribution without conversion. The "ex-dividend date" is the first date upon which a sale of the common stock, regular way on the relevant exchange or in the relevant market for our common stock, does not automatically transfer the right to receive the relevant dividend or distribution from the seller of the common stock to its buyer.

In addition, if we are party to a consolidation, merger or binding share exchange pursuant to which our common stock would be converted into cash, securities or other property, a holder may surrender Series B debentures for conversion at any time from and after the date which is 15 days prior to the anticipated effective date of the transaction until 15 days after the actual effective date of such transaction (or if such transaction constitutes a Fundamental Change, until the business day immediately preceding the applicable Fundamental Change purchase date). If we engage in certain reclassifications of our common stock or are a party to a consolidation, merger, binding share exchange or transfer of all or substantially all of our assets pursuant to which our common stock is converted into cash, securities or other property, then at the effective time of the transaction, the right to convert a Series B debenture into our common stock will be changed into a right to convert a Series B debenture into the kind and amount of cash, securities or other property that the holder would have received if the holder had converted its Series B debentures immediately prior to the transaction. If the transaction also constitutes a Fundamental Change, as defined below, a holder can require us to

purchase all or a portion of its Series B debentures as described below under "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder."

The Exchange (described in Summary--Recent Developments" and "Description of the Exchange), if consummated, will not constitute a specified corporate transaction permitting conversion.

CONVERSION RATE ADJUSTMENTS

The applicable conversion rate will be subject to adjustment, without duplication, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

- (1) the payment of dividends and other distributions on our common stock payable exclusively in shares of our common stock,
- (2) the distribution to all holders of our common stock of rights or warrants that allow the holders to purchase shares of our common stock for a period expiring within 60 days from the date of issuance of the rights or warrants at less than the market price on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive the rights or warrants,
 - (3) subdivisions or combinations of our common stock,
- (4) distributions to all holders of our common stock of our assets, debt securities, shares of our capital stock or rights or warrants to purchase our securities (excluding any dividend, distribution or issuance covered by clause (1) or (2) above and any dividend or distribution paid exclusively in cash), the conversion rate will be increased by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,
 - (a) the numerator of which is the current market price of our common stock plus the fair market value, as determined by our board of directors, of the portion of those assets, debt securities, shares of capital stock or rights or warrants so distributed applicable to one share of common stock, and
 - (b) the denominator of which is the current market price of our common stock.

The "current market price" of our common stock means the average of the last reported sale prices for the first 10 trading days from, and including, the ex-dividend date (as defined above in "--Conditions to Conversion--Conversion Upon Specified Corporate Transactions") for such dividend or distribution.

In the event that we make a distribution to all holders of our common stock consisting of capital stock of, or similar equity interests in, a subsidiary or other business unit of ours, the fair market value of the securities so distributed will be based on the average of the closing sales prices of those securities for each of the 10 trading days commencing on and including the fifth trading day after the ex-dividend date (as defined above in "--Conditions to Conversion--Conversion Upon Specified Corporate Transactions") for such dividend or distribution on the NYSE or such other national or regional exchange or market on which the securities are then listed or quoted.

(5) we make distributions consisting exclusively of cash to all holders of our common stock, excluding any cash dividend on our common stock to the extent that the aggregate cash dividend per share of our common stock in any quarter does not exceed \$0.0025 (the "dividend threshold amount") (the dividend threshold amount is subject to adjustment

on the same basis as the conversion rate, provided that no adjustment will be made to the dividend threshold amount for any adjustment made to the conversion rate pursuant to this clause (5)), in which event the conversion rate will be adjusted by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,

- (a) the numerator of which will be the current market price of our common stock plus the amount per share of such dividend or distribution and
- (b) the denominator of which will be the current market price of our common stock.

If an adjustment is required to be made under this clause (5) as a result of a distribution that is a dividend, the adjustment would be based upon the amount by which the distribution exceeds the dividend threshold amount. If an adjustment is required to be made under this clause (5) as a result of a distribution that is not a dividend, the adjustment would be based upon the full amount of the distribution.

- (6) we or one of our subsidiaries makes a payment in respect of a tender offer or exchange offer for our common stock to the extent that the cash and value of any other consideration included in the payment per share of our common stock exceeds the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the last date on which tenders or exchanges may be made pursuant to such tender or exchange offer, the conversion rate will be adjusted by multiplying the conversion rate by a fraction,
 - (a) the numerator of which will be the sum of (x) the fair market value, as determined by our board of directors, of the aggregate consideration payable for all shares of our common stock we purchase in such tender or exchange offer and (y) the product of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding less any such purchased shares and the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the expiration of the tender or exchange offer and
 - (b) the denominator of which will be the product of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding, including any such purchased shares, and the last reported sale price of our common stock on the trading day next succeeding the expiration of the tender or exchange offer.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an adjustment pursuant to clauses (4), (5) or (6) above, in no event will the conversion rate exceed 28.5225, subject to adjustment pursuant to clauses (1), (2) and (3) above.

To the extent that we have a rights plan in effect upon conversion of the Series B debentures into common stock (including the rights plan described in "Description of Capital Stock--Rights Plan" below), the holder will receive, in addition to the common stock, the rights under the rights plan unless the rights have separated from the common stock prior to the time of conversion, in which case the conversion rate will be adjusted at the time of separation as if we distributed to all holders of our common stock, our assets, debt securities, shares of our capital stock or rights or warrants to purchase our securities as described in clause (4) above.

In addition to these adjustments, we may increase the conversion rate as our board of directors considers advisable to avoid or diminish any income tax to holders of our common stock or rights to purchase our common stock resulting from any dividend or distribution of stock (or rights to acquire stock) or from

any event treated as such for income tax purposes. We may also, from time to time, to the extent permitted by applicable law, increase the conversion rate by any amount for any period of at least 20 business days if our board of directors has determined that such increase would be in our best interests. If our board of directors makes such a determination, it will be conclusive. We will give holders of Series B debentures at least 15 days' notice of such an increase in the conversion rate.

"Market price" means the average of the last reported sale prices per share of our common stock for the 10 trading-day period ending on the applicable date of determination (if the applicable date of determination is a trading day or, if not, then on the last trading day prior to the applicable date of determination), appropriately adjusted to take into account the occurrence, during the period commencing on the first of the trading days during the 10 trading-day period and ending on the applicable date of determination, of any event that would result in an adjustment of the conversion rate under the indenture.

The applicable conversion rate will not be adjusted:

- o upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock pursuant to any present or future plan providing for the reinvestment of dividends or interest payable on our securities and the investment of additional optional amounts in shares of our common stock under any plan,
- upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock or options or rights to purchase those shares pursuant to any present or future employee, director or consultant benefit plan or program of or assumed by us or any of our subsidiaries,
- upon the issuance of any shares of our common stock pursuant to any option, warrant, right or exercisable, exchangeable or convertible security not described in the preceding bullet and outstanding as of the date the Series B debentures were first issued (no adjustment will be made for the issuance of common stock pursuant to conversion of Series A debentures),
- o for a change in the par value of the common stock, or
- o for accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest or liquidated damages, if any, or accretion of the principal amount of Series B debentures.

No adjustment in the applicable conversion rate will be required unless the adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1% of the applicable conversion rate. If the adjustment is not made because the adjustment does not change the applicable conversion rate by more than 1%, then the adjustment that is not made will be carried forward and taken into account in any future adjustment.

In the event of:

- o a taxable distribution to holders of shares of common stock which results in an adjustment of the conversion rate; or
- o an increase in the conversion rate at our discretion,

the holders of the Series B debentures may, in certain circumstances, be deemed to have received a distribution subject to U.S. federal income tax as a dividend. In addition, for Non-U.S. Holders of Series B debentures, this deemed distribution may be subject to U.S. federal withholding requirements. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

No sinking fund is provided for the Series B debentures. Prior to August 20, 2008, the Series B debentures will not be redeemable. On or after August 20, 2008, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Series B debentures at any time, upon not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date by mail to the trustee, the paying agent and each holder of Series B debentures.

If redeemed at our option, the Series B debentures will be redeemed at a redemption price equal to the accreted principal amount, plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. The table below shows the redemption prices of a Series B debenture on August 15, 2008, on each August 15 thereafter prior to maturity and at maturity on August 15, 2023 (assuming there is no accrued and unpaid cash interest, contingent interest or liquidated damages). In addition, the redemption price of a Series B debenture that is redeemed between the dates listed below would include an additional amount reflecting the additional principal amount that has accreted on such Series B debenture since the immediately preceding date in the table below.

REDEMPTION DATE: AUGUST 15,	SERIES B DEBENTURE ISSUE PRICE(1)	ACCRETION AMOUNT(2)	REDEMPTION PRIC
2008	\$1,000.00	\$0.00	\$1,000.00
2009	\$1,000.00	\$36.58	\$1,036.58
2010	\$1,000.00	\$74.50	\$1,074.50
2011	\$1,000.00	\$113.80	\$1,113.80
2012	\$1,000.00	\$154.54	\$1,154.54
2013	\$1,000.00	\$196.77	\$1,196.77
2014	\$1,000.00	\$240.55	\$1,240.55
2015	\$1,000.00	\$285.92	\$1,285.92
2016	\$1,000.00	\$332.96	\$1,332.96
2017	\$1,000.00	\$381.72	\$1,381.72
2018	\$1,000.00	\$432.26	\$1,432.26
2019	\$1,000.00	\$484.65	\$1,484.65
2020	\$1,000.00	\$538.96	\$1,538.96
2021	\$1,000.00	\$595.25	\$1,595.25
2022	\$1,000.00	\$653.60	\$1,653.60
2023	\$1,000.00	\$714.09	\$1,714.09

If we decide to redeem fewer than all of the outstanding Series B debentures, the trustee will select the Series B debentures to be redeemed (in original principal amounts of \$1,000 or integral multiples thereof) by lot, on a pro rata basis or by another method the trustee considers fair and appropriate.

If the trustee selects a portion of your Series B debenture for partial redemption and you convert a portion of the same Series B debenture, the converted portion will be deemed to be from the portion selected for redemption.

In the event of any redemption in part, we will not be required to issue, register the transfer of or exchange any Series B debenture during a period of 15 days before the mailing of the redemption notice.

For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of

our redemption of the Series B debentures, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

PURCHASE OF SERIES B DEBENTURES BY US AT THE OPTION OF THE HOLDER

Holders have the right to require us to purchase the Series B debentures on August 15, 2008, August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018 (each, a "purchase date"). We will pay cash for all Series B debentures purchased by us on August 15, 2008. For purchases on August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018 we may, at our option, pay the purchase price in cash, shares of our common stock, or any combination thereof. We may pay all or a portion of the purchase price in shares of our common stock as long as our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdaq National Market and if certain other conditions specified below are satisfied. For purchases on August 15, 2013 and August 15, 2018, if we elect to pay the purchase price, in whole or in part, in shares of our common stock, the number of shares of common stock to be delivered by us will be equal to the portion of the purchase price to be paid in common stock divided by 97.5% of the market price (as defined under "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Conversion Rate Adjustments" above) as of the third business day prior to the purchase date.

We will be required to purchase any outstanding Series B debentures for which a holder delivers a written purchase notice to the paying agent. This notice must be delivered during the period beginning at any time from the opening of business on the date that is 20 business days prior to the relevant purchase date and ending on the close of business on the business day prior to the purchase date. If the purchase notice is given and withdrawn during such period, we will not be obligated to purchase the related Series B debentures. Our purchase obligation will be subject to some additional conditions as described in the indenture. Also, as described in the "Risk Factors" section of this offering memorandum under the caption "Risks Related to the Debentures --We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to purchase the debentures upon a Fundamental Change or other purchase date, as required by the indenture governing the debentures," we may not have funds sufficient to purchase the Series B debentures when we are required to do so or may be prohibited from doing so under the terms of other indebtedness. Our failure to purchase the Series B debentures when we are required to do so will constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series B debentures.

The purchase price payable will be equal to 100% of the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. The table below shows the purchases prices of a Series B debenture on each of the purchase dates. The purchases prices below do not include any additional amounts reflecting any accrued and unpaid cash interest (including contingent interest, if any) and accrued and unpaid liquidated damages, if any.

	SERIES B DEBENTURE ISSUE		
PURCHASE DATE: AUGUST 15,	PRICE(1)	ACCRETION AMOUNT(2)	REDEMPTION PRICE(1)
2008	\$1,000.00	\$0.00	\$1,000.00
2013	\$1,000.00	\$196.77	\$1,196.77
2018	\$1,000.00	\$432.26	\$1,432.26

For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of our purchase of the Series B debentures, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

On or before the 20th business day prior to each purchase date, we will provide to the trustee, the paying agent and to all holders of the Series B debentures at their addresses shown in the register of the registrar, and to beneficial owners as required by applicable law, a notice stating, among other things:

- o for purchases on or after August 15, 2013, whether we will pay the purchase price of the Series B debentures in cash, shares of our common stock or a combination thereof, specifying the percentages of each;
- o for purchases on or after August 15, 2013, if we elect to pay in shares of our common stock, the method of calculating the market price of the shares of common stock;
- o the purchase price;
- o the name and address of the paying agent and the conversion agent;
- o the conversion rate and any adjustments to the conversion rate;
- o that the Series B debentures with respect to which a purchase notice has been given by the holder may be converted only if the holder withdraws the purchase notice in accordance with the terms of the indenture; and
- o the procedures that holders must follow to require us to purchase their Series B debentures.

In connection with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing this information in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

To exercise your purchase right, you must deliver, before the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the purchase date, the Series B debentures to be purchased, duly endorsed for transfer, together with the form attached to the Series B debentures entitled "Purchase Notice" duly completed, to the paying agent. A notice electing to require us to purchase your Series B debentures must state:

- o if certificated Series B debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the Series B debentures,
- o the portion of the original principal amount of Series B debentures to be purchased, in integral multiples of \$1,000,
- of or purchases on or after August 15, 2013, in the event we elect, pursuant to the notice that we are required to give, to pay the purchase price in shares of our common stock, in whole or in part, but the purchase price is ultimately to be paid to the holder entirely in cash because any condition to payment of the purchase price or portion of the purchase price in common stock is not satisfied prior to the close of business on the purchase date, as described below, whether the holder elects: (a) to withdraw the purchase notice as to some or all of the Series B debentures to which it relates, or (b) to receive cash in respect of the entire purchase price for all Series B debentures or portions of Series B debentures subject to such purchase

notice, provided, however, that if the holder fails to indicate its choice with respect to such election, the holder will be deemed to have elected to receive cash in respect of the entire purchase price for all Series B debentures subject to the purchase notice in these circumstances, and

o that the Series B debentures are to be purchased by us pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Series B debentures and the indenture.

If the Series B debentures are not in certificated form, your notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

We may not purchase any Series B debentures at the option of holders if the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures has been accelerated, and such acceleration has not been rescinded.

You may withdraw any purchase notice (in whole or in part) by a written notice of withdrawal delivered to the paying agent prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the purchase date. The notice of withdrawal must state:

- o the original principal amount of the withdrawn Series B debentures,
- o if certificated Series B debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the withdrawn Series B debentures, and
- o the original principal amount, if any, that remains subject to the purchase notice.

If the Series B debentures are not in certificated form, your withdrawal notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

You must either effect book-entry transfer or deliver the Series B debentures, together with necessary endorsements, to the office of the paying agent after delivery of the purchase notice to receive payment of the purchase price. You will receive payment promptly following the later of the purchase date and the time of book-entry transfer or the delivery of the Series B debentures. If the paying agent holds money or securities sufficient to pay the purchase price of the Series B debentures on the purchase date, then on the business day following the purchase date:

- the Series B debentures will cease to be outstanding and cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, will cease to accrue and the principal amount will cease to accrete (whether or not book-entry transfer of the debentures is made or whether or not the Series B debentures are delivered to the paying agent), and
- all other rights of the holder will terminate (other than the right to receive the purchase price upon delivery or transfer of the Series B debentures).

In connection with any purchase offer pursuant to these provisions, to the extent applicable and required by law, we will:

- o comply with the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-1 and any other tender offer rules under the Exchange Act which may then be applicable; and
- o file Schedule TO or any other required schedule under the Exchange Act .

Because the market price of our common stock is determined prior to the applicable purchase date, holders of Series B debentures bear the market risk with respect to the value of common stock to be received from the date the market price is determined to such purchase date.

Our right to purchase Series B debentures, in whole or in part, with shares of our common stock for purchases on or after August 15, 2013, is subject to various conditions, including:

- o the registration of the common stock under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, if required;
- o any necessary qualification or registration under applicable state securities law or the availability of an exemption from such qualification and registration;
- o the information necessary to calculate the market price is published in a daily newspaper of national circulation; and
- o our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdaq National Market.

If such conditions are not satisfied prior to the close of business on the purchase date, we will pay the purchase price of the Series B debentures entirely in cash. We may not change the form, components or percentages of components of consideration to be paid for the Series B debentures once we have given the notice that we are required to give to holders of Series B debentures, except as described in the preceding sentence.

FUNDAMENTAL CHANGE REQUIRES PURCHASE OF SERIES B DEBENTURES BY US AT THE OPTION OF THE HOLDER

If a Fundamental Change (as defined below in this section) occurs at any time prior to maturity, holders will have the right, at their option, to require us to purchase any or all of their Series B debentures, or any portion of the original principal amount thereof, that is equal to \$1,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000. The price we are required to pay (the "Fundamental Change purchase price") is equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures to be purchased plus accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the Fundamental Change purchase date, unless such Fundamental Change purchase date falls after a record date and on or prior to the corresponding interest payment date, in which case we will pay the full amount of accrued and unpaid cash interest, if any, payable on such interest payment date to the holder of record at the close of business on the corresponding record date. For a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of our purchase of the Series B debentures, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

If we elect to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price, in whole or in part, in shares of our common stock, the number of shares of common stock to be delivered by us will be equal to the portion of the Fundamental Change purchase price to be paid in common stock divided by 97.5% of the market price (as defined under "-- Conditions to Conversion -- Adjustments to Conversion Rate" above) of one share of our common stock as of the third business day prior to the Fundamental Change purchase date.

Because the market price of the common stock is determined prior to the applicable Fundamental Change purchase date, holders of Series B debentures bear the market risk with respect to the value of the common stock to be received from the date such market price is determined to such Fundamental Change purchase date.

A "Fundamental Change" will be deemed to have occurred at any time after the Series B debentures are originally issued that any of the following occurs:

- (1) our common stock or other common stock into which the Series B debentures are convertible is neither listed for trading on a U.S. national securities exchange nor approved for trading on the Nasdaq National Market or another established automated over-the-counter trading market in the United States,
- (2) a "person" or "group" (within the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) other than us, our subsidiaries or our or their employee benefit plans, files a Schedule TO or any schedule, form or report under the Exchange Act disclosing that such person or group has become the direct or indirect ultimate "beneficial owner," as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, of our common equity representing more than 50% of the voting power of our common equity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors,
- (3) consummation of any share exchange, consolidation or merger of us pursuant to which our common stock will be converted into cash, securities or other property or any sale, lease or other transfer in one transaction or a series of transactions of all or substantially all of the consolidated assets of us and our subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to any person other than us or one or more of our subsidiaries; provided, however, that a transaction where the holders of our common equity immediately prior to such transaction have directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of common equity of the continuing or surviving corporation or transferee entitled to vote generally in the election of directors immediately after such event shall not be a Fundamental Change, or
- (4) continuing directors (as defined below in this section) cease to constitute at least a majority of our board of directors.
- If the Exchange (described in "Summary--Recent Developments" and "Description of the Exchange") is consummated, it will not constitute a fundamental change.

A Fundamental Change will not be deemed to have occurred in respect of any of the foregoing, however, if either:

- (1) the last reported sale price of our common stock for any five trading days within the 10 consecutive trading days ending immediately before the later of the Fundamental Change or the public announcement thereof, equals or exceeds 105% of the applicable conversion price of the Series B debentures in effect immediately before the Fundamental Change or the public announcement thereof, or
- (2) all or substantially all of the consideration, excluding cash payments for fractional shares, in the transaction or transactions constituting the Fundamental Change consists of shares of capital stock traded on a national securities exchange or quoted on the Nasdaq National Market or which will be so traded or quoted when issued or exchanged in connection with a Fundamental Change (these securities being referred to as "publicly traded securities") and as a result of this transaction or transactions the Series B debentures become convertible into such publicly traded securities, excluding cash payments for fractional shares.

For purposes of the above paragraph the term "capital stock" of any person means any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents however designated of corporate stock or other equity participations, including partnership interests, whether general or limited, of such person and any rights

(other than debt securities convertible or exchangeable into an equity interest), warrants or options to acquire an equity interest in such person.

"Continuing director" means a director who either was a member of our board of directors on the date of this offering memorandum or who becomes a member of our board of directors subsequent to that date and whose appointment, election or nomination for election by our stockholders is duly approved by a majority of the continuing directors on our board of directors at the time of such approval, either by a specific vote or by approval of the proxy statement issued by us on behalf of the board of directors in which such individual is named as nominee for director.

On or before the 30th day after the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, we will provide to all holders of the Series B debentures and the trustee and paying agent a notice of the occurrence of the Fundamental Change and of the resulting purchase right. Such notice shall state, among other things:

- whether we will pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series B debentures in cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof, specifying the percentages of each,
- o if we elect to pay in shares of common stock, the method of calculating the market price of the common stock,
- o the events causing a Fundamental Change,
- o the date of the Fundamental Change,
- o the last date on which a holder may exercise the purchase right,
- o the Fundamental Change purchase price,
- o the Fundamental Change purchase date,
- o the name and address of the paying agent and the conversion agent,
- o the conversion rate and any adjustments to the conversion rate,
- o that the Series B debentures with respect to which a Fundamental Change purchase notice has been given by the holder may be converted only if the holder withdraws the Fundamental Change purchase notice in accordance with the terms of the indenture, and
- o the procedures that holders must follow to require us to purchase their Series B debentures.

Simultaneously with providing such notice, we will issue a press release and publish a notice containing this information in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or publish the information on our web site or through such other public medium as we may use at that time.

To exercise your purchase right, you must deliver, before the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the Fundamental Change purchase date, the Series B debentures to be purchased, duly endorsed for transfer, together with the form attached to the Series B debentures entitled "Form of Fundamental Change Purchase Notice" duly completed, to the paying agent. Your purchase notice must state:

- o if certificated, the certificate numbers of their Series B debentures to be delivered for purchase,
- o the portion of the original principal amount of Series B debentures to

be purchased, which must be \$1,000 or an integral multiple thereof,

- in the event we elect, pursuant to the notice that we are required to give, to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price in our common stock, in whole or in part, but the Fundamental Change purchase price is ultimately to be paid to the holder entirely in cash because any condition to payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price or portion of the Fundamental Change purchase price in common stock is not satisfied prior to the close of business on the Fundamental Change purchase date, as described below, whether the holder elects: (a) to withdraw the Fundamental Change purchase notice as to some or all of the Series B debentures to which it relates, or (b) to receive cash in respect of the entire Fundamental Change purchase price for all Series B debentures or portions of Series B debentures subject to such Fundamental Change purchase notice; provided, however, that if the holder fails to indicate the holder's choice with respect to the election described in this bullet point, the holder will be deemed to have elected to receive cash in respect of the entire Fundamental Change purchase price for all Series B debentures subject to the Fundamental Change purchase notice in these circumstances, and
- o that the Series B debentures are to be purchased by us pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Series B debentures and the indenture.

If the Series B debentures are not in certificated form, their Fundamental Change purchase notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

Holders may withdraw any Fundamental Change purchase notice (in whole or in part) by a written notice of withdrawal delivered to the paying agent prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the Fundamental Change purchase date. The notice of withdrawal shall state:

- o the original principal amount of the withdrawn Series B debentures,
- o if certificated Series B debentures have been issued, the certificate numbers of the withdrawn Series B debentures, and
- o the original principal amount, if any, that remains subject to the Fundamental Change purchase notice.

If the Series B debentures are not in certificated form, their withdrawal notice must comply with appropriate DTC procedures.

We will be required to purchase the Series B debentures no less than 20 and no more than 35 business days after the date of our notice of the occurrence of the relevant Fundamental Change, subject to extension to comply with applicable law. You may either effect book-entry transfer or deliver the Series B debentures, together with necessary endorsements, to the office of the paying agent after delivery of the Fundamental Change purchase notice to receive payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price. Holders will receive payment of the Fundamental Change purchase price promptly following the later of the Fundamental Change purchase date or the time of book-entry transfer or the delivery of the Series B debentures. If the paying agent holds money or securities sufficient to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series B debentures on the Fundamental Change purchase date, then on the business day following the Fundamental Change purchase date:

the Series B debentures will cease to be outstanding and cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, will cease to accrue and principal will cease to accrete (whether or not book-entry transfer of the Series B debentures is made or whether or not the Series B debenture is delivered to the paying

agent), and

o all other rights of the holder will terminate (other than the right to receive the Fundamental Change purchase price upon delivery or transfer of the Series B debentures).

In connection with any purchase offer pursuant to these provisions, and to the extent applicable and required by law, we will:

- o comply with the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-1 and any other tender offer rules under the Exchange Act which may then be applicable; and
- o file Schedule TO or any other required schedule under the Exchange $\operatorname{\mathsf{Act}}$.

The rights of the holders to require us to purchase their Series B debentures upon a Fundamental Change could discourage a potential acquirer of us. The Fundamental Change purchase feature, however, is not the result of management's knowledge of any specific effort to accumulate shares of our common stock, to obtain control of us by any means or part of a plan by management to adopt a series of anti-takeover provisions. Instead, the Fundamental Change purchase feature is a standard term contained in other offerings of debt securities similar to the Series B debentures that have been marketed by certain of the initial purchasers. The terms of the Fundamental Change purchase feature resulted from negotiations between the initial purchasers and us.

The term Fundamental Change is limited to specified transactions and may not include other events that might adversely affect our financial condition. In addition, the requirement that we offer to purchase the Series B debentures upon a Fundamental Change may not protect holders in the event of a highly leveraged transaction, reorganization, merger or similar transaction involving us.

No Series B debentures may be purchased at the option of holders upon a Fundamental Change if the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures has been accelerated, and such acceleration has not been rescinded.

The definition of Fundamental Change includes a phrase relating to the conveyance, transfer, sale, lease or disposition of "all or substantially all" of our consolidated assets. There is no precise, established definition of the phrase "substantially all" under applicable law. Accordingly, the ability of a holder of the Series B debentures to require us to purchase its Series B debentures as a result of the conveyance, transfer, sale, lease or other disposition of less than all of our assets may be uncertain.

If a Fundamental Change were to occur, we may not have enough funds to pay the Fundamental Change purchase price or we may be prohibited from doing so under the terms of other indebtedness. See "Risk Factors" under the caption "Risks Related to the Debentures -- We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to purchase the debentures upon a Fundamental Change or other purchase date, as required by the indenture governing the debentures." Our failure to purchase the Series B debentures when required following a Fundamental Change will constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series B debentures. In addition, we have, and may in the future incur, other indebtedness with similar change in control provisions permitting holders to accelerate or to require us to purchase our indebtedness upon the occurrence of similar events or on some specific dates, including the Series A debentures.

Our right to purchase Series B debentures, in whole or in part, with common stock is subject to our satisfying various conditions, including:

- o the registration of the common stock under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, if required;
- o any necessary qualification or registration under applicable state securities law or the availability of an exemption from such qualification and registration;
- o the information necessary to calculate the market price is published in a daily newspaper of national circulation; and
- o our common stock is then listed on a national securities exchange or traded on the Nasdag National Market.

If such conditions are not satisfied prior to the close of business on the Fundamental Change purchase date, we will pay the Fundamental Change purchase price of the Series B debentures entirely in cash. We may not change the form, components or percentages of components of consideration to be paid for the Series B debentures once we have given the notice that we are required to give to holders of Series B debentures, except as described in the preceding sentence.

CONSOLIDATION, MERGER AND SALE OF ASSETS

The indenture prohibits us from consolidating with or merging into another business entity, or conveying, transferring or leasing substantially all of our assets, unless:

- either (1) we are the continuing entity in the case of a merger; or (2) the resulting, surviving or acquiring entity, if other than DST, is a U.S. corporation and it expressly assumes our obligations with respect to the Series B debentures, by executing a supplemental indenture,
- o immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no event of default and no circumstances which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an event of default, shall have happened and be continuing; and
- o we have delivered to the trustee an officers' certificate and a legal opinion confirming that we have complied with the indenture.

However, certain of these transactions could constitute a Fundamental Change (as defined above) permitting each holder to require us to purchase the Series B debentures of such holder as described above.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Any of the following events constitute an event of default under the indenture with respect to the Series B debentures:

- o failure to pay interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, on the Series B debentures for thirty days past the applicable due date,
- o failure to pay the accreted principal amount of the Series B debentures when due (whether at maturity, upon redemption, purchase or otherwise),
- failure to deliver our common stock, or cash in lieu thereof, upon conversion of any Series B debenture and such failure continues for five days following the date such delivery is required,

- o failure to perform any other covenant or agreement in the indenture, which continues for 90 days after written notice from the trustee or holders of 25% of the outstanding original principal amount of the Series B debentures as provided in the indenture,
- o acceleration of more than \$25,000,000 of our indebtedness by its terms (including the Series A debentures) if the acceleration is not rescinded or such indebtedness is not paid within 10 days after written notice from the trustee or holders of 25% of the outstanding original principal amount of the Series B debentures as provided in the indenture,
- o failure to give timely notice of a Fundamental Change as set forth under "-- Fundamental Change Requires Purchase of Series B Debentures by Us at the Option of the Holder" above, and such failure continues for five days following the date such notice is required, and
- o specified events relating to our bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization.

If there is an event of default with respect to the Series B debentures, which continues for the requisite amount of time, either the trustee or holders of at least 25% of the aggregate original principal amount of the Series B debentures may declare the accreted principal amount of and interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on all of the Series B debentures to be due and payable immediately, except that if an event of default occurs due to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization as provided in the indenture, then the accreted principal amount of and interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) on the Series B debentures shall become due and payable immediately without any act by the trustee or any holder of Series B debentures.

Before the acceleration of the maturity of the Series B debentures, the holders of a majority in aggregate original principal amount of the Series B debentures may, on behalf of the holders of all Series B debentures, waive any past default or event of default and its consequences for the Series B debentures, except (1) a default in the payment of the accreted principal or interest (including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any) with respect to the Series B debentures or (2) a default with respect to a provision of the indenture that cannot be amended without the consent of each holder affected by the amendment. In case of a waiver of a default, that default shall cease to exist, any event of default arising from that default shall be deemed to have been cured for all purposes, and DST, the trustee, and the holders of the Series B debentures will be restored to their former positions and rights under the indenture.

A holder may institute a suit against us for enforcement of such holder's rights under the indenture, for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy only if the following conditions are satisfied:

- o the holder gives the trustee written notice of a continuing event of default with respect to the Series B debentures held by that holder,
- o holders of at least 25% of the aggregate original principal amount of the Series B debentures make a request, in writing, and offer reasonable indemnity, to the trustee for the trustee to institute the requested proceeding,
- o the trustee does not receive direction contrary to the holder's request from holder's of a majority in original principal amount of the Series B debentures within 60 days following such notice, request and offer of indemnity under the terms of the indenture, and

o $\,$ the trustee does not institute the requested proceeding within 60 days following such notice.

The indenture requires us every year to deliver to the trustee a statement as to any defaults under the indenture.

A default in the payment of the Series B debentures, or a default with respect to the Series B debentures that causes them to be accelerated, may give rise to a cross-default under our credit facilities or other indebtedness, including the Series A debentures.

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF THE INDENTURE

The indenture will generally cease to be of any further effect with respect to the Series B debentures, if:

- o we have delivered to the trustee for cancellation all outstanding Series B debentures (with certain limited exceptions), or
- o all Series B debentures not previously delivered to the trustee for cancellation have become due and payable, whether at stated maturity or any redemption date or any purchase date (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change), or upon conversion or otherwise, and we have deposited with the trustee as trust funds the entire amount (including our common stock, as applicable) sufficient to pay all of the outstanding Series B debentures,
- o and if, in either case, we also pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable under the indenture by us.

LEGAL DEFEASANCE AND COVENANT DEFEASANCE

The Series B debentures are not subject to any defeasance $% \left(1\right) =\left(1\right) +\left(1\right) +$

MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

We may enter into supplemental indentures for the purpose of modifying or amending the indenture with the consent of holders of at least a majority in aggregate original principal amount of the Series B debentures. However, the consent of all of the holders of the Series B debentures is required for any of the following:

- o to reduce the percentage in original principal amount of Series B debentures whose holders must consent to an amendment,
- to reduce the rate of or extend the time for payment of regular cash interest, contingent interest or liquidated damages on any Series B debenture or reduce the amount of any interest payment (including contingent interest or liquidated damages) or accretion of principal to be made with respect to any Series B debenture or to alter the manner of calculation of regular cash interest or accretion of principal, contingent interest or liquidated damages payable on any Series B debenture,
- to reduce the original principal amount or accreted principal amount or change the stated maturity of principal of, or any installment of principal of or interest on, any Series B debenture,
- o to reduce the redemption price or purchase price (including upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change) or change the time at which any

Series B debenture may or shall be redeemed or purchased,

- o to make any Series B debenture payable in a different currency,
- o to make any change in the provisions of the indenture relating to waivers of defaults or amendments that require unanimous consent,
- o to change any place of payment where the Series B debentures or interest thereon is payable,
- o to make any change that adversely affects the right to convert the Series B debentures or reduces the amount payable on conversion,
- o to impair the right to bring a lawsuit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the stated maturity of any Series B debenture (or in the case of redemption or purchase, on or after the date fixed for redemption or purchase), or
- o to modify any of the above provisions of the indenture, except to increase the percentage in original principal amount of Series B debentures whose holders must consent to an amendment or to provide that certain other provisions of the indenture cannot be modified or waived without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Series B debenture affected by the modification or waiver.

In addition, we and the trustee with respect to the indenture may enter into supplemental indentures without the consent of the holders of the Series B debentures for one or more of the following purposes:

- to evidence that another person has become our successor under the provisions of the indenture relating to consolidations, mergers, and sales of assets and that the successor assumes our covenants, agreements, and obligations in the indenture and in the Series B debentures,
- o to surrender any of our rights or powers under the indenture, to add to our covenants further covenants, restrictions, conditions, or provisions for the protection of the holders of the Series B debentures, and to make a default in any of these additional covenants, restrictions, conditions, or provisions a default or an event of default under the indenture,
- to cure any ambiguity or to make corrections to the indenture or to make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under the indenture that do not adversely affect the interests of any holders of Series B debentures,
- o to modify or amend the indenture to permit the qualification of the indenture or any supplemental indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 as then in effect,
- to add guarantees with respect to the Series B debentures or to secure the Series B debentures,
- o to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder of Series B debentures, and
- o to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor or separate trustee with respect to the Series B debentures.

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

We issued the Series B debentures in the form of global securities. The global securities were deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC and registered in the name of a nominee of DTC. The Series B debentures sold pursuant to this prospectus will be represented by one or more new unrestricted global securities. Except under circumstances described below, the Series B debentures will not be issued in definitive form.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be limited to persons that have accounts with DTC or its nominee ("participants") or persons that may hold interests through participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to interests of persons other than participants). The laws of some states require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of the securities in definitive form. Such limits and such laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a global security.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of a global security, DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the Series B debentures represented by that global security for all purposes under the indenture. Except as provided below, owners of beneficial interests in a global security will not be entitled to have Series B debentures represented by that global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of Series B debentures in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders thereof under the indenture. Principal and interest payments, if any, on Series B debentures registered in the name of DTC or its nominee will be made to DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the relevant global security. Neither we, the trustee, any paying agent or the security registrar for the Series B debentures will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to nor payments made on account of beneficial interests in a global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

We expect that DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal or interest will credit immediately participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of the relevant global security as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a global security held through these participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of the participants.

Beneficial owners of interests in global securities who desire to convert their interests into common stock should contact their brokers or other participants or indirect participants through whom they hold such beneficial interests to obtain information on procedures, including proper forms and cut-off times, for submitting requests for conversion.

Unless and until they are exchanged in whole or in part for Series B debentures in definitive form, the global securities may not be transferred except as a whole by DTC to a nominee of DTC or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or another nominee of DTC. Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in same-day funds.

If DTC at any time is unwilling or unable to continue as a depositary, defaults in the performance of its duties as depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act or other applicable statute or regulation, and a successor depositary is not appointed by us within 90 days, we will issue Series B debentures in definitive form in exchange for the global

securities relating to the Series B debentures. In addition, we may at any time and in our sole discretion determine not to have the Series B debentures or portions of the Series B debentures represented by one or more global securities and, in that event, we will notify the trustee and issue individual Series B debentures in exchange for the global security or securities representing the Series B debentures. Series B debentures so issued in definitive form will be issued as registered Series B debentures in denominations of \$1,000 original principal amount and integral multiples thereof, unless otherwise specified by us.

THE TRUSTEE

JPMorgan Chase Bank is the initial trustee, conversion agent, paying agent, transfer agent and registrar with respect to the Series B debentures. We perform mutual fund, transfer agent and related services for certain funds sponsored by JPMorgan Chase Bank.

GOVERNING LAW

The indenture and the Series B debentures are governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following descriptions are summaries of the material terms of our common stock, preferred stock, certificate of incorporation and bylaws. This summary is qualified by reference to our certificate of incorporation, as amended, and amended and restated bylaws, copies of which we have previously filed with the SEC, and by provisions of applicable law, including the Delaware General Corporation Law, which we refer to as the DGCL, and the common and constitutional law of the state of Delaware. Our authorized capital stock consists of 310,000,000 shares of stock, including:

- o 300,000,000 shares of common stock, \$0.01 par value per share, of which 115,698,712 shares were issued and outstanding as of August 31, 2003; and
- o 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, \$0.01 par value per share, including 60,000 shares that have been designated as Series A Preferred Stock, \$1.00 par value per share, in connection with our rights agreement, of which no shares are currently issued or outstanding.

COMMON STOCK

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share with respect to each matter submitted to a vote of our stockholders, subject to voting rights that may be established for shares of our preferred stock, if any. A majority of the votes cast with respect to a matter will be sufficient to authorize action upon that matter except as described below in "Special Provisions of Our Certification of Incorporation and Bylaws." The holders of our common stock may vote by proxy. Except as may be provided in connection with our preferred stock or as otherwise may be required by law or our certificate of incorporation, our common stock is the only capital stock entitled to vote in the election of directors. Directors are elected by a majority of the votes cast. In an election for directors, each stockholder has the right to cast as many votes in the aggregate as shall equal the number of shares held by such stockholder, multiplied by the number of directors to be elected at such election. Each stockholder may cast the whole number of votes that such stockholder has the

right to cast either in person or by proxy, for one candidate or distribute them among two or more candidates.

Subject to the rights of holders of our preferred stock, if any, holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends and distributions lawfully declared by our board of directors. Any payment of distributions by us is subject to the restrictions of Delaware law applicable to the declaration of distributions by a corporation. If we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our business, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive any assets available for distribution to our stockholders after we have paid or set apart for payment the amounts necessary to satisfy any preferential or participating rights to which the holders of each outstanding series of preferred stock are entitled by the express terms of such series of preferred stock.

Our common stock does not have any preemptive, redemption, subscription or conversion rights. We may issue additional shares of our authorized common stock as authorized by our board of directors from time to time, without stockholder approval, except as may be required by applicable stock exchange requirements.

PREFERRED STOCK

Our board of directors has been authorized to provide for the issuance of shares of our preferred stock in multiple series without the approval of stockholders. With respect to each series of our preferred stock, our board of directors has the authority to fix the following terms:

- o the designation of the series;
- o the number of shares within the series;
- o whether dividends are cumulative and, if cumulative, the dates from which dividends are cumulative;
- o the rate of any dividends, any conditions upon which dividends are payable, and the dates of payment of dividends;
- o whether the shares are redeemable, the redemption price and the terms of redemption;
- o whether the shares are convertible or exchangeable, the price or rate of conversion or exchange, and the applicable terms and conditions;
- o voting rights applicable to the series of preferred stock; and
- o any other powers, preferences and rights and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions of the shares of each such series.

The number of authorized shares of our preferred stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares of our preferred stock outstanding at such time) by an affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of our outstanding common stock, without a vote of the holders of any outstanding preferred stock, unless a vote of such preferred stockholders is required pursuant to the terms of any certificate of designation.

Our ability to issue preferred stock, or rights to purchase such shares, could discourage an unsolicited acquisition proposal. For example, we could impede a business combination by issuing a series of preferred stock containing class voting rights that would enable the holders of such preferred stock to block a business combination transaction. Alternatively, we could facilitate a business combination transaction by issuing a series of preferred stock having sufficient voting rights to provide a required percentage vote of the

stockholders. Additionally, under certain circumstances, our issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of the holders of our common stock. Although our board of directors is required to make any determination to issue any preferred stock based on its judgment as to the best interests of our stockholders, our board of directors could act in a manner that would discourage an acquisition attempt or other transaction that some, or a majority, of our stockholders might believe to be in their best interests or in which stockholders might receive a premium for their stock over prevailing market prices of such stock. Our board of directors does not at present intend to seek stockholder approval prior to any issuance of currently authorized stock, unless otherwise required by law or applicable stock exchange requirements.

RIGHTS PLAN

We are party to a stockholders' rights agreement, which we refer to as the rights plan, dated as of October 6, 1995, and amended as of July 9, 1998, September 10, 1999 and September 25, 2001. Each share of our common stock held of record on October 18, 1995 (when Kansas City Southern Industries, Inc. was the sole stockholder of DST) and all shares of common stock issued in and subsequent to our initial public offering has received one right. Each right entitles its holder to purchase 1/1000th share of our preferred stock, or in some circumstances, our other securities. In certain circumstances, the rights entitle their holders to purchase shares in a surviving entity or its affiliates resulting from transactions in which we are not the surviving entity or in which we dispose of more than 50% of our assets or earnings power.

The rights, which are automatically attached to our common stock, are not exercisable or transferable separately from shares of our common stock until ten days following the earlier of (1) an announcement that a person or group, which we refer to as an acquiring person, has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding shares of common stock or (2) ten days following the commencement or announcement of any person's intention to make a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock, unless our board of directors sets a later date in either event. The rights attached to the common stock of an acquiring person become void. Janus, which holds approximately 34.3% of our outstanding shares of common stock, and certain entities affiliated with Janus are, in certain circumstances, excluded from the definition of an "acquiring person" under the rights plan.

The rights plan has certain anti-takeover effects. The rights plan may cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire us on terms not approved by our board of directors. The rights plan may therefore have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of DST. The rights should not interfere with any merger or other business combination that our board of directors approves.

The description of the rights contained in this section does not describe every aspect of the rights. The rights plan contains the full legal text of the matters described in this section. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain a copy.

LIMITATION ON DIRECTORS' LIABILITY

Our certificate of incorporation provides, as authorized by Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL, that our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability:

o for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

- o for acts or omission not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
- o for unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; or
- o for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

The inclusion of this provision in our certificate of incorporation may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors, and may discourage or deter stockholders or management from bringing a lawsuit against directors for breach of their duty of care, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise have benefited us and our stockholders.

SECTION 203 OF THE DELAWARE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW

Section 203 of the DGCL prohibits a defined set of transactions between a Delaware corporation, such as DST, and an "interested stockholder." Pursuant to the DGCL, an interested stockholder is defined as a person who, together with any affiliates or associates of such person, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 15% or more of the outstanding voting shares of a Delaware corporation. This provision may prohibit business combinations between an interested stockholder and a corporation for a period of three years after the date the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. The term "business combination" is broadly defined to include mergers, consolidations, sales or other dispositions of assets having a total value in excess of 10% of the consolidated assets of the corporation, and some other transactions that would increase the interested stockholder's proportionate share ownership in the corporation.

This prohibition is effective unless:

- o the business combination is approved by the corporation's board of directors prior to the time the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder;
- o the interested stockholder acquired at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation, other than stock held by directors who are also officers or by qualified employee stock plans, in the transaction in which it becomes an interested stockholder; or
- o the business combination is approved by a majority of the board of directors and by the affirmative vote of 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS OF OUR CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS

Meetings of our stockholders are held at least annually. Written notice must be mailed to each stockholder entitled to vote not less than ten nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting. The presence, in person or by proxy, of stockholders holding a majority of our issued and outstanding shares entitled to vote at such meeting constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at meetings of our stockholders. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called for any purpose by our board of directors pursuant to a resolution approved by a majority of the entire board upon not less than ten days' nor more than 60 days' written notice. Our certificate of incorporation provides that our stockholders may not act by written consent in lieu of a meeting.

Our amended and restated bylaws contain provisions requiring that advance

notice be delivered to us of any business to be brought by a stockholder before an annual meeting of stockholders. Generally, such advance notice provisions provide that a stockholder must give written notice to our corporate secretary not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days before the scheduled date of the annual meeting of our stockholders. The notice must set forth specific information regarding such stockholder or business, as described in our bylaws. Our amended and restated bylaws also provide for certain procedures to be followed by stockholders in nominating persons for election to our board of directors. Generally, a stockholder must give written notice to our corporate secretary not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days before the scheduled date of any stockholders' meeting at which directors are to be elected. The notice must set forth specific information regarding such stockholder and the director nominee, as described in our bylaws. Our certificate of incorporation provides that the number of directors shall not be fewer than three nor more than eleven and provides for a classified board of directors, consisting of three classes as nearly equal in size as reasonably possible. Each class holds office until the third annual stockholders' meeting for election of directors following the most recent election of such class. Our directors may be removed only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 70% of the aggregate voting power of our outstanding capital stock entitled to vote in the election of our directors, which we refer to as the voting stock.

Special meetings of our board of directors may be called by the chairman of our board of directors, the executive committee of our board of directors, our president or by any three members of our board of directors. Our amended and restated bylaws may be amended by our board of directors or by an affirmative vote of the holders of at least 70% of the voting stock.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, an affirmative vote of the holders of at least 70% of the voting stock, voting together as a single class is required for the following transactions:

- o any merger or consolidation of DST or any of our subsidiaries with any interested stockholder, or with any other corporation which is or, after such merger or consolidation, would be an affiliate of an interested stockholder;
- o any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, transfer or other disposition to or with any interested stockholder, or any affiliate of an interested stockholder, of any assets of DST or any of our subsidiaries having an aggregate fair market value equaling or exceeding 25% or more of the assets of DST and our subsidiaries;
- the issuance or transfer by DST or any of our subsidiaries of any securities of DST or any of our subsidiaries to any interested stockholder, or any affiliate of an interested stockholder, in exchange for cash, securities or other property having an aggregate fair market value equaling or exceeding 25% of the assets of DST and our subsidiaries (except pursuant to an employee benefit plan of DST or our subsidiaries);
- o the adoption of any plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of DST proposed by or on behalf of any interested stockholder, or any affiliate of an interested stockholder; or
- any reclassification of securities or recapitalization of DST, or any merger or consolidation of DST with any of its subsidiaries or any other transaction which has the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the outstanding shares of any class of equity or convertible securities of DST or any subsidiary, which is directly or indirectly owned by any interested stockholder or any affiliate of an interested stockholder, unless the increase in proportionate ownership of the

interested stockholder or any affiliate of an interested stockholder, resulting from such transaction is no greater than the increase experienced by the other stockholders generally.

Notwithstanding the above, if any of the transactions specified above have been approved by a majority of our disinterested directors, such transaction shall require only an affirmative vote of the majority of our outstanding shares of capital stock, unless otherwise required by law.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, an interested stockholder is defined as any person that:

- o is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 10% of the voting power of the voting stock;
- o is our affiliate and at any time within the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question was the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the voting power of the then outstanding voting stock; or
- o is an assignee of, or has otherwise succeeded to, any shares of voting stock which were at any time within the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question beneficially owned by any interested stockholder, if such assignment or succession shall have occurred in the course of a transaction or series of transactions not involving a public offering within the meaning of the Securities Act.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, the term disinterested director is defined as any member of our board of directors who is unaffiliated with any interested stockholder and who was a member of our board of directors prior to the time that any interested stockholder became an interested stockholder, and any director who is thereafter chosen to fill any vacancy on our board of directors or who is elected and who, in either event, is unaffiliated with any interested stockholder, and in connection with such director's initial assumption of office is recommended for appointment or election by a majority of disinterested directors on our board of directors.

The provisions of our certificate of incorporation relating to the following may be amended or repealed only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 70% of the voting stock, voting together as a single class:

- o our board of directors;
- o the amendment of our amended and restated bylaws or our certificate of incorporation;
- o the certain business transactions set forth above;
- o the manner for considering tender offers, mergers or consolidations or purchases of our assets;
- o the indemnification of our directors and officers;
- o the personal liability of our directors; and
- o the prohibition of stockholder consents.

The foregoing provisions of our certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws, together with the rights agreement and the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL, could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control or the removal of existing management, of deterring potential acquirors from making an offer to our

stockholders and of limiting any opportunity to realize premiums over prevailing market prices for our common stock in connection therewith. This could be the case notwithstanding that a majority of our stockholders might benefit from such a change in control or offer.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

EquiServe $\,$ Trust Company serves as the registrar and transfer agent for our common stock.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE. The trading $% \left(1\right) =1$ symbol for our common stock on this exchange is "DST."

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations relevant to the ownership and disposition of the debentures and the shares of common stock into which the debentures may be converted. This summary deals only with the debentures and the shares of common stock held as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes and applies only to those initial holders that purchase debentures at the "issue price" (as defined below). As used in this offering memorandum, "U.S. Holders" are any beneficial owners of the debentures or the shares of common stock that are, for U.S. federal income tax purposes: (1) citizens or residents of the United States, (2) corporations (or entities treated as corporations for federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia, (3) estates, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source, and (4) trusts, if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust. As used in this offering memorandum, "Non-U.S. Holders" are holders of the debentures or the shares of common stock that are, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, (1) nonresident alien individuals, (2) foreign corporations and (3) foreign estates or trusts. If a partnership (including for this purpose any entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) is a beneficial owner of the debentures or the shares of common stock, the treatment of a partner in the partnership will generally depend upon the status of the partner and upon the activities of the partnership. A holder of the debentures or the shares of common stock that is a partnership and partners in such partnership should consult their tax advisors about the U.S. federal income tax consequences of holding and disposing of the debentures or the shares of common stock, as the case may be. Unless otherwise stated, this summary does not deal with special classes of holders such as banks, thrifts, real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies, insurance companies, dealers in securities or currencies, tax-exempt investors, holders that hold the debentures as part of a hedge, straddle, "synthetic security" or other integrated transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and certain holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar. Further, this summary does not include any description of any alternative minimum tax consequences, U.S. federal estate or gift tax laws or the tax laws of any state, local or foreign government that may be applicable to the debentures or the shares of common stock.

This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, all as of the date hereof, which we refer to as the Current Law, and all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive

basis. The proper application of Current Law to a holder of the debentures is uncertain in a number of respects, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not assert that the debentures should be treated differently or that the IRS will not prevail.

This summary is for general information only. Accordingly, we urge prospective investors to consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the debentures and the shares of common stock in light of their own particular circumstances, including the tax considerations under state, local, foreign and other tax laws and the possible effects of changes in U.S. federal and other tax laws.

CLASSIFICATION OF THE DEBENTURES

Pursuant to the terms of the applicable indenture, each holder of the debentures will agree, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, to treat the debentures as indebtedness for U.S. federal income tax purposes subject to the Treasury regulations governing contingent payment debt instruments, which we refer to as the CPDI regulations, and to be bound by our application of these regulations to the debentures, including our determination of the rate at which interest will be deemed to accrue on the debentures for U.S. federal income tax purposes and the projected payment schedule (described below).

The remainder of this discussion assumes that the debentures will be treated in accordance with the CPDI regulations and our determinations thereunder. However, the proper application of the CPDI regulations to a holder of a debenture is uncertain in a number of respects, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not assert that the debentures should be treated differently or that the IRS will not prevail. A different treatment could affect the amount, timing and character of income, gain or loss in respect of an investment in the debentures. In particular, it might be determined that a holder should have accrued interest income at a higher or lower rate, should not have recognized income or gain upon the conversion, or should have recognized capital gain upon a taxable disposition of its debentures.

TAX CONSIDERATIONS FOR U.S. HOLDERS

Under the rules governing contingent payment debt instruments, a U.S. Holder will be required to accrue interest income on the debentures, in the amounts described below, regardless of whether the U.S. Holder uses the cash or accrual method of tax accounting. Accordingly, U.S. Holders will generally be required to include interest in taxable income in each year in excess of the interest payments actually received in that year. A U.S. Holder must accrue on its debentures an amount of original issue discount as ordinary interest income for U.S. federal income tax purposes for each accrual period prior to and including the maturity date of the debentures that equals:

- the product of (i) the adjusted issue price (as defined below) of the debentures as of the beginning of the accrual period; and (ii) the comparable yield (as defined below) of the debentures, adjusted for the length of the accrual period;
- o divided by the number of days in the accrual period; and
- o multiplied by the number of days during the accrual period that the U.S. Holder held the debentures.

The "issue price" of a debenture is the first price at which a substantial amount of the debentures is sold to the public, excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers. The "adjusted issue price" of a debenture is

its issue price increased by any interest income previously accrued, determined without regard to any adjustments to interest accruals described below, and decreased by the projected amounts of any previous payments with respect to the debenture.

Under the rules governing contingent payment debt instruments, we are required to establish the "comparable yield" for the debentures. The comparable yield for the debentures is the annual yield we would incur, as of the initial issue date, on a fixed rate nonconvertible debt security with no contingent payments, but with terms and conditions otherwise comparable to those of the debentures including the level of subordination, term, timing of payments and general market conditions, but excluding any adjustments for liquidity or the riskiness of the contingencies with respect to the debentures. Based on this definition, we have determined the comparable yield to be 8.4% compounded semiannually.

We are required to provide to holders, solely for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a schedule of the projected amounts of payments on the debentures, which we refer to as the "projected payment schedule." This schedule must produce the comparable yield. Our determination of the projected payment schedule for the debentures includes estimates for payments of contingent interest and an estimate for a payment at maturity taking into account the conversion feature. Holders may obtain the projected payment schedule by submitting a written request for it to us at the address set forth in "Where You Can Find More Information."

THE COMPARABLE YIELD AND THE SCHEDULE OF PROJECTED PAYMENTS ARE NOT DETERMINED FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN FOR THE DETERMINATION OF INTEREST ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS THEREOF IN RESPECT OF THE DEBENTURES FOR U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES AND DO NOT CONSTITUTE A PROJECTION OR REPRESENTATION REGARDING THE ACTUAL AMOUNTS PAYABLE TO U.S. HOLDERS OF THE DEBENTURES.

ADJUSTMENTS TO INTEREST ACCRUALS ON THE DEBENTURES

If a U.S. Holder receives actual payments with respect to the debentures in a taxable year that in the aggregate exceed the total amount of projected payments for that taxable year, the U.S. Holder will incur a "net positive adjustment" equal to the amount of such excess. The U.S. Holder will treat the "net positive adjustment" as additional interest income for the taxable year. For this purpose, the payments in a taxable year include the fair market value of property (including our common stock) received in that year.

If a U.S. Holder receives actual payments with respect to the debentures in a taxable year that in the aggregate are less than the amount of the projected payments for that taxable year, the U.S. Holder will incur a "net negative adjustment" equal to the amount of such deficit. This adjustment will (a) reduce the U.S. Holder's interest income on the debentures that would otherwise be included for that taxable year, and (b) to the extent of any excess after the application of (a), give rise to an ordinary loss to the extent of the U.S. Holder's interest income on the debentures during prior taxable years, reduced to the extent such interest was offset by prior net negative adjustments treated as ordinary loss on the debentures in prior taxable years, and (c) to the extent of any further excess, reduce interest income in respect of the debentures in subsequent taxable years, and to the extent not so applied, reduce the amount realized on a sale, exchange or retirement of the debentures.

SALE, EXCHANGE, CONVERSION OR REDEMPTION OF THE DEBENTURES

Generally, the sale or exchange of a debenture, a conversion of a debenture or the redemption of a debenture for cash, will result in taxable gain or loss to a U.S. Holder. In addition, as described above, the schedule of projected payments for the debentures includes the receipt of common stock upon conversion

of a debenture into shares of our common stock as a contingent payment with respect to the debenture. Accordingly, we intend to treat the transfer of our common stock to a U.S. Holder upon the conversion of a debenture as a contingent payment. Under this treatment, such a conversion or redemption also will result in taxable gain or loss to the U.S. Holder. The amount of gain or loss on a taxable sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of a debenture will equal the difference between (a) the amount of cash plus the fair market value of any of our common stock or other property received by the U.S. Holder and (b) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the debenture. A U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in a debenture on any date generally will equal the U.S. Holder's original purchase price for the debenture, increased by any interest income previously accrued by the U.S. Holder (determined without regard to any positive or negative adjustments to interest accruals described above), and decreased by the amount of any projected payments on the debentures projected to have been made through that date. Gain recognized upon a sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of a debenture generally will be treated as interest income; any loss will be ordinary loss to the extent of the excess of interest previously included in income over the total negative adjustments previously taken into account as ordinary loss, and thereafter, will be capital loss (which will be long-term if the debenture is held for more than one year). The deductibility of net capital losses is subject to limitations. A U.S. Holder who sells the notes at a loss that meets certain thresholds may be required to file a disclosure statement with the IRS.

A U.S. Holder's tax basis in shares of our common stock received upon a conversion of a debenture or upon a holder's exercise of a redemption right that we elect to pay in shares of our common stock will equal the then current fair market value of such common stock. The U.S. Holder's holding period for the shares of our common stock received will commence on the date immediately following conversion or redemption.

CONSTRUCTIVE DIVIDENDS

An increase in the conversion rate of the debentures, either at our discretion or pursuant to the conversion rate adjustment provisions, may in certain circumstances be treated as a taxable dividend to holders of the debentures. For example, if at any time we make a distribution of property to our stockholders that would be taxable to the stockholders as a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, in accordance with the anti-dilution provisions of the debentures, the conversion rate of the debentures is increased, such increase may be deemed to be the payment of a taxable dividend to holders of the debentures. An increase in the conversion rate in the event of distribution of our evidences of indebtedness or our assets or an increase in the event of the payment by us of a cash dividend will generally result in deemed dividend treatment to holders of the debentures, but a reasonable increase in the event of stock dividends or the distribution of rights to subscribe for our common stock generally will not. If an event occurs that dilutes the interests of the holders of the debentures and the conversion price is not adjusted, the resulting increase in the proportionate interest of our holders of common stock could be treated as a taxable dividend to such stockholders.

DISTRIBUTIONS ON COMMON STOCK

Distributions paid on our common stock received upon conversion of a debenture, other than certain pro rata distributions of common shares, will be treated as a dividend to the extent paid out of current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles) and will be includible in income by the U.S. Holder. If a distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be first treated as a tax-free return of the U.S. Holder's investment, up to the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the common stock. Any remaining excess will be treated as a capital

gain. Under recently enacted legislation, dividends received by noncorporate U.S. Holders on common stock may be subject to U.S. federal income tax at lower rates than other types of ordinary income if certain conditions are met. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the implications of this new legislation in their particular circumstances.

SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF COMMON STOCK

Gain or loss realized by a U.S. Holder on the sale or other disposition of our common stock received upon conversion of a debenture will be capital gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder held the common stock for more than one year. The amount of the U.S. Holder's gain or loss will be equal to the difference between the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the common stock disposed of the amount realized on the disposition. A U.S. holder who sells the stock at a loss that meets certain thresholds may be required to file a disclosure statement with the IRS.

TAX CONSIDERATIONS FOR NON-U.S. HOLDERS

The rules governing U.S. federal income taxation of Non-U.S. Holders are complex and this offering memorandum provides only a summary of such rules. Non-U.S. Holders should consult with their tax advisors to determine the effect of U.S. federal, state, local and foreign income tax laws, as well as treaties, with regard to an investment in the debentures and shares of our common stock, including any reporting requirements.

PAYMENTS MADE WITH RESPECT TO THE DEBENTURES

The 30% U.S. federal withholding tax will not apply to any payment to a Non-U.S. Holder of principal or interest (including amounts taken into income as interest under the accrual rules described above under "Tax Considerations for of U.S. Holders" and amounts attributable to the receipt of shares of our common stock upon a conversion or redemption of the debentures) on debentures, provided that: (i) the Non-U.S. Holder does not own, actually or constructively, 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote, (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is not a controlled foreign corporation related, directly or indirectly, to us through stock ownership; and (iii) either (A) the beneficial owner of debentures certifies to us or our paying agent on IRS Form W-8BEN or an appropriate substitute form, under penalties of perjury, that it is not a U.S. person and provides its name, address and certain other information or (B) the beneficial owner holds its debentures through certain foreign intermediaries or certain foreign partnerships and such holder satisfies certain certification requirements.

If the Non-U.S. Holder cannot satisfy the requirements described above, payments of interest (including amounts taken into income under the accrual rules described above under "Tax Considerations for U.S. Holders" and amounts attributable to the receipt of our common stock upon a conversion of the debentures) may be subject to the 30% U.S. federal withholding tax unless the Non-U.S. Holder provides us with a properly executed (1) IRS Form W-8BEN (or successor form) claiming an exemption from or reduction in withholding under an applicable tax treaty or (2) IRS Form W-8ECI (or successor form) stating that interest paid on the debentures is not subject to withholding tax because it is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States.

If a Non-U.S. Holder of the debentures is engaged in a trade or business in the United States, and if interest on the debentures is effectively connected with the conduct of such trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder, although exempt from the withholding tax discussed in the preceding paragraphs, will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on interest on a net basis in the same manner as if it were a U.S. Holder (see "Tax Considerations for U.S. Holders"

above), except that the Non-U.S. Holder will be required to provide a properly executed IRS From W-8ECI in order to claim an exemption from withholding tax. These Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to other tax consequences of the ownership of the notes, including the possible imposition of a branch profits tax at 30% (or at a reduced rate set under an applicable tax treaty) for corporate Non-U.S. Holders.

SALE OR EXCHANGE OF DEBENTURES OR COMMON STOCK

A Non-U.S. Holder will not generally be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax with respect to gain upon the sale, exchange or other disposition of the debentures or shares of our common stock, unless: (1) the income or gain is "U.S. trade or business income," which means income or gain that is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business, or, in the case of a treaty resident, attributable to a permanent establishment or a fixed base in the United States; (2) such Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are met; (3) such Non-U.S. Holder is subject to tax pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code applicable to certain U.S. expatriates; (4) with respect to the debentures, the Non-U.S. Holder does not meet the conditions for exemption from U.S. federal withholding tax described above; or (5) in the case of gain realized on the sale, exchange, conversion or redemption of the debentures, we are not and have not been within the shorter of the five-year period preceding such sale, exchange, conversion or redemption and the period during which the Non-U.S. Holder held the debentures, a U.S. real property holding corporation. We believe that we are currently not a U.S. real property holding corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and will not become one in the future.

U.S. trade or business income of a Non-U.S. Holder will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net basis in the same manner as if it were realized by a U.S. Holder. A Non-U.S. Holder that realizes U.S. trade or business income with respect to the debentures or common stock should consult its tax advisors as to the treatment of such income or gain, including the possible imposition of a branch profits tax of 30% (or at a reduced rate set under an applicable tax treaty) for corporate Non-U.S. Holders.

CONSTRUCTIVE DIVIDENDS

If a Non-U.S. Holder were deemed to have received a constructive dividend (see "Tax Considerations for U.S. Holders -- Constructive Dividends" above), the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to withholding tax at a 30% rate, subject to reduction by an applicable tax treaty, on the taxable amount of the dividend. To claim the benefit of a tax treaty, a Non-U.S. Holder must comply with all certification requirements necessary to qualify for treaty benefits. It is possible that U.S. federal tax on the constructive dividend would be withheld from the interest paid to the Non-U.S. Holders of the debentures. A Non-U.S. Holder who is subject to withholding tax under such circumstances should consult its own tax advisor as to whether it can obtain a refund for all or a portion of the withholding tax.

DISTRIBUTIONS ON COMMON STOCK

Dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder of our common stock generally will be subject to U.S. withholding tax at a 30% rate, subject to reduction under an applicable treaty. In order to obtain a reduced rate of withholding, a Non-U.S. Holder will be required to provide a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN certifying its entitlement to benefits under a treaty. A Non-U.S. Holder who is subject to withholding tax under such circumstances should consult its own tax advisor as to whether it can obtain a refund for all or a portion of the withholding tax.

If a Non-U.S. Holder of our common stock is engaged in a trade or business in the United States, and if the dividends (or constructive dividends) are effectively connected with the conduct of this trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder, although exempt from U.S. withholding tax, will generally be taxed in the same manner as a U.S. Holder (see "Tax Considerations for U.S. Holders" above), except that the Non-U.S. Holder will be required to provide a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI in order to claim an exemption from withholding tax. These Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to other tax consequences of the ownership of our common stock, including the possible imposition of a branch profits tax at 30% (or at a reduced rate under an applicable tax treaty) for corporate Non-U.S. Holders.

BACKUP WITHHOLDING AND INFORMATION REPORTING

U.S. HOLDERS

Payments of interest or dividends made by us on, or the proceeds of the sale or other disposition of, the debentures or shares of our common stock may be subject to information reporting and U.S. federal backup withholding tax if the recipient of such payment fails to supply an accurate taxpayer identification number or otherwise fails to comply with applicable U.S. information reporting or certification requirements. Any amount withheld from a payment to a U.S. Holder under the backup withholding rules is allowable as a credit against the holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, and may entitle such U.S. Holder to a tax refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

NON-U.S. HOLDERS

A Non-U.S. Holder may be required to comply with certification procedures to establish that the holder is not a U.S. person in order to avoid backup withholding tax with respect to our payments of principal and interest on the debentures, or dividends on our common stock, or the proceeds of the sale or other disposition of the debentures or common stock. In addition, information returns may be filed with the IRS in connection with payments on the debentures and our common stock and the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of such debentures or common stock. Copies of these information returns may also be made available under the provisions of a specific treaty or agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which the Non-U.S. Holder resides. Any amount withhold from a payment to a Non-U.S. Holder under backup withholding rules is allowable as a credit against the Non-U.S. Holder's federal income tax liability and may entitle such Non-U.S. Holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

THE PROPER TAX TREATMENT OF A HOLDER OF THE DEBENTURES IS UNCERTAIN IN A NUMBER OF RESPECTS. HOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN TAX CONSEQUENCES OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE DEBENTURES AND WHETHER AN INVESTMENT IN THE DEBENTURES IS ADVISABLE IN LIGHT OF THE AGREED UPON TAX TREATMENT AND THE HOLDER'S PARTICULAR TAX SITUATION.

SELLING SECURITY HOLDERS

We originally issued the debentures in transactions exempt from or not subject to registration under the Securities Act of 1933. The debentures and the common stock issuable upon conversion thereof that may be offered under this prospectus will be offered by the selling security holders, which includes their donees, pledgees, transferees and other successors—in—interest. Only those debentures and shares of common stock issuable upon conversion thereof listed below may be offered for resale by the selling holders pursuant to this prospectus.

The following table sets forth certain information, as of September 25, 2003, about the principal amount of debentures beneficially owned by each selling security holder and the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of these debentures that may be offered from time to time pursuant to this prospectus.

The percentage of debentures outstanding beneficially owned by each selling security holder is based on \$540,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series A debentures outstanding and \$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series B debentures outstanding. The number of shares of common stock owned prior to the offering does not include shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures. The number of shares of common stock shown in the table below assumes conversion of the full amount of debentures held by such holder at the initial conversion rate of 20.3732 shares per \$1,000 principal amount of debentures. This conversion rate is subject to adjustment as described under "Description of the Series A Debentures—Conversion Rights" and "Description of the Series B Debentures—Conversion Rights." Accordingly, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures may increase or decrease from time to time. Under the terms of the indenture, fractional shares will not be issued upon conversion of the debentures. Cash will be paid instead of fractional shares, if any.

NAME OF SELLING SECURITY HOLDER	PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF DEBENTURES BENEFICIALLY OWNED THAT MAY BE SOLD		DEBENTURES		SHARES O COMMON STOCK OWNED PRIOR TO THE OFFERING
	SERIES A	SERIES B	SERIES A	SERIES B	
Akela Capital Master Fund, Ltd.	0	9,500,000	N/A	3.17%	
Allstate Insurance Company	1,000,000	0	*	N/A	34,9
Allstate Life Insurance Company					
Alta Partners Holdings LDC					
American Investors Life Insurance Co. Argent Classic Convertible Arbitrage Fund	800,000	0	*	N/A	
L.P.	5,200,000	700,000	*	*	
Argent LowLev Convertible Arbitrage Fund					
LLC		2,100,000			
	300,000				
Barclays Global Investors Ltd	1,000,000	0	*	N/A	
Bear Stearns & Co., Inc.		, ,			
Black Diamond Convertible Offshore LDC	1,089,000	0	*	N/A	
Black Diamond Offshore Ltd.	607,000	0	*	N/A	

NUMBER OF SHARES OF PRIOR TO BENEFICIALLY OWNED

NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT

OWNED

DEBENTURES

PERCENTAGE OF PRIOR TO THE

NUMBER C

NAME OF SELLING SECURITY HOLDER	THAT MAY BE SOLD		OUTSTANDING		OFFERING	
	SERIES A	SERIES B	SERIES A	SERIES B		
BNP Paribas Arbitrage	3 - 000.000	1,500,000	*	*		
	1,000,000		*		Ī	
Continental Assurance Company on behalf of		-		,	Ī	
its separate account (E)		1,000,000	*	*	ŀ	
Continental Casualty Company	500,000				Ī	
CQS Convertible & Quantitative Strategies	000,000	3,000,000		U • • • •	ľ	
Master Fund Limited	0	2,500,000	N/A	*		
DBAG London	30,500,000	0	5.65%	N/A	ľ	
DeepRock & Co.		0			Ī	
DKR Saturn Event Driven Holding Fund Ltd.					Ī	
DKR Saturn Special Situations Holding Fund		· , · ,			ŀ	
Ltd.		3,250,000	*	1.08%	Ī	
Dodeca Fund, L.P.	2,150,000	0		N/A	Ī	
Double Black Diamond Offshore LDC					ľ	
DuckBill & Co.	1,000,000	0			ľ	
					Ī	
Gaia Offshore Master Fund Ltd.	11,300,000	0 4,400,000	2.09%	1.47%	Ī	
Gaia Offshore Master Fund Ltd. General Motors Welfare Benefit Trust	2.000,000	0	*	N/A	Ī	
GMAM Group Pension Trust	1,250,000	0		,	Ī	
Grace Convertible Arbitrage Fund, Ltd.				1.50%	ľ	
Guggenheim Portfolio Company VIII, LLC		0	*	N/A	ľ	
Highbridge International LLC	15,000,000	10,000,000	2.78%	3.33%	Ī	
Inflective Convertible Opportunity	10,000,	±0,0±=,	<u> </u>	-	Ī	
	50,000	0	*	N/A	İ	
John Deere Pension Trust	1,000,000	0	*	N/A	ļ	
JMG Capital Partners, LP	9.750.000	5-000.000	1.81%	1 . 67%	ļ	
JMG Triton Offshore Fund, Ltd.	16 000.000	10.000,000	2.96%	3.33%	ļ	
LDG Limited	1.534.000	5,000,000 10,000,000 0	*	N/A	ļ	
LLT Limited	34.000	34,000	*	N/A	1	
Lexington Vantage Fund c/o TQA Investors,	51,000	J 1, 000			İ	
	23.000	0	*	N/A	1	
Lyxor/Gaia II Fund Ltd.	23,000	0 1,000,000	*	N/A *	ļ	
Lyxor Master Fund		1,500,000	*	*	ļ	
McMahon Securities Co. L.P.	500,000			N/A	ļ	
Man Convertible Bond Master Fund, Ltd.	500,000			1.58%	ļ	
Man Mac 1 Limited	3,000,000	4,730,000	N/A *	1.58% N/A	İ	
Maystone Continuum Master Fund, LTD.	3,000,000	1,500,000	N/A	N/A *	1	
MLQA Convertible Securities Arbitrage, LTD	5,000,000	5,000,000	N/A *	1.67%	İ	
Nomura Securities International, Inc.	25,000,000	5,000,000		1.6/8 N/A	7,8	
		0	4.63%		/ , \	
Oppenheimer Convertible Securities Fund	4,000,000	U	-	N/A		
Peoples Benefit Life Insurance Company	2 200 000	0	1.48%	м / д	1	
Teamsters Polygon Clobal Opportunities Master Fund	8,000,000	0		N/A		
Prosident (Follows of Harvard Collogo	22,000,000		4.07%	N/A	QE	
President & Fellows of Harvard College	25,000,000	25,000,000	4.63%	8.33%	8,5	
RBC Alternative Assets L.P.	100,000	0	*	N/A	11,5	
Retail Clerks Pension Trust	2,000,000	0	*	N/A		
Retail Clerks Pension Trust #2	1,000,000	0		N/A	5 3	
Royal Bank of Canada	4,000,000	0	*	N/A	5,3	
S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC	0	2,500,000	N/A	*	131,0	
Sage Capital	2,400,000	0	*	N/A		

NUMBER C

NAME OF SELLING SECURITY HOLDER	PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF DEBENTURES BENEFICIALLY OWNED THAT MAY BE SOLD		PERCENTAGE OF DEBENTURES OUTSTANDING		COMMON STOCK OWNED PRIOR TO THE OFFERING
	SERIES A	SERIES B	SERIES A		
Sphinx Fund c/o TQA Investors, LLC	372 , 000	0	*	N/A	
St. Albans Partners Ltd.	5,000,000	0	*	N/A	
St. Thomas Trading, Ltd.	0	6,770,000	N/A	2.26%	
Susquehanna Capital Group	0	6,250,000	N/A	2.08%	
Sphinx Fund c/o TQA Investors, LLC St. Albans Partners Ltd. St. Thomas Trading, Ltd. Susquehanna Capital Group TD Securities (USA) Inc. The Coast Fund, L.P.	30,500,000	0	5.65%	N/A	
The Coast Fund, L.P.	5,500,000	5,000,000	1.02%	1.67%	
TQA Master Fund, Ltd. c/o TQA Investors,					
LLC	11,610,000	0	2.15%	N/A	
TQA Master Plus Fund, Ltd. c/o TQA					
Investors, LLC	9,506,000	0	1.76%	N/A	
White River Securities, L.L.C.	0	8,000,000	N/A	2.67%	
Worldwide Transactions Ltd.	0 116,000	0	*	N/A	
Xavex Convertible Arbitrage 2 Fund Xavex-Convertible Arbitrage 7 Fund	900,000	800,000	*	*	
c/o TQA Investors, LLC	1,868,000	0	*	N/A	
Xavex Convertible Arbitrage 10 Fund	1,000,000	200,000	*	*	
c/o TQA Investors, LLC Xavex Convertible Arbitrage 10 Fund Yield Strategies Fund I, L.P.	3,000,000	0	*	N/A	
Yield Strategies Fund II, L.P.	2,250,000	0	*	N/A	
Zurich Institutional Benchmark Master					
Fund, LTD	300,000	300,000	*	*	
Zurich Institutional Benchmarks Master					
Fund, Ltd. c/o TQA Investors, LLC	1,787,000	0	*	N/A	
All other holders of debentures or					
future transferees, pledgees					
or donees of such holders(4)(5)	205 016 000	156.716.000	37 97%	52 24%	

540,000,000 300,000,000 100.00% 100.00%

N/A Not applicable

TOTAL

- (1) Does not include shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures.
- (2) Consists of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures, assuming a conversion rate of 20.3732 shares per \$1,000 principal amount of the debentures and a cash payment in lieu of any fractional share interest. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment as described under "Description of the Series A Debentures--Conversion Rights" and "Description of the Series B Debentures--Conversion Rights." Accordingly, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures may increase or decrease from time to time.
- (3) Calculated based on Rule 13d-3(d)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, using 115,698,712 shares of common stock outstanding on August 31, 2003. In calculating this amount, we treated as outstanding the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures by the applicable holder. However, we did not assume the conversion of any other holder's debentures.
- (4) We will identify additional selling security holders, if any, by prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment before they offer or sell their securities.

199,1

SHARES C

^{*} Less than one percent

(5) Assumes that the unnamed holders of debentures or any future transferees, pledgees or donees of or from any such unnamed holder do not beneficially own any common stock other than the common stock issuable upon conversion of the debentures at the initial conversion rate.

The preceding table has been prepared based upon the information furnished to us by the selling security holders. The selling security holders identified above may have sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of some or all of their debentures since the date on which the information in the preceding table is presented in transactions exempt from or not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. Information concerning the selling security holders may change from time to time and, if necessary, we will supplement this prospectus accordingly. We cannot give an estimate as to the amount of the debentures or common stock issuable upon conversion thereof that will be held by the selling security holders upon the termination of this offering because the selling security holders may offer some or all of their debentures or common stock pursuant to the offering contemplated by this prospectus. See "Plan of Distribution."

To our knowledge, other than their ownership of the securities described above, none of the selling security holders has, or has had within the past three years, any position, office or other material relationship with us or any of our predecessors or affiliates.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We will not receive any of the proceeds of the sale of the debentures and the common stock offered by this prospectus. The aggregate proceeds to the selling security holders from the sale of the debentures or common stock will be the purchase price of the debentures or common stock less any discounts and commissions. A selling security holder reserves the right to accept and, together with their agents, to reject, any proposed purchase of debentures or common stock to be made directly or through agents.

The debentures and the common stock offered by this prospectus may be sold from time to time to purchasers:

- o directly by the selling security holders and their successors, which includes their donees, pledgees or transferees or their successors-in-interest; or
- o through underwriters, broker-dealers or agents, who may receive compensation in the form of discounts, commissions or agent's commissions from the selling security holders or the purchasers of the debentures and the common stock. These discounts, concessions or commissions may be in excess of those customary in the types of transactions involved.

The selling security holders and any underwriters, broker-dealers or agents who participate in the distribution of the debentures and the common stock may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933. As a result, any profits on the sale of the debentures and the common stock by selling security holders and any discounts, commissions or agent's commissions received by any such broker-dealers or agents may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act of 1933. Selling security holders who are "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 will be subject to prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. If the selling security holders were deemed to be underwriters, the

selling security holders may be subject to certain statutory liabilities of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. If the debentures and the common stock are sold through underwriters, broker-dealers or agents, the selling security holders will be responsible for underwriting discounts or commissions or agent's commissions.

The debentures and the common stock may be sold in one or more transactions at:

- o fixed prices;
- o prevailing market prices at the time of sale;
- o prices related to such prevailing market prices;
- o varying prices determined at the time of sale; or
- o negotiated prices.

These sales may be effected in one or more transactions:

- on any national securities exchange or quotation service on which the notes and common stock may be listed or quoted at the time of the sale;
- o in the over-the-counter market;
- o in transactions otherwise than on such exchanges or services or in the over-the-counter market;
- through the writing of options (including the issuance by the selling security holders of derivative securities), whether the options or such other derivative securities are listed on an options exchange or otherwise;
- o through the settlement of short sales; or
- o through any combination of the foregoing.

These transactions may include block transactions or crosses. Crosses are transactions in which the same broker acts as an agent on both sides of the trade.

In connection with the sales of the debentures and the common stock issuable upon conversion thereof or otherwise, the selling security holders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions that in turn may engage in short sales of the debentures or the common stock in the course of hedging their positions, sell the debentures and common stock short and deliver the debentures and common stock to close out short positions, loan or pledge debentures or the common stock to broker-dealers or other financial institutions that in turn may sell the debentures and the common stock, enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions that require the delivery to the broker-dealer or other financial institution of the debentures or the common stock, which the broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to the prospectus, or enter into transactions in which a broker-dealer makes purchases as a principal for resale for its own account or through other types of transactions.

To our knowledge, there are currently no plans, arrangements or understandings between any selling security holders and any underwriter, broker-dealer or agent regarding the sale of the debentures and the common stock

by the selling security holders.

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "DST." We do not intend to apply for listing of the debentures on any securities exchange or for inclusion of the debentures in any automated quotation system. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the development of liquidity or any trading market for the debentures. See "Risk Factors——An active trading market may not develop for the debentures."

There can be no assurance that any selling security holder will sell any or all of the debentures or the common stock pursuant to this prospectus. Further, we cannot assure you that any such selling security holder will not transfer, devise or gift the debentures and the common stock by other means not described in this prospectus. In addition, any debentures or common stock covered by this prospectus that qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933 may be sold under Rule 144 or Rule 144A rather than under this prospectus. The debentures and the common stock may be sold in some states only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in some states the debentures and common stock may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale or an exemption from registration or qualification is available and complied with.

The selling security holders and any other person participating in the sale of debentures or the common stock will be subject to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 rules include, without limitation, Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales of any of the debentures and the common stock by the selling security holders and any other such person. In addition, Regulation M may restrict the ability of any person engaged in the distribution of the debentures and the common stock to engage in market-making activities with respect to the particular debentures and the common stock being distributed. This may affect the marketability of the debentures and the common stock and the ability of any person or entity to engage in market-making activities with respect to the debentures and the common stock.

We have agreed to indemnify the selling security holders against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.

We have agreed to pay substantially all of the expenses incidental to the registration, offering and sale of the debentures and common stock to the public other than commissions, fees and discounts of underwriters, brokers, dealers and agents.

VALIDITY OF SECURITIES

The validity of the debentures and the common stock is suable upon conversion thereof will be passed upon for us by Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP, Kansas City, Missouri.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The combined financial statements of OMS incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the preliminary special meeting proxy statement filed September 16, 2003 for the year ended December 31, 2002 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, given on

the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

PART II INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

ITEM 14. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION.

The following table sets forth the expenses payable by DST in connection with the offering described in this Registration Statement. All of the expenses are estimated, except for the SEC registration fee.

SEC registration fee	\$	67 , 956
Printing expense		60,000
Accounting fees and expenses		50,000
Legal fees and expenses		100,000
Trustee fees and expenses		25,000
Miscellaneous		47,044
Total	\$	350,000
	====	

ITEM 15. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

DST is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "Delaware Statute") provides that a Delaware corporation may indemnify any persons who are, or are threatened to be made, parties to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (a "proceeding"), other than an action by or in the right of such corporation, by reason of the fact that such person is or was an officer, director, employee or agent of such corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or enterprise (an "indemnified capacity"). The indemnity may include expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, provided such person acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the corporation's best interests and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was illegal. Similar provisions apply to actions brought by or in the right of the corporation, except that no indemnification shall be made without judicial approval if the officer or director is adjudged to be liable to the corporation. Where an officer or director is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action referred to above, the corporation must indemnify him against the expenses which such officer or director has actually and reasonably incurred. Section 145 of the Delaware Statute further authorizes a corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any indemnified person against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any indemnified capacity, or arising out of his status as such, regardless of whether the corporation would otherwise have the power to indemnify him under the Delaware Statute.

Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL provides, generally, that the certificate of incorporation may contain a provision eliminating or limiting the personal liability of a director to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that such provision may not eliminate or limit the liability of a director (i) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a

knowing violation of law, (iii) under section 174 of Title 8 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No such provision may eliminate or limit the liability of a director for any act or omission occurring prior to the date when such provision becomes effective.

II-1

DST's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "DST Certificate of Incorporation") provides that the directors and officers of DST, or persons who are or were serving at the request of DST as directors or officers of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an employee benefit plan, (collectively, "indemnitees") shall be indemnified to the maximum extent permitted by law against all expense, liability and loss reasonably incurred by such individuals in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding, $% \left(1\right) =\left(1\right) +\left(alleged action in an official capacity as a director or officer or in any other capacity while serving as a director or officer, brought against such officers and directors in any such capacities. The right to indemnification includes the right to have DST pay the expenses in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding. As to directors and officers, the DST Certificate of Incorporation requires receipt by DST of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director or officer to repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that the director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified by DST as authorized by the DGCL. Except as discussed below with respect to proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, DST will indemnify any such indemnitee in connection with a proceeding initiated by such indemnitee only if such proceeding was authorized by the DST Board of Directors.

If a claim for indemnification, or advancement of expenses, is not paid in full by DST within the time periods specified in the DST Certificate of Incorporation, the indemnitee may bring suit against DST to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If the indemnitee is successful in whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by DST to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee will also be entitled to be paid the expenses of prosecuting or defending such suit. In any suit by DST to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, DST is entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that the indemnitee has not met any applicable standard for indemnification set forth in the DGCL. In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses, or by DST to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under the DST Certificate of Incorporation will be on DST.

The foregoing right of indemnification and advancement of expenses is not exclusive of any other rights of indemnification and advancement of expenses to which any such individual may be entitled by by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

DST's Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director of DST will not be personally liable to DST or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for the prohibition on elimination or limitation set forth in Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL. The DST Certificate of Incorporation further provides that if the DGCL is amended to further eliminate or limit the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a DST director will be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as so amended.

DST's Amended and Restated Bylaws provides that directors, officers,

employees or agents shall be indemnified only as provided in the DST Certificate of Incorporation.

ITEM 16. EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT
NUMBER EXHIBIT

The Registration Rights Agreement dated October 24, 1995, between Kansas City Southern ("KCS"; formerly Kansas City Southern Industries, Inc.) and DST ("KCS Registration Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to DST's Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 1, 1995, as amended (Registration No. 33-96526) (the "IPO Registration Statement") is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.

II-2

- 4.1.1 The First Amendment dated June 30, 1999 to the KCS Registration Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 4.15.1 to DST's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.1.
- 4.1.2 The Assignment, Consent and Acceptance dated August 11, 1999 pertaining to the KCS Registration Rights Agreement and among DST, KCS and Stilwell Financial, Inc. (now Janus Capital Group Inc.), which is attached as Exhibit 4.15.2 to DST's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.2.
- 4.2 The Certificate of Designations dated October 16, 1995, establishing the Series A Preferred Stock of DST, which is attached as Exhibit 4.3 to DST's IPO Registration Statement, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.2.
- The summary of the preferred stock purchase rights set forth in DST's Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated November 15, 1995 in connection with the listing of the preferred stock purchase rights on the New York Stock Exchange (the "Form 8-A") (Commission File No. 1-14036), and the related Rights Agreement dated as of October 6, 1995, between DST and State Street Bank and Trust Company, as rights agent ("Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's IPO Registration Statement, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.
- 4.3.1 The First Amendment dated as of July 9, 1998 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 1, dated July 30, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.1.
- The Second Amendment dated as of September 10, 1999 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 2, dated September 27, 1999 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.2.

- 4.3.3 The Third Amendment dated as of September 25, 2001 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 3, dated November 26, 2001 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.3.
- The Assignment, Acceptance and Consent dated as of November 7, 2001 and among DST, State Street Bank and Trust Company, and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., and pertaining to the Rights Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit 4.3.4 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.4.
- The Registration Rights Agreement dated October 31, 1995, between DST and UMB Bank, N.A. ("UMB") as trustee of The Employee Stock Ownership Plan of DST Systems, Inc., which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.4.
- The description of DST's common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, set forth in the Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 1, dated March 14, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to DST's Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated October 30, 1995 in connection with the listing of DST's common stock on the New York Stock Exchange (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.5.
- Paragraphs fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, tenth, eleventh, and twelfth of DST's Amended Delaware Certificate of Incorporation, as restated, which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the IPO Registration Statement, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.6.

II-3

- Article I, Sections 1, 2, 3 and 11 of Article II, Article V, Article VIII, Article IX of DST's Amended and Restated By-laws as amended and restated on May 13, 2003, which is attached as Exhibit 3.2 to DST's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.7.
- The Affiliate Agreement with James C. Castle, dated October 28, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.10 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.8.
- The Affiliate Agreement with George L. Argyros, Sr., dated 4.9 September 3, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.11 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.9.
- 4.10 The Registration Rights Agreement with George L. Argyros, Sr., James C. Castle and certain other individuals dated December 21, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.15 to

DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.10.

- 4.11 The Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2003, between DST and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee, under which the debentures were issued, which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.11.
- The Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2003, between DST and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers in connection with the private offering of the debentures, which is attached as Exhibit 4.5 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.12.
- 4.13 The global securities for DST's 4.125% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amounts of \$500,000,000 and \$40,000,000, respectively, which are attached as Exhibits 4.2 and 4.3, respectively, to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.13.
- 4.14 The global security for DST's 3.625% Series B Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amount of \$300,000,000, which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.14.
- 5.1 Opinion of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP.
- 8.1 Opinion of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP relating to tax matters.
- 12.1 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.
- 23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
- 23.2 Consent of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP (contained in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1).
- 24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of the Registration Statement).
- 25.1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of JPMorgan Chase Bank, as trustee under the Indenture on Form T-1.

II-4

ITEM 17. UNDERTAKINGS

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

- (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
- (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement;
- (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that paragraphs (1)(i) and (1)(ii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement.

- (2) That, for the purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial BONA FIDE offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (4) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial BONA FIDE offering thereof.
- (5) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.
- (6) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus

II-5

offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial BONA FIDE offering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

II-6

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Kansas City, state of Missouri, on September 24, 2003.

DST SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /S/ THOMAS A. MCDONNELL

THOMAS A. MCDONNELL

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Thomas A. McDonnell, Thomas A. McCullough, Kenneth V. Hager and Randall D. Young, and each of them severally, his or her true and lawful attorney or attorneys—in—fact and agents, with full power to act

with or without others and with full power of substitution and resubstitution, to execute in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, any or all amendments (including pre-effective or post-effective amendments) to this Registration Statement and any registration statement for the same offering filed pursuant to Rule 462 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting to said attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform in the name and on behalf of the undersigned, in any and all capacities, each and every act and thing necessary or desirable to be done in and about the premises, to all intents and purposes and as fully as they might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on September 24, 2003.

SIGNATURE	TITLE
/s/ Thomas A. McDonnell	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Thomas A. McDonnell	(Timespar Executive Officer)
/s/ Thomas A. McCullough	Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Director
Thomas A. McCullough	officer and birector
/s/ Kenneth V. Hager	Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Kenneth V. Hager	(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Gregg Wm. Givens	Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)
Gregg Wm. Givens	(Timespar Accounting Officer)
/s/ A. Edward Allinson	Director
A. Edward Allinson	II-7
/s/ Michael G. Fitt	Director
Michael G. Fitt	
/s/ William C. Nelson	Director
William C. Nelson	
/s/ Travis E. Reed	Director
Travis E. Reed	
/s/ M. Jeannine Strandjord	Director

M. Jeannine Strandjord

II-8

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT NUMBER	EXHIBIT
4.1	The Registration Rights Agreement dated October 24, 1995, between Kansas City Southern ("KCS"; formerly Kansas City Southern Industries, Inc.) and DST ("KCS Registration Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to DST's Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 1, 1995, as amended (Registration No. 33-96526) (the "IPO Registration Statement") is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.
4.1.1	The First Amendment dated June 30, 1999 to the KCS Registration Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 4.15.1 to DST's Form $10-Q$ for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 (Commission File No. $1-14036$), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.1.
4.1.2	The Assignment, Consent and Acceptance dated August 11, 1999 pertaining to the KCS Registration Rights Agreement and among DST, KCS and Stilwell Financial, Inc. (now Janus Capital Group Inc.), which is attached as Exhibit 4.15.2 to DST's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.2.
4.2	The Certificate of Designations dated October 16, 1995, establishing the Series A Preferred Stock of DST, which is attached as Exhibit 4.3 to DST's IPO Registration Statement, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.2.
4.3	The summary of the preferred stock purchase rights set forth in DST's Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated November 15, 1995 in connection with the listing of the preferred stock purchase rights on the New York Stock Exchange (the

"Form 8-A") (Commission File No. 1-14036), and the related Rights Agreement dated as of October 6, 1995, between DST and State Street Bank and Trust Company, as rights agent ("Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's IPO Registration Statement, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.

- 4.3.1 The First Amendment dated as of July 9, 1998 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 1, dated July 30, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.1.
- 4.3.2 The Second Amendment dated as of September 10, 1999 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 2, dated September 27, 1999 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.2.
- 4.3.3 The Third Amendment dated as of September 25, 2001 to the Rights Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 3, dated November 26, 2001 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to the Form 8-A, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.3.
- The Assignment, Acceptance and Consent dated as of November 7, 2001 and among DST, State Street Bank and Trust Company, and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., and pertaining to the Rights Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit 4.3.4 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.4.
- The Registration Rights Agreement dated October 31, 1995, between DST and UMB Bank, N.A. ("UMB") as trustee of The Employee Stock Ownership Plan of DST Systems, Inc., which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.4.
- The description of DST's common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, set forth in the Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 1, dated March 14, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), to DST's Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated October 30, 1995 in connection with the listing of DST's common stock on the New York Stock Exchange (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.5.
- Paragraphs fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, tenth, eleventh, and twelfth of DST's Amended Delaware Certificate of Incorporation, as restated, which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the IPO Registration Statement, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.6.
- Article I, Sections 1, 2, 3 and 11 of Article II, Article V, Article VIII, Article IX of DST's Amended and Restated By-laws as amended and restated on May 13, 2003, which is attached as Exhibit 3.2 to DST's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.7.

- The Affiliate Agreement with James C. Castle, dated October 28, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.10 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.8.
- 4.9 The Affiliate Agreement with George L. Argyros, Sr., dated September 3, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.11 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.9.
- 4.10 The Registration Rights Agreement with George L. Argyros, Sr., James C. Castle and certain other individuals dated December 21, 1998, which is attached as Exhibit 4.15 to DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.10.
- 4.11 The Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2003, between DST and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee, under which the debentures were issued, which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.11.
- The Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2003, between DST and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers in connection with the private offering of the debentures, which is attached as Exhibit 4.5 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.12.
- 4.13 The global securities for DST's 4.125% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amounts of \$500,000,000 and \$40,000,000, respectively, which are attached as Exhibits 4.2 and 4.3, respectively, to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.13.
- 4.14 The global security for DST's 3.625% Series B Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amount of \$300,000,000, which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to DST's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.14.
- 5.1* Opinion of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP.
- 8.1* Opinion of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP relating to tax matters.
- 12.1* Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.
- 23.1* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
- 23.2* Consent of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP (contained in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1).
- 24.1* Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of the Registration Statement).

25.1*

Statement of Eligibility and Qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of JPMorgan Chase Bank, as trustee under the Indenture on Form T-1.

* Filed herewith.